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Financial Summary

MBHME
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2008 2007
—RRNE BT LE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
HBMEHT BRI
Segment revenue g AL E
Construction and engineering BERBHIRE 3,845 3,003
Insurance and investment R REE 105 129
Property mE 367 305
Food and beverages g8 299 250
Computer and information communication BERAMBMRAEE
technology and others FEA 953 978
Total segment revenue BoRBa 5,569 4,665
Segment performance* SERR
Construction and engineering EERERIE 20 191
Insurance and investment e hEAE (71) 150
Property P 518 130
Food and beverages Tk 17 16
Computer and information communication BEEAMBARE
technology and others RHE 53 41
Total segment performance Bk SRS 537 528

* Included segment results and share of results of asscciates and jointly controlled entities

BRERSHERALMERE T RAREHERRS

2008 2007
Segment revenue 7 AU Segment revenue 53 ¥R 1%
69% 64%
2% 3%
1% 7%
5% 5%
17% 21%
2008 2007
Segment performance 5 E®RE Segment performance FHARR
(HK$ million B%¥ B T) (HK$ million 8 & &)
15 4§ 186 2 m
71 150
501 1 2 136
7o 15 1
4] l 54 39 2
c . Computer and information D Subsidiaries f£3 22 &]
onstruction and Insurance and Propert Food and icat ]
engineering investment m£ y beverages :Ur;:‘m:mca 1:2 th E] Associates B H 2 B
BEBBRETIL RE B E 83 o T

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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Financial Summary

BIEHE

The following is a summary of the total assets, total liabilities, share capital and
results of the Group as of and for the five years ended 31st March 2008,

THAAEEARRRE_FEAF=AS T —BL
BERFAZOAE BAM REREMMLR

Financials {HKS Million} HEBEH (B¥EER) 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Total assets HEE 6,003 6,453 6,936 7,291 8,579
Total liahilities mBE 3,206 3622 3,948 3,976 4,812
Minority interests DB A 323 291 267 322 445
Total equity HiER 2,474 2,540 2,721 2,993 3,322
Share capital A% 2
- in number (Million} -5 (BE®) 279 279 279 279 279
- in value (HK$1.25 per share) - H{E (BH#EEI25T) 348 348 348 348 348
Revenue g 25 3,002 3,866 4,335 4,665 5,569
Profit attributable to equity holders ERAREEEARERG
of the Company gl 186 295 331 318 231
Per Share Basis (HKS) BRE GEYRT)
Earnings - Basic B -AR 0.6% 1.06 1.19 1.14 0.83
Dividends Fg = 0.30 0.45 0.68 0.50 0.45
Net asset value {(at book vatue) BESE(RREE) 8.87 9.10 9.75 10.73 1191
Revenue Uiz Profit attributabie to equity holders of the Company
(HKS$ Million 55455 277 AR REEE ABEGER
{HKS Million % B8 L)
o4 130w 04 1186
05 [ 13,8686 051 ] 295
06 | 14,335 06 ] 331
07 [ 07 [
os [N : --o os [N ;1

Earnings and dividends 2§ & & 2

(Per Share Basis HKS TZTH )

04 0.30

05 0.45

0‘5*0'681.19 06 |

07 (.50

08 0.43

[ Dividends &8
W Earnings &%)

Total equity ¥

(HK$ Million B8 FE T}

04 ] 2,474
1.06 05 [ } 2,540
12
1.14 07§ ] 2,993
os [N : :::

HiBmRemaRan
_ERNEEH
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Business Chart
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Business Chart

EBEE
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Chairman’s Statement

ERBE

0o

The past fiscal year posed a number of difficulties. In the face of a faltering US
economy, rising commodity prices and financial market instability, the Group
took appropriate and decisive actions to mitigate these effects and ensure that
it is well-placed for future growth and consistent dividend yield — namely by
streamlining, reducing risks and further developing niche business areas.

During the year ended 31st March 2008, the Group was able o increase
revenue by 19.4% to HK$5,563 million. Profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company was HK$231 million, down 27.4% compared to last year.
Healthy contributions from the lifts and escalators, electrical and mechanical
(E&M) engineering and aluminium window projects in Hong Kong, Macau and
Australia, together with the cold storage operations and property revatuation
gains on ceriain investment properties, helped offset more difficult areas.

In particular, the construction and engineering as well as securities investment
segments faced challenges. For example, the rise of materials prices adversely
affected our building construction and environmental engineering projects.
Meanwhile, inflationary pressure on the global economy imposed stock market
volatility and raised the risk of stagflation in the US. This led to a revaluation
loss provision against our securities holdings. However, the Group responded
by taking prudent steps to trim its bank loans and reduce its equity exposure
substantially, thus protecting its cash flow position and demonstrating its
emphasis on fiscal prudence and shareholder value.

EAE-—EVMBEE RPEETORE-BHXAEESR ERAESE
MEARSHTGED FRERNHENEETEY UBEEELESY
B BRI NORARFRHERED TESBEMELER—BBHHE
FiE-RERAREE—-FIRREEMREREL-

HE_RFNEZAZT B LEE FEBRRBUA LA I194%EES
SS.69B - A RRRERE ARG EREEFE T 27 4%E 8218 T
FEEE EfRENOARBEEER BEREBEEENTHERS &
EAHERERRETRANENMEERA WS HADHEETRENE
M EL.

B RARMRTENRSFRE  mRERE-Fo HEEEEHY
FMEANEERARIEREERTHEE-FS 2REENAKREH
NRETEHTEENTERNRERR BEAEEAAHAREHHR
HEBREE-AH FREAEFEHOE SRNEHEE BHRTHER
EAEABEATEAR UMREIRENRSNPRR RALERE
HOMERREKREOE

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008




Chairman’s Statement

FRBE

The Group also made decisions to continue lowering overhiead and operating
expenses; streamiine and offload under-performing business in order to realise
profit from original investments; and improve averall return on capital - afl of which
have offered additional relief. After the year-end, the Group announced its disposal
of 75% of a pipe technology business to sharpen focus on developing the niche
Hong Kong pige rehabilitation market and Plastream advanced pipe technology
from Australia, To further improve its competitiveness in the value chain and create
long-term benefits, the Group is also keen to explore cooperation opportunities
with vendors and suppliers to form strategic alliances or joint ventures.

Although austerity measures have been implemented to cool down the
overheated property markets in Maintand China, the Group strongly believes
that property prices there will regain momentum due to strong local market
demand, improved affordability and robust economic growth, and it is
confident that its projects will yield satisfactory return in the coming years.

The Group is also optimistic about the prospects of its high-end food and
beverages {F&B) business. Being one of the major F&B operators in Hong Kong,
operating 78 Pacific Coffee outlets and 29 Igor's bars and restaurants globally and
equipped locally with a sizable central kitchen run by Igor's, the Group is in a
competitive position to achieve economies of scale, further enhance food quality
and variety, and take positive steps in sates-building and cost-reduction initiatives.

It was another year for recognition of excellence among Chevalier Group
companies. Chevalier Property Management Limited received the “Progressive
Award (Residential Building)* in the Caring Environment Recognition Scheme 2007
for its work toward installing disabled-friendly features at residential properties.
Also, Chevalier Insurance Company Limited was named an Appointed Services
Provider of the Employees’ Compensation Insurance Residual Scheme.

As a socially responsible entity, the Group once again was very active in
comrmunities around the world, contributing significant resources to causes
benefiting children, the environment, the arts and more. Of particular note is
the fundraising work done by Igor's Group for ROSE charities in support of the
Children’s Surgical Centre in Phnom Penh, Cambodia. Nearly HK$1.4 million
was raised in 2007, bringing the total since 2005 ta HK$2.5 million.

In April 2008, Mr Kan Ka Hon and Mr Li Kwok Heem, John resigned from their
roles on the Board as Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive
Director respectively, | would like to take this cpportunity to express our
gratitude for their service to the Board over the years. We also welcome the
appointment of our new directors, Mr Yang Chuen Liang, Charles and Mr Ho
Sai Hou, both of whom bring significant experience to the Board.

As our shareholders know, the name "Chevalier” is a French word for "knight”,
stgnifying our spirit and commitment to succeed no matter what the
circumstances, With a strong financial position and ample liquidity pasition,
coupled with prudent, disciplined financial management proven over the past 30-
plus years, the Board strongly believes that the Group can live up to its namesake,
weather the current challenges and continue on its path to future success. On
behalf of the Board, I thank the management and staff for their hard work and
professionalism and look forward to another successful year together.

Chow Yei Ching
Chairman and Managing Director
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWE D

The Group operates the following core businesses: construction and
engineering, insurance and investment, property, food and beverages {"F&B"),
computer and information communication technology (“IT") and others.

CONSTRUCTION AND ENGINEERING

During the year under review, the Group was able to capitalise on increased
demand for the construction, instaliation and maintenance of lifis and
escalators, E&M engineering projects, aluminium windows and pipe
technology services, resulting in a 28.0% increase in revenue for this segment
from HK$3,003 million to HK$3,845 million. The total value of the major
contracts on hang for this segment remains at HK3$3.2 billion.

Despite higher revenue from the building construction division, gross margin
suffered from significant price increases in raw materials, especially metals. In
response, the division imposed mare stringent cost controls and project
management to mitigate the effects. In addition, the Group has finalised
placing orders for raw materizls for current projects, which should also help
minimise price volatility. Looking ahead, the division will aim at incorporating
pricing adjustment mechanisms into future coming contracts so as to reduce
our exposure in these areas.

Maijor projects on hand for the building construction division include:
i. Construction of “The Praia” in Macau

ii. Hong Kong Community College Development at The Hong Kong
Palytechnic University

iii. Redevelopment of Shatin Pass Estate
iv.  Two primary schoals in Area 13, Yuen Long, New Territories

Despite very competitive market conditions, especially for the new sales and
installation business, the lifts and escalators division maintained its profit
contribution in the year under review. After installing more than 15,000 lifts
and escalators over the past 30 years, the division is well positioned to serve the
repair and maintenance needs of its customers and derive stable recurring
income, The division alse secured a large project from Singapore Housing
Development Board to provide over 850 lifts and escalators. Other major
projects on hand include the supply and installation of lifts and escalators for
the residential development at Celestial Heights, The Palazzo and Tai Wai East
Rail Station in Hong Kong, and Galaxy Mega Resort & Casino in Macau.

TR EAATE

. a0 ut
ATV

1. My Villa in Beijing, PR.C. 1. Chevalier's property management

1t B Ep services

2. Chevalier's cold storage and logistics AtTWREEERK
services 4. Chevalier Hotel — Jiujiang
HieyS ol R miaRe Rt (hiT)XBE
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEREAWRE DM

Mast of the resources and efforts of the E&M division were focused on Macau
in the year under review, which provided additional revenue and steady profit
contribution as compared to last year. Projects on hand for this division in
Macau include E&M works for the Galaxy Resort and Casino, the expansion
phase of Wynn Resorts and City of Dreams.

The performance of the environmental engineering division was affected by a
project involving the supply and installation of E&M equipment for Tai Po
Sewage Treatment Works Stage V. which encountered delays and rising costs
for building materials and labour. The division has undergone internal
restructuring to fine-tune its bidding budget process and ongoing project
monitoring with a view to restoring profitability.

The aluminium windows and curtain wall division, which provides a full range
of services including the design, rencvatien, engineering management and
installation of curtain walls, recorded another year of satisfactory performance.
Being one of the few major players in Hong Kong, the division has in recent
years further developed footholds in diverse overseas markets including
Australia, Japan and Macau. Major projects on hands for this division include
designing, supplying and installing glass curtain walls for I-Square, a 32-storey
entertainment complex at the former site of the Hyatt Regency Hotel, St Paul
Hospital in Causeway Bay, and the 15-storey headquarters of Sydney Water, a
Class A office building in Sydney.

During the year under review, the Group was able to narrow loss and increase
revenue for the pipe technologies business by streamlining its operations.
pursuant io Sales and Purchase Agreement, the Group will dispose 75% of its
interests in a pipe technology business to Sekisui Chemical Ca., Ltd. {*Sekisui”),
a company listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange and Osaka Securities Exchange
that provides a natural fit due to its sizeable presence in the construction
materials industry, The Group is confident that this will fuel further growth by
improving competitiveness and marketability. The transaction should also
enable the Group to realise an estimated profit of over HK$100 million, which
will be recognised in 2008/09 upan closing of the disposal.

Following this, the Group will focus on developing niche businesses for the
Hong Kong pipe rehabilitation market and its new Australian technology,
Plastream, under the Rib Lo¢ brand. With the Drainage Services Department
and Water Supplies Department’s launch of comprehensive water mains
improvement schemes, which are respectively aimed at renovating Hong
Kong's sewage infrastructure and aged freshwater and saltwater mains in the
coming years, the Group is optimistic about the prospects of this division.

5. Insurance services of Chevalier 7. Chevalier's network sclutions
HoA R EiE bt o= T 0F - F 2 R
6. Chevalier distributes Toshiba 8. Honda Automabile Dealership in Canada

selling and maintenance services
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEE W R

INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT

During the year under review, revenue from this segment decreased from
HK$129 million to HK$105 million as compared to last year. However, profit
declined substantially from HK$150 million to a loss of HK$71.1 million, which
was mainly due to the revaluation of the Group's investment portfolio at year-
end following significant adjustments in the global equity markets.

The global market is now battling two major threats. In developed countries,
the biggest threat is financial turbulence. From the emerging world's
perspective, inflation is the biggest problem. Financial concerns in the Western
world have given rise to a substantial drop in the equity markets, and together
with the Mainland government’s continuous tightening of monetary controls,
the PRC and Hong Kong stock markets sank to new lows in 2008. The Group
has already taken prudent steps and reduced substantially its equity exposure.
Meanwhile, the insurance undenwriting business for employee compensation
in Hong Kong, which constitutes the main portfolic of our insurance subsidiary,
continued to face intense market competition during fiscal 2007/08, and return
from securities investment alsa decreased.

PROPERTY

Revenue and profit for this segment increased substantially to HK$367 million
and HK$501 million respectively. The increase in profit was mainly due to the
cold storage business and the revaluation of the Group’s investment properties
in the PRC and Hong Kong.

The Group made good progress in Mainland China property development
during the financial year and also achieved satisfactory growth in property
sales. Phase | of the villa section at “My Viilla" in Beijing was completed and
delivered to buyers during the year. Also, pre-sales of the residential section of
Chevalier Tower, a residential and commercial project in Chengdu, enjoyed an
enthusiastic response with more than 0% of the apartments being guickly
swept up by buvers. Thankfully, the Group's PRC businesses and property
development projects were not affected by the recent earthquakes in Sichuan.
The latest addition to the Group's property development projects in Beifing,
Chengdu, Hefei and Shenzhen is a project in Changchun of over 700,000 sq.m.
Profit contribution from the projects will be recognised in the coming years
when the properties are completed and delivered to buyers. To fund growth in
the property segment, the Group also secured a BK3$1 billion 5-year club loan
from six banks in November 2007.

To sustain long-term growth in the Mainland China property development
business, we continued to look for opportunities in 2nd tier cities and acquired
a premium land bank during the year. As of 31st March 2008, the total GFA of
our land bank amounted to over 1,500,000 sq.m., which should be sufficient
to support our development plans in the coming 5 years.

The logistics and cold storage business continued to produce outstanding
results, capitalising on booming local demand to achieve a highly satisfactory
occupancy rate of over 90% and increased profit contribution. The Group
expects to have steady rental cash flow from this division in the coming year.

The property management division provides management services for
commercial and industrial buildings, residential units, shopping arcades, car
parks and other amenities in buildings with a total floor area of over 2 million
sg.m. in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Making use of our experience in
Hong Kong, the division is well positioned to leverage opportunities arising in
Mainland China.

A fair value gain of HK$387 million was recorded on revaluation of those
investrnent properties located in the Mainland China and Hong Kong.

1 2 Chevalier Injernational Holdings Limited
Annuat Report 2008
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWRDN

F&B, IT AND OTHERS

Revenue and profit from these businesses increased to HK$1,251 miltion and
HK$61.9 miflion respectively.

During the year, Pacific Coffee in Hong Kong achieved steady revenue and
encouraging operating profit. The total number of Pacific Coffee stores in Hong
Kong stood at 63 as of 31st March 2008 as compared to 51 in March last year.
Benefiting from a robust economic environment and the Group's continued
investment in branding, product quality and services, same-store sales in Hong
Kong grew an impressive 8.3% during the year and total revenue climbed
19.5% to HK$266 million. Our 49%-owned lgor's Group of restaurants and
bars recorded exceptionally remarkable performance — a two-third increase in
revenue with a net profit contribution more than double the last calendar year.
With the synergies gained from the central kitchen, the Group is optimistic
about the future of the F&B business in Hong Kong.

However, in addition to the closure of two unprofitable Pacific Coffee outlets in
Shanghai and Beijing as mentionad in our interim repart, the results of F&B
were also affected by the closure of a few other Pacific Coffee outlets in
Mainland China and the termination of its bakery operations in Beijing. Despite
such setbacks, Pacific Coffee is still optimistic about the tong-term market
potential of coffee culture in the Mainfand China and will cautiously continue
its efforts to expand its outlet network in prime locations of major cities.

As of 31st March 2008, Pacific Coffee had 78 shops and Igor's had 29 outlets
worldwide.

During the year, the revenue as well as profit of the IT business decreased
slightly. As we are still in a competitive market position, effective cost controls
with continuous operational restructuring have been imposed in Hong Kong
and Thailand o defend our profit margin.

Elsewhere, the Nissan and Toyota car dealership businesses in Chengdu
recorded improvements in both revenue and gross margin. To further capture
the PRC market, we established a Nissan car dealership in Panzhihua and
entered into an agreement to become the sales agent for Hongqi during the
year. These moves were in line with our strategy of providing automobiles to
PRC customers of different segments. The performances of our car dealership
businesses in Canada and food trading businesses in the USA were also
satisfactory, with both registering increases in both revenue and profit
contribution.

B EANBEREAM
EEEBNURRENSRLAZTBRI2RAR
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11. Watermark - a new waterfront
restaurant under Igor's Group in Central
IgorsSE UM E R T P IR
5% §f DIwatermark

9. Pacific Coffes - coffee wholesale and retail
Pacific Coffee—UISE#L T R TS

10. Cafe Duvet - an alfresco bar under Igor's
Group in Discovery Bay
igor'sSE A E MR T RO RGN R RIGE
Cafe Duvet
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Management Profile
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Dr CHOW Yei Ching
BrmEt

Mr KUOK Hoi Sang
BELEE

MERLE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr CHOW Yei Ching, Chairman and Managing Director, aged 72, is the
founder of Chevalier Group since 1970. He is the Chairman of Chevalier
Pacific Holdings Limited {"CPHL"), a public listed company on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited {the “Stock Exchange”). He is also a
director of certain companies of the Group. He is also an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Van Shung Chong Holdings Limited, Shaw
Brothers (Hong Kong) Limited and Towngas China Company Limited and
a Non-Executive Director of Television Broadcasts Limited. In 1995, Dr
Chow was awarded with an Honorary Degree of Doctor of Business
Administration by The Hong Keng Polytechnic University and an Honorary
University Fellow by The University of Hong Kong. In 1996 and 1997, he
was appointed as an Honorary Member of the Board of Directors by
Nanjing University and was conferred an Honorary Degree of Doctor of
Laws by The University of Hong Kong respectively. Dr Chow also serves
actively in a number of educational advisory committees and gives
substantial support to the aforementioned two Universities in Heng Kong
and The Hong Keng University of Science & Technology in areas of
researches and developments. He is also a Consultative Professor of
Zhejiang University and a Lecture Prefessor of Sichuan Union University in
the PRC. Dr Chow's enthusiasm in public services is evidenced in his
appointment in 2001 as the Vice Patron of The Community Chest in
Hong Kong. He was also appointed as the Honorary Consul of The
Kingdom of Bahrain in Hong Keng in 2001. He also actively participates
in various professional bodies and associations on fraternal and Chinese
affairs, To name a few, he is a President of The Japan Society of Hong
Kong and the Chairman of the National Taiwan University-HK Alumni
Association, etc. In recognition of his contributions to local and overseas
societies alike, Dr Chow was awarded honorable decorations from Britain,
Belgium, France and Japan. Furthermore, Dr Chow was also awarded the
Geld Bauhinia Star from the Government of the HKSAR ("HKSAR
Government”) in 2004. He is the father of Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar,
an Executive Director of the Company.

Chevalier International Hoidings Limited
Annual Report 2008

Mr TAM Kwok Wing Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar
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Mr HO Sai Hou
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Dr CHOW Ming Kuen, Joseph
AREEt

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr KUOK Hoi Sang, Vice Chairman and Managing Director, aged 58,
joined Chevalier Group in 1972 and is an Executive Director of CPHL, &
public company listed on the Stock Exchange. He is also a director of
certain companies of the Group. He is the President of The Lift and
Escalator Contractors Association in Hong Kong, the Vice-Chairman of
the Hong Kong — China Branch of The International Assaciation of Elevator
Engineers, Vice President of the Hong Kong Federation of Electrical and
Mechanical Contractors Limited and a Registered Lift and Escalator
Engineer in Hong Kong. He is a member of the Guangzhou Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference ("CPPCC™). Mr
Kuok has extensive experience in business development and is responsible
for the strategic planning and management of the operations of fifts and
escalators, building constructicn, building materials and supplies,
aluminium works, electrical and mechanical services, civil engingering,
property development as well as investment projects of the Chevalier
Group.

Mr TAM Kwok Wing, Deputy Managing Director, aged 47, joined
Chevalier Group in 1986. He is also a directar of certain companies of
the Group. Apart from managing the operation of insurance underwriting
together with property development, property management, cold storage
logistics and travel agency businesses, he is also responsible for legal
affairs, human resources management and corporate cemmunications of
Chevalier Group. Mr Tam holds a Bachelor Degree in Laws from Beijing
University of the PRC, a Master of Arts Degree from City University of
Hong Kong and a Postgraduate Diploma in Corporate Administration
from The Hong Keng Polytechnic University. He is also a Feliow Member
of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators, the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators in the U.K. and the Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries. Mr Tam is appointed as a member of the CPPCC,
Changechun, Presently, he also serves as an Honorary Secretary of the
Insurance Claims Complaints Bureau, the Chairman of Publication
Committee and a Council Member of The Hong Kong Association of
Praperty Management Companies as well as a Committee Member in the
Education Committee of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

Mr SUN Kai Dah, George
FRELE

Mr YANG Chuen Liang, Charles
BERLE
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar, Director, aged 34, joined Chevalier Group
in 2000 and is the Managing Director of CPHL, a public company listed
on the Stock Exchange. He is also a director of certain companies of the
Group. Mr Chow holds a degree in Master of Engineering from the
University of Oxford, U.K. He is currently a General Committee Member
and Chairman of the Environment Committee of the Hong Kong General
Chamber of Commerce, a General Committee Member of the Chinese
Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong and The Chamber of Hong
Kong Listed Companies. He is also a Council Member of the Hong Kong
Productivity Council and a General Commiitee Member of the
Infrastructure Development Advisory Committee of Hong Kong Trade
Development Council. Mr Chow is a member of the Committee Member
of the CPPCC, Shanghai. He is the son of Dr Chow Yei Ching, the
Chairman and Managing Director of the Company.

Mr HO Chung Leung, Director, aged S8, joined Chevalier Group in
1885. He is also a director of certain companies of the Group. He is
responsible for management of Chevalier Group’s accounting and treasury
activities. Mr Ho is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the U.K. and 3 member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr HO Sai Hou, aged 42, was appointed as an Executive Director and
Company Secretary on 1st April 2008 and is also an Executive Director
and Company Secretary of CPHL, a public company listed on the Stock
Exchange, He is also a director of certain companies of the Group. He
joined Chevalier Group in 2005. He is responsible for management of
Chevalier Group's accounting and treasury, corporate finance and company
secretarial aclivities. He is an associate member of the Hong Kong institule
of Certified Public Accountants and & fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr Ho holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences
Degree in Accounting from The University of Hong Kong and completed
his EMBA with The China Europe Internaticnal Business School in 2007.
Previously, Mr Hc was the Chief Financial Officer and an executive director
of Van Shung Chong Holdings Limited.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr CHOW Ming Kuen, Joseph 0.8.£., /P, aged €6, was appointed as
an Independent Non-Executive Director in 2002 and a member of the
Audit Committee and chairman of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company. He is the Chairman of Joseph Chow & Partners Ltd., an
independent non-executive director & chairman of PY| Corporation Limited,
an independent non-executive director of Build King Holdings Limited
and Road King Infrastructure Limited as well as a non-executive director
of Wheelock Properties Limited. He has over 40 years of experience in
the ptanning, design and construction of many major engineering projects
in the U.K., Middle East, the PRC and Hong Kong. He is currently the
Chairman of the Construction Workers Registration Authority and Hon.
Senior Superintendent of the Hong Kong Auxiliary Police Force. He was
previously the President of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers,
Chairman of Hong Kong Engineers’ Registration Board, Hong Kong
Examinations and Assessment Authority and Pamela Youde Nethersole
Eastern Hospital Governing Committee as well as a Member of the Hong
Kong Housing Authority and Hospital Authority.

Chevalier Internationat Hoidings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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BEERN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(continued)

Mr SUN Kai Dah, George, aged 68, was appeinted as an Independent
Nan-Executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company on 31st March 2006. He has
extensive experience in business management. He was the founder of
Zindart Limited, a company incorporated in 1978 and listed on the United
States NASDAQ. He has retired from the position of Chief Executive Officer
of Zindart Limited since 1998.

Mr YANG Chuen Liang, Charles /.2, aged 49, was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director, chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company on 1st
April 2008. He is a qualified accountant and company secretary of Changan
Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd. which is listed on the Stock Exchange.
Previously, he was the Chief Financiai Officer and Director of Heng Kong
Asia Television Limited. Mr Yang is a partner of 5. Y. Yang & Company,
Practising firm of Accountants and a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England & Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr Yang obtained a Master Degree in Business
Administration from The City University London in 1983, Mr Yang was
appointed as Justice of the Peace by the HKSAR Government in 2004.
He was selected as “QOutstanding Accountant Ambassador” by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in 2004. He is currently a
member of Hubei CPPCC. Mr Yang is the Chairman of Admissions, Budget
and Allocations Committee and a Director of The Community Chest. He
is also a member of the HKSAR Chinese Medicine Council and Partnership
Fund For The Disadvantaged.
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Major Events

KE B

o

APRIL 2007 - MARCH 2008
“EZELFHARE-FENFZA

April2007 —E S+ FEMA

CPC Censtruction Hong Kong Limited
won a water works contract from Hong
Kong International Airport.
HiBRpERARATOSETEER
BB KB IIEEN-

May 2007 —_ ¥ 8 t# X1 A

“Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited” renamed as “Chevalier
Pacific Holdings Limited”, marking an important milestone
in the development of lifestyle food & beverages business
of the Group.
[ETHEEREERRIEASEAIELZRERE
Boall RAETEHEEANKRENEEZEIEE-

Chevalier international Holdings Limited
Annual Repart 2068

July 2007 — B2+ F+ 8
Anncuncement of 2007 annual results

D207 B2 LR

The Group acquired Changchun New Star Universe
Construction Devalopment Company Limited to jointly
undertake the redevelopment project of certain shanty
areas at Fan Jia Dian, Lu Yuan District of Changchun, P.R.C.
RHEEBREMEFEZERICELE AEFREURS
TEEETHREBRERSEWFERER -

Chevalier Property Management Limited won a Merit
Award in the ‘Best Property Management Companies in
Occupational Safety and Health’ competition.
RTEERHMAEEREE AR RERERYEEED
AR BRE-

Lam Woo & Company Limited won a contract from Water
Supplies Department, HKSAR for the replacement and
rehabilitation of water mains in Shatin and Shap Sze
Heung.
MEREFRANBEERAREEALUIIESND B
NEREEEIBEE+OBNKE:.

Chevalier Insurance Company Limited was appointed

as the Appointed Services Provider of the Employees’
Compensation Insurance Residual Scheme by the
Employees’ Compensation Insurance Residual Scheme
Bureau Limited.
HIGBRABLCIAMERRMNBENHNEERERS
EREHIBRHS N BEEREBHEE]-



Major Events
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August 2007 —_ZZE+F N8

Chevalier (Construction) Company Limited was
awarded the redevelopment project of Shatin
Pass Estate in Tse Wan Shan by the Hong Kong
Housing Authority,

Ht (3% ERLAEEEFEZE®S
H2uhEEELY BEHHERTE-

November 2007 — 22+ ¥+ — 4
Chevalier international Holdings Limited signed a
HK$1,000 million term and revolving credit facility
agreement.

HIBEESEEE+EEERERER.

Chevalier sponsored Chevalier Cup Race Day for the
12th year.
B+ _FEWIELHTESH]-

Chevalier Property Management Limited was awarded a
contract to provide security service for Century Centre in
Kwun Tong.
HIEEWEEEARABEBERIAPLRE

B

October 2007 —SZ+F+ B

Chevalier Property Management Limited was awarded a
contract to provide property management service for
Wan Tin Building in To Kwa Wan.
H-ZEMEFEAROAEEREINENERK
EMEEESH-

Chevalier solely sponsored a series of TVB Chinese
programmes, namely ‘Chevalier Presents: Wonderful Life’
and ‘Chevalier Presents: Enjoyable Life’, featuring
Chevalier's diversified businesses and their contributions
to the people of Hong Kong from all walks of life.
BEBAEEAAHIRERE-—RIIKE &R
[EFEFRAFIR[EFEFERF) BTRET
EHEZTLEFTEERENES —HERMME
ABTHEARAETEE-
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Major Events

AB MR

APRIL 2007 - MARCH 2008
“EFLtFNAEZE-ZTENFZ=H

January 2008 — SR N\F -7

Pacific Coffee Company launched a customer loyalty
program “Perfect Cup Card”.

Pacific Coffee Company HEH B Bt 258 [TEMLE
g8

L December 2007 — 22+ 5+ H

The Lifts and Escalators Division won the “New
Works Category — Outstanding Contractors Award
{Building Services Installation - Lift)",
“Qutstanding Supervisor — Maintenance Services
Projects category”, "Outstanding Worker —
Maintenance Services Projects category” and
"Outstanding Worker — New Works Category” of
"Quality Public Housing Construction &
Maintenance Awards 2007".
BRSERI2000FBE L HERRERRKRSE
RPN HIRREAE - BEARESR
(EFEHm-FRR) ] [REEERE - &K
HET)-[EREEHEE -SHIRIRIH
ITERERBE-HAHEIK]-

Announcement of 2007/08 interim results

D# 2007, /08 EE h BRI

Chevalier (Aluminium Engineering) Limited was
awarded the |-Square project.

H+ (83 T18) R 2 3 EI-Squared £

.
20 . Chevalier International Holdings Limited
| Annual Repert 2008
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Major Events
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March 2008 — S NE=H

Chevalier Network Solutions Thai Limited was awarded a significant
contract by TRUE Corporate Public Company Limited, a leading
telecommunications company in Thailand, for which Chevalier will supply
and install intelligence solutions for its Convergence Call Center.

— Action Honda won the 2008 Quality Dealer Award B+ SRR ERER AR ERER BB BETE- TRUE
for the 7th year. Corporate Public Company Limited B B AR &#) AEEHERBP L
Action Honda$ £ £ #2008 F XA B H RIBLL. RHEERERER-.

Exploration and Production Public Company Limited, a national petroleum

awarded the St Paul's Hospital redevelopment project
exploration and production company, for the installation services of the

in Hong Kong. e
{ Ti2 s : z communication sysiem - IP Telephony.
r (BT RIARAAREAERERRLRE S R B AR 2 00 B R 5 3 B R 2 B1PTT

Exploration and Production Public Company Limited® #] - B3 2 8180
Arhit LI2IRH R R R BM AR

Chevalier Hotel-Xinyang, PR.C., has received two awards, the “Safety
Production Advanced Unit” and the "Grand A in Paying Tax Credibility
Grading of Corporaticns”, from the District Government of Shihe.

Ht+ (EB) ABERAGEMIERNAEMESERER 95
RIERHERERNBNRIARRAGHASHRCR  HBEH-

|
|
‘ Chevalier (Aluminium Engineering) Limited was — Chevalier Network Solutions Thai Limited won the Arthit project from PTT
]
|
|
I
|
|

February 2008 — 2 ZNE A
Chevalier organised a work commencement ceremony for Hua Qiao
Plaza, a commercial and residential development project in Hefei,
Anhui Province, P.R.C.
BEtRMOBLRREETRENEELE AR [HIEREG )8
fIMIfE.

Chevalier (Aluminium Engineering) Limited was awarded the

Sydney Water Corporate Headquarters project in Australia.
HH(BIR)gRLREAMERKBRENEH-
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Projects Review
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In the pasi 38 years, Chevalier has been taking part in numerous of significant
infrastructure, construction and engineering projects. Its global business
networks and project management experiences strengthen the Group’s

competitive advantage in the industry.

. The Praia

BEX

I-Square (Former address of
Hyatt Regency Hotel)
I-Square { B & B ULt AE)
MGM Grand Macau
EGEER
BEGTQEERE

Hong Kong Jockey Club
Enterprise Centre,

Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology
FHEFAPEETREO
(W 3A £ s ep

Chevalier international Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008

. Sands Casino

BHBRES

. Grand Lisboa Hotel

HERBSE

. International Finance Centre

— Tower |

BEsRtL—H

. No 129 Repulse Bay

ZRTE129%

9. Shangri-La Hotel, Chengdu
BMERERXEE

10, Macau Tower Convention
and Entertainment Centre
BPREECRRASE DL

11. Cyberpert Development
Cffice
BEENANE

12. Wynn Resorts
KHPERH

BE=TNAF HISE-H2HEENFARER
BERIREA-ZHEINEEAK LA TESR
BEETHEETEERTERANBREHS.
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T
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i
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13. New TVB City, Tseung Kwan O
BE BN ERE

14. Nina Tower
B0 A5

15. Four Seasons Hotel
M FE B E

16. Hong Kong Wetland Park
FEEHRLE
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Project Name
BB R

Central Reclamation Phase Il -
E&M Facilities and Pumping Stations
PEE-HNBHEABRNRER BAW

Air-conditioning Aluminium
Systems and  Windows
E&M and Cuntain Lifts &
Engineering Walls Building Escalators
ATBIREEE BRMBE  Construction  FRER
MRTIR 1 -2 L §:3:]

Netwarks
Selutions
113k

Pipe

Environmental  Building

Tethnolagies Engineering  Products

KERE

nEIg ez 50

Macau Tower Convention and Entertainment Centre

NP REEARBHHD A

Wynn Resorts
KEBBH

Sands Casino

wIPRBS

Grand Lisboa Hotel
BRABE

Headguarters of Sydney Water (Australia)
BEKFBEE (AAM)

The Cullinan

No 129 Repulse Bay
Bk EE 12980

Cyberpart Devetlopment Office
BEEROXE

I-Square (Former address of Hyatt Regency Hotel)
I-Square (B % B WL BB %)

MGM Grand Macau
REEERABMCERAE

International Finance Centre - Tower |
BEREmti—

Hong Keng Wetland Park
BHRBLHE

Haong Keng Jockey Club Enterprise Centre,
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology

BRHEXPHEARSOARBE DA

Hong Kong Community College Hung Hom Bay Campus,
Hong Keng Polytechnic University
FREI A —FEZ L RRADERSE

The Praia
BRE

Shangri-La Hetel, Chengdu
RBERERAEE

Galaxy Mega Resort
BRERRES

Nina Tower

puley ]

Four Seasons Hotel

HEFE

New TVB City, Tseung Kwan O
REANBRE

Hong Kong International Airport
Water Works Project
FERMEOKBIREN

The Center
o IR A

Castle Peak Power Station
LU

Tai Po Sewage Treatment Works

KESKRER

Tai Po Treatment Works & Pumping Station
XA E ki

Harbour Area Treatment Scheme

EHFLREHE

New Town Plaza, Shatin

B R

Central Plaza

PRNE

Landmark North, Sheung Shui
L &iEE

Tuen Mun Hospital

WA

Venetian

BREBA

The Palazzo
#9820

® China® R

B Hong Kong 3B
A Macau B

Tr Australia 2 H

A+ EEARGRAT | o

ZQUNTFE




China Property Development Portfolio

A
PEIMEZRAS
@ Changchun Urban Renewal Project - i
Fanjiadian, Luyuan District,
Changchun, lilin.
aNERETFEARCRIENER
\/

© My villa - East Fengxiang Street, Heilongjiang
Yangsong Town, HuaiRou District, Beijing. i

R - AR B R AR N \ C

AN jin VN
“\,\ﬁ 3

Xinjiang Liaaning
b2l :
- Beijing
Inner Mangolia e,
s LR
S
Hebei @ Huagiao Plaza -
Ningxi Sharui L Changjiang Road Central,
ingxia anxi - .
) ‘ . Luyang District, Hefei,
Q'f,?ga' B W Anhqi Province. )
| X H Gansu EERS - TRA ST
| \ Tibet — H& Shaanxi Henan ﬁﬁ@&ﬂ*%
i \-\. i . r‘") RS ha RR Chevalier Place -

/
/

- Hubei

™ ) i ?} 18 Jiefang
i ; . Xuhui District,
Sichuan e ; BEN 4 Shanghai

/o i ; Shanghai.
W \ Pl Gg;!?%ng Vi Zhejiang L m;g_ i
\ ~ e~ Hunan Jiangxi
] — 7 - W PR
\/,‘ G‘E;il?l\!ou Fujian )
( Yunnan 5 /\a/\;—\ /\ Elwan
| - oF Guangxi ¢ Guangdeng i &
| 1 \

€ Chevaller Tower - Binjiang Road, R_‘r’w

linjiang District, Chengdu.
BT R - RBIRIT AT

© Lushan Road Project - Donglin Village,

Hong Keng
B

Wanan Town, Shuangliu County, Chengdu. (. Developed properties
BILXERE - RSN E LR ERRZEERR
& Luye Village Project — Luye Village, © Lower Xiling Project — Luosha Road, © Properties under development
Huayang Town, Shuangliu County, Chengdu. Lower Xiling, Luohu District, Shenzhen. DR T IHEEE
BRERNIER - AR RGBS AR T A THIRE - RIITEAE
ST N R I AT A @ Land bank yet to develop
FEERZANES
® Land under demolition
TR
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Revenue

Revenue increased by 19.4% or HK$304 million from HK$4,665 million to
HK$5,569 million. Such increase was mainly attributable to the construction
and engineering segment with increase of revenue of HK$842 million arising
from building construction, E&M, lifts and escalators as well as pipe
technologies divisions.

Gross profit

Gross profit however dropped by 9.4% to HK$683 million as a result of decline
in profitability of building construction and environmental engineering projects
caused by significant rises in prices of raw materials such as metals.

Other (expense}/income, net

Other incomef{expense), net mainly included losses on investments at fair value
through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments amounting to
HK$112 million (whereas last year gain of HK$112 million), of which HK$108
million represented unrealised loss (2007: HK$71.3 millicn unrealised gain)
from revaluation of securities investment portfolios and derivative financial
instruments at year end.

Other gain, net

The increase of other gain, net of HK$322 million mainly arose from revaluation
gains of fair value of the Group’s investment properties of HK$387 million. The
Group was confident on the long term potential of real estate market in
Mainland China and hence decided to transfer its unseld development
properties located at Shanghai from properties for sale to investment
properties, resulting in an increase in fair value amounting to HK$276 million.

Share of results of associates

The Group recorded its share of full year profit contribution from the Igor’s
Group of HK$9.6 million as compared to the 2-month profit of HK$1.0 million
last year. The Igor’s Group expanded rapidly with substantial improvemnent in
profit contribution. The share of results of associates was also increased by
share of fair value gain on investment properties from an associate amounting
to HK$14.2 million.

Share of results of jointly controlled entities
The improvement mainly represented the share of profit for Phase | property
development of the villa section at “My Villa” in Beijing.

Finance costs, net

Finance costs, net remained stable. Interest on convertible bonds increased due
to the full year impact on issuance of convertible bonds in July 2006. Net
interest on bank borrowings decreased due to reduction in interest rates offset
by higher level of borrowings to finance new and continuing investments. A
S-year HK$ 1 billion syndication loan was arranged during the year to refinance
the previous HK$6C0 million loan.

Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses included current tax of about HK$40.1 million (2007:
HK$54 million) and deferred tax of about HK$72.7 million (2007: HK$12.8
million). The increase in deferred tax was mainly caused by the increase in
pre-tax profits from property revaluations.

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company

The decrease in profit attributable to equity holders of the Company was mainly
due to reduced contributions from construction and engineering plus securities
investment offset by the increased fair value gains on investment properties.

Minority interests
The increase principally represented the minority interest’s share of profit for
valuatien gains for the property located in Shanghai.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Investment properties

The increase mainly included the transfer of certain properties located at
Shanghai from properties for sale to investment properties of HK$168 million
and the associated revaluation gains of HK$276 million. As stated above, these
properties were developed by the Group for sales purpose initially and in view of
the long term potential of rise in property value, the Group has reclassified such
properties to investment properties held for rental from properties held for sale.
The revaluation gains from the Group’s other properties amounted to HK$111
million,

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

A significant investment portfolio was disposed of during the year since the
Group intended to reduce its equity portfolic exposure in order to avoid stock
market risks. The decrease of such investments at fair value through profit or
loss under the non-current assets referred mainly to the unwinding of structural
deposits held of HK$260 million whereas the decrease of such under the
current assets referred to the decline in market value of these investments from
both revaluation and actual disposals.

Other non-current assets

The increase of HK$379 million arose mainly from the Group's property
development projects in Mainland China, including deposits paid and costs
incurred of HK$252 million for relocation of existing residents for the
Changchun project, as well as advance of HK$125 million to its joint venture
partner for the Hefei project.

Properties for sale
The decrease represented mainly transfer of certain properties located at
Shanghai from properties held for sale to investment properties.

Debtors, deposits and prepayments

The increase was mainly attributable to the transfer from weork-in-progress for
two major jobs completed by the civil engineering division in the amount of
HK$123 million, as well as our increased E&M and construction works for
casing, hotel and residential developments in Macau of HK$99 million.

Bank balances and cash

The increase was attributable by the scaling down of securities investment
portfolio, share placement by its listed subsidiary, Chevalier Pacific Holdings
Limited (*CPHL"}, and additional borrowing from the new syndication bank
loans. As of year end, about 59.8% of the balance of cash was denominated in
Hong Keng dollars or US dollars, while 22.0% of which was denominated in
Renminbi.

Bank borrowings

Bank borrowings under both current and non-current liabilities totaling
HK$2,235 million (2007: HK$1,671 million) of which about 73.7% (2007:
84.5%) were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, 11.1% {2007: Nil) in
Renminbi and 9.4% (2007: 8.2%} in Euro dollars, The increase in total bank
borrowings of HK$564 million was used mainly to finance various property
development projects in Mainland China, the Group’s recurring operating
activities and potential investrment and expansion activities.

With the refinancing of previous syndication bank loans, maturity of the
Group’s borrowings in respect of the portion due within one year reduced to
32.4% (2007: 48.8%) of the overall borrowings. Major portion of the Group’s
borrowings was now due for repayment on a longar term maturity.

Minority interests

The increase principally represented the issuance of new shares by its listed
subsidiary, CPHL and the contributions from minority interests in Shanghai for
property valuation.

Chevalier [nternational Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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Deferred tax liabilities
The increase was principally attributable io the additional deferred tax on
revaluation gains on investmeni properties.

Convertible bonds

In July 2006, the Group issued 2.125% convertible bonds with face value of
HK$450 million which would be due on 28 July 2011. The Group subseguently
repurchased HK$50 million of the convertible bonds in the year ended 31st
March 2007. The proceeds from the issuance of the convertible bonds have to
be split into liability and derivative components. Movements in the convertible
bonds - liability component represented interest expenses offsetting by the
interest payment during the financial year. Change in the convertible bonds -
derivative component represented the fair value gain calculated based on an
option price model.

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND FINANCIAL RATIOS

As at 31st March 2008, the Group’s net assets attributable to equity holders of
the Company amounted to HK$3,322 million {2007: HK$2,993 million), an
increase of HK$329 million or 11.0% when compared with 2007. Such
increase was mainly attributable to the profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of HK$231 million and exchange gain on
transiation of HK$181 million, offsetting by payments of final dividends for last
year totaling HK$128 million.

Total debt to.equity ratio was 69.5% (2007: 61.2%} and net debt to equity
ratio was 34.5% (2007: 27.7%), which are expressed as a percentage of bank
and other borrowings and liability component of convertible bonds, and net
borrowings respectively, over the total equity of HK$3,767 million (2007:
HK$3,316 million). Total debt to total assets ratic was 30.5% (2007: 27.8%),
which are expressed as perceniage of bank and other borrowings and liability
companent of convertible bands over the total assets of HK$8,579 million
{2007: HK$7,291 million).

BORROWINGS

At the balance sheet date, the Group’s bank and other borrowings amounted
to HK$2,618 million (2007: HK$2,027 million). Cash and deposits at bank,
including fixed and structured deposits, amounted to HK$ 1,318 million (2007:
HK$1,111 millien) and net borrowings amounted to HK$1,3C0 millien (2007:
HK$916 million). Most of the borrowings are carrying floating interest rates
based on Hong Kong Interbank offering Rates, with small portions based on
Prime Rate. Included in the horrowings are 2.125% convertible tonds of
HK3$450 million issued in July 2006, which helped the Company to enjoy a
lower interest coupen cash cutlay before maturity or redemption.

Finance cost for the year amounted to HK$126 million (2007 HK$122 million),
an increase of HX$4 million as compared with 2007.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts conservative treasury policies in cash and f{inancial
management. To achieve better risk control and minimise cost of funds, the
Group's treasury activities are centralised. Cash is generally placed in short-term
depaosits mostly denaminated in Hong Kong or US dollars. The Group’s liquidity
and financing requirements are frequently reviewed. In anticipating new
investments or maturity of bank loans, the Group will consider new financing
while maintaining an appropriate level of gearing.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES
AND INTEREST RATES

The group has arranged foreign cusrency swap contracts amounting to HK$195
million to manage the exchange rate exposure between various foreign
currencies to other cross currencies. As at 31st March 2008, the Group had
outstanding interest rate swap contracts which amounted to HK$1,027 million
in total, enabling the Group to hedge its interest rate exposure,
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CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 315t March 2008, bank loans of HK$351 million (2007: HK$372 millicn)
and other unutilised banking facilities are secured by charges on investment
properties of HK$420 million (2007: HK$279 million}, property, plant and
equipment of HK$194 million (2007: HK$252 million), prepaid lease payments
of HK$149 million {2007: HK$311 million), properties for sales of HK$92
millzon (2007: HK$109 million), bank balances and cash of HK$6 million (2007:
HK$24 million), trade debtors of HK$53 million (2007: HK$37 million),
inventories of HK$107 million (2007: HK$95 millicn), other intangible assets of
HK$11 million (2007: HK$8 million}. As at 31st March 2007, investments at fair
value through profit or loss of HK$2 millicn were also pledged.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the contingent liabilities are set out in note 43 to the financial
statements.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

Capital commitment of the Group as at 31 March 2008 amounted to HK$1,999
million (2007: HK$543 million}. These commitments are to be financed by
internal funds and borrowings. Details of the capital commitment are set out in
note 44 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO AFFILIATED COMPANIES
AND THEIR PROFORMA COMBINED BALANCE SHEET

The Company and/or its subsidiaries have provided financial assistance to, and
guarantees given for banking facilities granted to, affiliated companies as at
31st March 2008, which together in aggregate amounted to HK$253.5 million
as loans and HK$619.4 million as guarantees issued for bank loans granted.
These amounts represented a percentage ratio of approximately 10.98% as at
31st March 2008 and exceeded the relevant percentage ratios of 8% under the
Listing Rules. In accordance with the Rule 13.22 of the Listing Rules, an
unaudited proforma combined balance sheet of those affiliated companies
with financial assistance from the Group and the Group’s attributable interest
in those affiliated companies as at 31st March 2008 are presented below;
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Proforma The Group's

combined attributable

balance sheet interest

mESH FE

HEB@EX ELES

HK$ Millicn HKS Million

AEARR ANOER

Non-current assets ENBEE 579 267

Current assets mBEE 1,370 634
Current liabilities mEA M (535) (251)
Non-current liabifities EIE i = i {356) (165)
Shareholders’ advances BHER (273) (257)

Total equity BiES 785 228

As at 31st March 2008, the Banking facilities utilised by the affiliated
companies, against which the Group has provided guarantees, amounted to
HK$369 million (2007: HK$139 million).

Chevatier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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Schedule of the Major Properties

FTEYPER

Particulars of major properties held by the Group are as follows:

{A) HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/
PROPERTIES FOR OWN USE

Location Usage

i 36 AR

AREZEENRHEFIMT
(B) HERE BRANE

Approximate
gross

floor area
Pk

[k |

sq.ft.

EHFR

Group's

interest

Lease term W AT 4G
HEH mi
%

Ha®

Hong Kong
g5#8

Units 1011 to 1019 on 10th Floor, Office premises and
19th to 23rd Floor car parking space
one-third interest in 201 carparks WAL =REHE
of Chevalier Commercial Centre,

8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay

AEBERBNK
BAimipotg
—F——E-T-NE-

ThE=Z+=Z#R
=g~z BEE
“B¥ @

Ground Floor of Block A, Industrial
East Sun Industrial Centre, I%
16 Shing Yip Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon
NEBEBEREH AR
TEETEPLAEMT

Chevalier Warehouse Building, Industrial
1 On Fuk Street, On Lok Tsuen, I
Fanling, New Territories

FRARBRERBREH R
Hi#HAEXKU

Chevalier Engineering Service Centre, Industrial
21 Sheung Yuet Road, Kowloon Bay T 2%
hESEHRE -+ 8
HITTERHBPL

174,600

16,000

118,300

177,500

Medium 100
o 5

Medium 100
FHR

Medium 100
e Hy

Medium 100
+ 5

ALERABARAA | -,
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Schedule of the Major Properties
TEPER

(A) HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/
PROPERTIES FOR OWN USE (continued)

Approximate

(R FERE BAYE W

gross Group's
floor area interest
Location Usage AWM Lease term M A
o A o’ ROFH g
sq.ft. %
FAR EH%
Hong Kong
&b
The Whole of the 2nd, 3rd, 4th and  Industrial 163,000 Medium 49
Sth Floors, Factory Units Nos. T th HR
2205 and 2207 on 22nd Floor,
and 8 carparks of
Tsuen Wan [ndustrial Centre,
Nos. 220-248 Texace Road,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories
FRENELHE-_A-t+ZE
ZEHEFNAR
ERTREPL
- =-mRTEEE-
—tZB-_—_¥FEk
IR EREEUZAR
124-130 Kwok Shui Road Cold storage warehouse 427,500 Medium 75
Kwai Chung, New Territories AWEE m
MAEEEIRE
—B-tAE-B=Z+%
9 Henderson Road, Jardine’s Lookout Residential 9,500 Medium 100
EALUHEHEELE Tr= B HY
No. 20, Shek O Road Residential 5,300 Long 100
ARE-ZTH® ¥ $23:
Singapore
o
Chevalier House, 23 Genting Road, Industrial 80,000 Freehold 100
Singapore 349481 T KK
The Blue Building, 10 Genting Road,  Industrial 17,000 Freehold 100
Singapare 349473 I KA EE

30
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Schedule of the Major Properties

FBMEKX

(A) HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/ (B)BERE BEYE @

PROPERTIES FOR OWN USE (continued)

Approximate

gross Group’s
floor area interest
Location Usage KHI@®  Lease term: G
i B A mH BROTHE B
sq.ft. %
EEHR BaE
Canada
mExX
4334-4340 Kingston Road, Office, workshop and 20,200 Freehold 100
Ontario, MIF 2M8 car parking space for KARE
automobile dealership
RiESERE2HAE.
TizRE#REE -
14535-14583, Yonge Street, Office, workshop and 25,000 Freehold 100
Aurora, Ontario car parking space for KA K
automobile deaiership
AEREEHZRERE
THEBEES
888 Hamilton Street, Hotel 66,000 Freehold 86
Vancouver, B.C. pif A KAE
United States of America
E:
430 East Grand Avenue, Industrial/Warehouse 38,000 Freehold 100
South San Francisco, CA I#/®8 KARE
Mainland China
W Py i
355 Minguan Road, Hotel 129,000 Medium 70
Xinyang City, Henan Province BIE o
MEEEETREB=RAH
Sha Long Road, Sha Tong Village, Hotel 123,500 Long 100
Houjie Town, Dongguan City B £
EETEGRDENDENR
Units 4, 5, 6 and 7 of 18th Floor, Office premise 7,200 Medium 100
Dongshan Plaza, Guangzhou, W= o 58
Guangdong Province
RREE B M Bl RS+
CH-AERYE
Chevalier Place, Lot Noc. 48, Residential, shop and 130,000 Long 80
18 liefang, Xuhui District, car parking space - =31
Shanghai T AHREEE
EEHHREE T N\EHH
+ NS i R R E
Eiﬂﬁﬂﬂﬁmﬂ%r__

ZRTNFES




Schedule of the Major Properties
TEPER

(A) HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/ (B) BHERE BRYE @

PROPERTIES FOR OWN USE (continued)

Approximate

gross Group's
floor area interest
Location Usage X##®  Lease term BTG
it B Ay T R BHER o
sq.ft. %
EAR Aag®
Thailand
£ 35
No. 540 Bamrungmuang Road, Office premise and 21,300 Freehold 100
Debsirin Sub-district, showroom A RHE
Pomprab District, MOERBEINE
Bangkok Metropolis
{(EReamzEEAMd)
Germany
e
Julius Strasse 12 Production 245,000 Freehold 94.77
32818 Schieder-Schwalenberg {impregnation plant) kA
Germany I%
Julius Strasse 6/10 Office and repair shop 227,000 Freehold 100
32816 Schieder-Schwalenberg WLERMIETS A B
Germany
An der Brehnaer 5tr | Office and repair shop 218,000 Freehold 100
06794 Glebizsch WRERIEE TS KA BAR

Germany

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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Schedule of the Major Properties

FTEVER
(B) PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT (Z) BBRHME
Estimated
flaor area
Expected date Approximate after Group's
Stage of of completion site area completion interest
Location completion AN=R Major usage AN RBHAS 1. Fgh
i REZBHE 2B TRAR BEmA emER ¥+
sq.ft. sq.ft. %

THFR  FHR  ERE

The Mainland China

hEAE
Beijing Huairou District  In progress 2010 Villa, residential 1,910,000 1,320,400 44
Phase Il THRETYE and commercial
EFMRE = HE ETRAR
Chengdu Jinjiang District
MEBHIE
- Phase | In progress 2010 Residential and 49,900 250,000 49
-—H TE#TYP commercial
GERER
- Phase 2 tn progress .2008 Residential and 88,000 502,000 49
--9 TREMTS commercial
EEREE
Shenzhen Lo Wu District  In progress 2009 Residential and 159,100 1,321,300 46
Xi Ling Village ITiEiTe commercial
RINBEARERAN GEEHL
Changchun Luyuan In progress 2012 Residential and 5,497,100 7,607,900 96
District THETH commercial
RELZHARE FERBER
Hefei Luyang District In pragress 2010 Hotel residential 244,000 1,493,700 514
AERRE THEiETH and commercial
BE-TERBEE
# Pursant to the joint development project agreement dated 27th June # ER_FERTAAC-THHTY2HAHE
2006, the Group will share 51% af the economic interests in the B rHEEESREHETHA IR+
project. ZHEE
(C) PROPERTIES FOR SALE (W) FEMW=E
Approximate
Location gross floor area Lease term Group's Interest
26 A MERR BAFH EMA{L
sq.ft. %
FHER BOE
Hong Kong
548
Charming Garden 4 shop units and 91 carparks, 3,128~ Medium 100
8-16 Hoi Ting Road, Mongkok West, Kowloon wh H
AEEATEESNETARERCEEFENABEREELE
Beverly Garden 13 shop units and 251 carparks, 15,812+ Medium 100
1 Tong Ming Street, Tseung Kwan O, New Territories ch HE
HABERERAH -RERCESE 3@ RBEE251E
Glorious Garden 7 shop units and 201 carparks, 5,765* Medium 100
45 Lung Mun Road, Tuen Mun, New Territories okt
FREMEMBN+EREREAME7ARSEZ201E
* Excluding carparking spaces
TaEFE
EtXEmaEsEE L

ZFTATEE
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The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in the firm belief that they are
essential for maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence and
maximising shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its corporate
governance practices from time to time in order to meet the rising
expectations of stakeholders and comply the increasing stringent regulatory
requirements, and to fulfil its commitment to excellence in corporate
governance.

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange*) (the “Listing
Rules”} came into effect on 1st January 2005. The CG Code sets cut two
levels of corporate governance practices namely, mandatory code
provisions that a listed company must comply with or exglain its non-
compliance, and recommended best practices that a listed company is
encouraged to comply with but need not disclese in the case of non-
compliance. The Company is in compliance with the mandatory.code
provisions of the CG Code except for certain areas of non-compliance
discussed later in this repaort.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible leadership
for the Company. The directors, individually and collectively, must act in
good faith in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders. The
Board sets the Group's overall objectives and strategies, monitors and
evaluates its operating and financial performance and reviews the
corporate governance standard of the Company. It also decides on matters
such as annual and interim results, major transactions, director
appointments or re-appeintment, and dividend and accounting policies.
Management profile of the Company as at the date of this report are set
out on pages 14 to 17.
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HEAHAENERINECREAERLAHRER
RENFE TEEHHREARBRRRSRESNGE
DHENRENEORELERE- A TEIALES
HENEEHERTARARTITHEAGDER
HEEBBRENERER ULTBREESYHET
BECREEHAR BEETHBRN AN R
EiEH R

BERSZRMARAT([BMIMA(EHF LR
A (TEWARRMD ST BRHEZ(ERELAER
SAD ([EREETADER-_FEAF—F—B
EBC-ERERTATHARBE NEEERFH
BECEBHTAGY - rTLASAET wBE
FRBEFARNAERAENEE - REEREEHR
- BREMOTANAETERAERBEREERY
HR-BTHHEREENATRELRBOER
S AR RERERTURMBY TR

ES®
MEaGARAARBERRHAAENARENA
B-WEHFAB ERFENSERL - BHARR
MU R R ERENERAS AR E- TS
TuFMECZERSEAN R RETMIAEE
BRGEAMBEZRR ERENEFELFAIEEE
BT -MERFNARTERLANEE -HFazse
FROHEN BRES HERINER - TR
AEEHHHE - REBERZA - LARFEREB
NHREIAEEB17R-




Corporate Governance Report

TRERHEE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board comprises 6 Executive Directors and 3 Independent Non-
Executive Directors. The full Board met four times during the year under
review. The attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings and the Board
Committees Meetings is set out in the table below:

BEgum
EREhARHNTES RSB AR HHME
% REREAREATIREN SHBELER
ERMEETARERANEERNT:

Meetings Attended/Held

aRUE A BITAR

Audit Remuneration
Directors Board Committee Committee
Eg xXus BHEASY HEEAER
Executive Directors
BT E
Dr Chow Yei Ching (Chairman and Managing Director) 3/4
BREREt (EFEHFHPEEE)
Mr Kuok Hot Sang (Vice Chairman and Managing Director)} 4/4 1fal
BEERE (HFEFREELME)
Mr Tam Kwok Wing (Deputy Managing Director} 3/4
HESEE (SIBERFEE)
Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar 3/4 11
FEEERE
Mr Ho Chung Leung 3/4
fAIREEE
Mr Ho Sai Hou (appointed on Ist April 2008} Not Applicable
AetFEeE (R_FFAFHA—BHEF) TER
Mr Fung Pak Kwan (resigned on 1st October 2007) 0/3
BiRmad (R-FREFLFA—BEL)
Mr Kan Ka Hon (resigned on 31st March 2008) 4/a
HERRE (R-FEFNF=Z/A=+—HEF)
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BIZIFHITHESE
Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph 3/4 2/2 11
REAEE+
Mr Sun Kai Dah, George 3/4 212 11
HRELE
Mr Yang Chuen Liang, Charles {appointed on Ist April 2008) Not Applicable
BERAE (R-_F®/N\FEHAF-HREZ) TEH
M7 Li Kwok Heem, John {resigned on 31st March 2008} 3/4 2/2 11

TEBAE (R-FFNFZA=+—AHE)

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
relationships with each other save for the father-son relationship between
Dr Chow Yei Ching and Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar. Each of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors has confirmed in writing his
independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

BEFHEIREAEEEERXTH FHEER
BrEaRME 25 ARSEGRR-EBLHF
RAESREBELTRIEIBEAESHARYL
M EASE m HERE

ATERAEFRLE
ZRENEFH
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
Since the Board is involved in the appointment of new Directors, the
Company has not established a Nomination Committee, The Board will
take into consideration criteria such as expertise, experience, integrity
and commitment when considering new director appointments. All
candidates must also meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and
3.09 of the tisting Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director should also meet the independence
criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

In accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company, all Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings of
the Company. New Directors appointed by the Board during the year are
required to retire and submit themselves for re-election at the annual
general meeting or general meeting immediately following their
appointments. Further, at each annual general meeting, one-third of the
Directors, or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third are required to retire from offica by
rotation and no later than the third annual general meeting since the last
re-election or appointment of such Director. Currently, all Independent
Non-Executive Directors are not appointed for a specific term.

Appointment and resignation of Executive Directors and Independent Non-
Executive Directors were considered and confirmed at an Executive
Committee meeting of the Company on 24th September 2007 with the
attendance of Mr Kuok Hoi Sang and Mr Kan Ka Hon and by full Board
on 1st April 2008,

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The CG Code provision stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same person. The Chairman and Managing Director of the Company is Dr
Chow Yei Ching and the Group Managing Director is Mr Kuok Hoi Sang.
The role of the Chairman is separate from that of the Group Managing
Director. The Chairman is responsible for overseeing the functioning of
the Board while the Group Managing Director is responsible for managing
the Group's businesses.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 1998 with written terms of
reference. Mr Yang Chuen Liang, Charles, Independent Non-Executive
Director, was appointed Chairman of the committee on 1st April 2008 1o
succeed Mr Li Kwok Heem, John after his resignation as Independent
Non-Executive Director and Chairman of the commitiee on 31st March
2008, They are qualified accountants with extensive experience in financial
reporting and controls. Other members include all other Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely, Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph and Mr
Sun Kai Dah, George. The Audit Committee is responsible for the
appointment of external auditors, review of the Group’s financial
information and qversight of the Group’s financial reporting system,
internal conirol procedures and risk management frameworks. It is also
responsible for reviewing the interim and final results of the Group prior
1o recommending them to the Board for approval. Its terms of reference
are accessible on the Company's website, http://www.chevalier.com.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31st
March 2008. At the meetings, it reviewed the connected transactions (if
any), the interim results for the six months ended 30th September 2007
and last year’s final results for the year ended 31st March 2007, and has
reviewed with Management the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discussed the auditing, internal contrals,
financial reporting matters and risk management systems of the Group.
The final results for the year ended 31st March 2008 were reviewed by
the Audit Committee in its meeting held on 14th July 2008,

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 10th March 2005 with
written terms of reference. Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph is the Chairman
of the committee. Other members of the committee include Messrs Yang
Chuen Liang, Charles {appointed on 1st April 2008}, Li Kwok Heem, John
(resigned on 31st March 2008}, Sun Kai Dah, George, Kuok Hei Sang and
Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar. The Remuneration Committee is responsible for
reviewing and determining the compensation and benefits of the Directors
and senior management of the Company. Its terms of reference are
accessible on the Company's website, http://www.chevalier.com.

The Remuneration Committee held a meeting during the year ended 31st
March 2008 to review the remuneration packages paid to Directors and
Senior Management for the year ended 315t March 2008.

BREESR
EEHIIBBREREAZEZERRCR —AANE
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MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for implementing
its business strategies and managing the daily operations of the Group’s
business to an Executive Committee which was established in 1991,
Members of the Executive Committee comprise 6 Executive Directors,
namely Dr Chow Yei Ching, Messrs Kuok Hoi Sang, Tam Kwok Wing,
Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, Ho Chung Leung and Ho Sai Hou.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Beard has overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and effective
internal controls in the Group. During the year, the Board has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal control,
covering financial, cperational, compliance control and risk management
functions. The Group's system of internal control includes a defined
management structure with limits of authority, and is designed to help
the Group achieve its business objectives, safequard its assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for publication, and ensure compliance with relevant laws
and requlations. The system is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss, and to manage
rather than eliminate all risks of failure in the Group's operational systems
and in the achievement of the Group’s business objectives.

The Internal Audit Department plays a major role in monitoring the internal
controls of the Group and reporis directly to the Chairman. It has
unrestricted access to review all aspects of the Group’s activities and
internal controls. It also conducts special audits of areas of concern
identified by Management or the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit
Department adopts a risk-based audit approach. All audited reports are
circulated to the Audit Committee and key management. The Internal
Audit Department is also respensible for following up the implementation
of recommendations and corrective actions. The Audit Committee has
free and direct access to the Head of Internal Audit Department without
reference to the Chairman or Management.

DIRECTORS' AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities in preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 3151 March 2008 on a going
concern basis.

The Auditor of the Company acknowledge their reporting responsibilities
in the Auditor's Report on the financial statements for the year ended
31st March 2008 as set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on page
49 to 50.
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AUDITORS' REMUNERATION HEM 2 e
During the financial year ended 31st March 2008, the fees paid/payable BE-_FTRNFZA=+—BULHBEFEER HE
t0 the auditors in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the EEEMMIRH Y EREEMIEEMBRD Z it/

auditors to the Group were as follows: B0 T

Nature of services Amount (HK$'000)

B i SEGENTR)

Audit services - PricewaterhouseCoopers ZEBRE — B ERKE AT B 6,190
— other auditors — H {h 56T 4,046

Non-audit services - PricewaterhouseCoopers ERERE - BEERKERFATRER 865
- other auditors — H b 5T AT 2,139

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS FHZENRETH

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by RRAEENT(EWRAID HsE-H-ARZ(LTE
Directors of Listed Companies (the "Model Code”) as set out in Appendix TAHMPH®ITEFZIINEETA([FET
10 of the Listing Rules. Following a specific enquiry, each of the Directors AN -@BAREAE SNESHERREFEAND
confirmed that he has complied with the Model Code throughout the BTREST A

year.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY HERE

To enhance the community relations, the Group has participated different ANBHeBEg snNeEZEREREEER
charitable and voluniary organisations in various community activities. RFEMSHEEEEH-FHN - asRENME2RE
During the year, the Harmony Garden, managed by our subsidiary was EHIEREE | BI2007ERBEHERBHEE] b0
awarded “The Progressive Award (Residential Building)” in the Caring [HUEHE S (ETEBF) ] UREEBEEERA
Environment Recognition Scheme 2007 for raising the awareness of a T EBRR- AN KRBT EFENGEEEE)
barrier-free environment. In addition, the Group has been supporting a Pl ME AR RAORRED 8B ERN
variety of charitable activities of the community such as “The Community W AHREAEREFRENLERBERM
Chest Corporate Challenge” organised by the Community Chest of Hong [EBRESHALH] REI+THSERHRIE
Kong, “The Community Chest Sports Corporate Challenge” to raise funds mEBHIHHEOLE]-

for 23 social welfare organisations for children and youth services and

Chevalier Blood Donation Day, the blood donation program organised by

the Hong Kong Red Cross.

INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS HEEERRRZRAE

The Group's senior managemeant maintains close communications with FEAZBAERAQBBER M ANERD
investors, analysts, fund managers and the media by various channels MEfmEREE M Z4FERAHEARE
including individual interviews and meetings. The Group also responds BB FEEANHIEAESRNAER 2 ERNE
promptly to reguest for informatien and queries from the investors. e #F i B B ] 2

The Board also welcomes the views of shareholders on matters affecting HESTROIREHEEFEENTHELER .
the Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’ meetings to THOOALERRXG BUEEMMEEHR
communicate any concerns they might have with the Board or ERERMEMEENEHE.

Management directly.

The Company provides extensive information of the Group timely to the ERARERTRPHRFEEHRS AR - BEEAMA
shareholders and the public through the publication of interim and annual HOARKARERLCRATRE>ENERER
reports, circulars, notices and announcements. The financial and other MEMERENHFBSEREMEMTBRREIAT
information relating to the Group is disclosed on the Company’s website, B ik hitp/fiwww.chevalier.comi@ e

http:/Amwww chevalier.com.
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ZTRNEER




Report of the Directors

EEEHREE

40

The Directors present to shareholders their annual report together with
the audited financial statements of the Company and of the Group for
the year ended 31st March 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities are shown on pages 144 to 156.

The Group's revenue and results for the year ended 31st March 2008
analysed by business and geographical segments are set out in note 40
to the financial statements,

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2008 are set out
in the consolidated income statement. An interim dividend of HK$0.16
per share was paid on Wednesday, 9th January 2008. The Directors now
recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.29 per share.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of qualifying for the proposed f{inal dividend and
determining the identity of the shareholders entitled to aitend and vote
at the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday,
26th September 2008, the Register of Members of the Company will be
closed from Tuesday, 23rd September 2008 to Friday, 26th September
2008, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be eifected. To qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers of
shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s Branch Share Registrars in Hong Keng, Tricor Standard
Limited of 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
for registration not later than 4:00 p.m. on Monday, 22nd September
2008.

SHARE CAPITAL

Mavements in the Company’s share capital during the year are set out in
note 35 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
Particulars of the share option scheme to subscribe for shares in the
Company during the year are set out in note 46 to the financial statements,

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in note 36 to the financial statements.

As at 31st March 2008, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
1o shareholders amounted to HK$771,745,000 (2007: HK$933,828,000}
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements in investment properties of the Group during the year are set
out in note 14 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
year are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings and other loans of the Group as at 31st
March 2008 are set out in notes 33 and 34 to the {inancial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group is shown on pages 2 to 3.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’s revenue and purchases of the year attributable to the Group's
five largest customers and suppliers respectively were less than 30%.
None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (whom to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company's issued
share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers or five
largest customers.

MAJOR PROPERTIES

Particulars of the majer properties of the Group as at 31st March 2008
are set out on pages 29 to 33.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31st March 2008, the Group employed approximately 4,900 full
time staff globally. Total staff costs amounted to approximately HK$965
million for the year ended 31st March 2008. The remuneration pelicies
are reviewed periodically on the basis of the nature of job, market trend,
company performance and individual performance. Other staff benefits
include bonuses awarded on a discretionary basis, medical schemes,
retirement schemes and employees’ share option scheme.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made donations of HK$1,290,000 to charitable
bodies.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Bye-
laws although there are no restriction against such rights under the laws
in Bermuda where the Company is incarporated.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities of the
Company by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.

DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the year and up 10 the date of this
report were;

Executive Directors

Dr CHOW Yei Ching

Mr KUOK Hoi 5ang

Mr TAM Kwok Wing

Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar
Mr HO Chung Leung

Mr HO Sai Hou

Mr FUNG Pak Kwan

Mr KAN Ka Hon

{Chairman and Managing Director)
(Vice Chairman and Managing Director)
(Deputy Managing Director)

{appointed on 1st April 2008)
(resigned on 1st October 2007)
(resigned on 31st March 2008)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr CHOW Ming Kuen, Joseph
Mr SUN Kai Dah, George

Mr YANG Chuen Liang, Charles
Mr LI Kwok Heem, John

(appointed on 1st April 2008)
{resigned on 31st March 2008}

In accordance with the Company's Bye-laws, Messrs HOQ Sai Hou, YANG
Chuen Liang, Charles and SUN Kai Dah, Gecrge shall retire from office at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and they, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election. The Independent Non-Executive Directors
are subject to the same retirement requirements as the Executive Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Dr CHOW Yei Ching, Messrs KUOK Hoi Sang, TAM Kwok Wing, CHOW
Vee Tsung, Oscar, FUNG Pak Kwan and KAN Ka Hon are interested in
certain contracts in that they are the Directors and/or have beneficial
interests in CPHL,

Save as aforementioned, no other contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director
had a material interest subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors have an interest in any business
constituting a competing business to the Group.

Chavalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES® INTERESTS

IN SECURITIES

As at 31st March 2008, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporation, within
the meaning of Part XV of Securities and Futures Ordinance {the "SFC"),
which have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were reguired to be recorded
in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to $352 of the SFO
or as otherwise required to be notified 1o the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

(a)

Interests in the Company - Shares

EERIBTHABZEZES

BIBENGF A=+ 80 KAREFERIET
BRABRADARAEEBAR (ERREFRPH
Wi ([B%5 EESEN ) EXVER) 2 & {) AR
fAREHAERTC BIERFREEEREXVEE
TREsS MR AL Rz ERREE (8
EARAESRE Ll RsFHERGEGRN A
RPERAZEERER) SMNETEEERIER
BHREEGIEIZEAETRTFEZELMA
ZHEGREA SREBERETHENGED R RE
THzEZRERNMT:

() Fx AR - R0

Number of ordinary shares

EEREO%®E

Approximate

Personal Family percentage

Name of Directors Capacity interests interests Total of interest

BEEY

HEBEHE =47i) PN FEEEM Hny Bak

(%)

CHOW Yei Ching Beneficial cwner 154,682,359* - 154,682,359 55.52
IShiRl:] HalE A

KUOK Hoi Sang Beneficial cwner 98,216 - 98,216 0.04
;gL ERERA

TAM Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 169,015 32,473 201,488 0.07
HEE BHEBERA

HG Chung Leung Beneficial owner 40,000 - 40,000 G.01
B4 HHERA

KAN Ka Hon Beneficial owner 29,040 - 29,040 0.01
HES BMBEARA

* Dr CHOW Yei Ching beneficially owned 154,682,359 shares of the * RN L T 255 H 154,682,359 R 2 R R

Company, representing approximately 55.52% of the issued share
capital of the Company. These shares were same as those shares

3 {ERRTIRIGH55.52% < ZFRARTR
(FEREzEHES | MRz BBER-

disclosed in the section “Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in

Securities” below.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES (continued)
(b) Interests in Associated Corporation - Shares

BEERTETHABZHSFER @
(C)HBARERE -G

Number of ordinary shares

BERRGHA
Approximate
Associated Personal Corporate Family percentage
Name of Directors corporation Capacity interests interests interests Total of interest
RHEN
EZER HRLH g1 PN £ RS £33 § 2B ot
{%)
CHOW Yei Ching CPHL Interest of controlled - 118,846,933 - 118,846,933 55.14
corporation
B BEL5D RENrEzEE
KUQK Hoi Sang CPHL Beneficial owner 2,400,000 - - 2,400,000 1.1%
BEE HiZs RHHEA
TAM Kwok Wing CPHL Beneficial owner 400,000 - 10,400 410,400 0.19
BEE HiZzo REAEA
KAN Ka Hon CPHL Beneficial owner 451,200 - - 451,200 0.21
s Htiza RHEHFA

* Dr CHOW Yei Ching had notified CPHL that under the SF0, he was
deermed to be interested in 118,846,933 shares in CPHL which were
all held by the Company as Dr Chow beneficially owned 154,682,359
shares, representing approximately 55.52% cof the issued share capital
of the Company.

Save as disclosed above and in “Share Option Schemes” below, as at
31st March 2008, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief
executives of the Company, no other persen has interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and any
of its associated corporations {within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Rivisiens 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which he is taken or deemed to have taken under
such provisions of the SFO); or are reguired, pursuant to 5352 of the
SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein; or are required,
pursuant to the Model Cede, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

Chevatier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

A share option scheme of the Company (the "CIHL Scheme”) was approved
by the shareholders of the Company on 20th September 2002. Another
share option scheme of CPHL, the subsidiary of the Company (the “CPHL
Scheme”} was also approved by the shareholders of CPHL and the
shareholders of the Company on 20th September 2002. The CIHL Scheme
and the CPHL Scheme fully comply with Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.
During the year, no share option was granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the CtHL Scheme and the CPHL Scheme. There was no
outstanding option under the CIHL Scheme and the CPHL Scheme at the
beginning and at the end of the year.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Birector offering for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation {other than statutory compensation}.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract of significance concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was entered into or subsisted during the year.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Company and its Hong Kong subsidiaries were participating companies
in the Chevalier Group Staff Provident fund Scheme (the "Scheme”) as
defined in the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance which is a
defined contribution retirement scheme. The Scheme was granted
exemption from Mandatory Provident Fund regulations by the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Authority and shall not open to new members
starting from 1st December 2000. Certain of the Company's overseas
subsidiaries contribute to their iocal government's central pension plans
for their employees. Contributions to the Scheme are made by both the
employers and the emgloyees at the rate of 3.5% to 16% on the
employees’ salaries.

Pursuant to Government legislation, Bank Consortium Trust Company
Limited was selected by the Group as an alternative Mandatory Provident
Fund (the “MPF") service provider for employees of the Group who join
the Group from 1st December 2000. The MPF is available to the employees
aged 18 to 65 and with at least 60 days of service under the employment
of the Group in Hong Kong. Contributions are made by the Group at 5%
based on the staff's relevant income at a maximum of HK$20,000 per
month. The benefits are required by law to be preserved until the
retirement age of 65.

The Group’s total contributions to these schemes charged to the
consolidated income statement during the year amounted to
HK$39.0 million against which the forfeited contributions amounting to
HK$0.4 million have been deducted. There were forfeited contributions
amounting to HK$44,000 available a1 the year end date for the reduction
of future employer's contributions.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN

SECURITIES

As at 31st March 2008, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief
executives of the Company, the interests and short positions of the persons
or corporations in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
have been disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in the register required to

FTERRZEBHER

RIFBRNFZA=Z+—8B HELANBERTE
TTBAEMA THALTEZDRFLCBRG A
RN AEAAREESRAEGRHEXNVEE2
RIF BB RECERE RACE/ELER
HEHFRMEEMERBMETZLGMAZESR

be kept by the Company under $336 of the SFO were as follows: BRELWMT:
Number of
underlying
shares held
(under equity Approximate
Number of derivatives of percentage
Substantial Shareholders Capacity Shares held the Company) of interest
RHEHER G
EA (X425 RN
FERE g4 FEEE TER®) Bk
(%)
CHOW Yei Ching Beneficial owner 154,682,359(L) - 55.52(L)
[E) 7R 7 Wl E A
MIYAKAWA Michiko Beneficial owner 154,682,359(L) - 55.52(L)
S EXEE BHERA (Note 1) (BFaE1)
The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. Interest of controlled - 26,9893,989(L) 9.69(L)
corporation 2,306,933(5) 0.83(5)
RES LR ZER (Note 2) (Htt2)
Goldman Sachs (UK} L.L.C. Interest of controlled - 23,992,10%L) 8.61(D)
corporation 2,306,933(S) 0.83(S)
FHEHARZER (Note 3) (KT 4£3)
Goldman Sachs Group Holdings Interest of controlled - 23,992,101{L) 8.61L)
(U.K) corporation 2,306,933(5) 0.83(S)
FHE AR ZAEN (Note 3) (H14£3)
Goldman Sachs Heldings (U.K.) Interesi of controlled - 23,992,101(L} 8.61{L)
corporation 2,306,933(5) 0.83(5)
FEHATZER (Note 3) (Hf#3)
Goldman Sachs International Beneficial owner - 23,992,101(L) 8.61(L}
MBEERA 2,306,933(5) 0.83(5)
{Note 3) (K &t3)
The Goldman, Sachs & Co. L.L.C. Interest of controlled 3,001,888(L) - 1.08(L)
corporation {Note 4) (B H4)
SRl n a2 s
Goldman Sachs & Co Beneficial owner 3,001,888(L) - 1.08(L)

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008

nEHEBA

(Note 4) (5 3t4)



Report of the Directors
EZgRaE8

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

Notes:

(n

(2)

(3}

(4}

Under Part XV of the SFO, Ms Miyakawa Michiko, the spouse of br Chow, is
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of 154,682,359 shares held by
Dr Chow.

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is taken to have an interest in the 3,001,888
shares held by Goldman Sachs & Co and the 21,685,168 shares that would
be held by Goldman Sachs International upon full conversion of the
Convertible Bonds (as defined below) held by Goldman Sachs International.
The Convertible Bonds are issued by the Company to Goldman Sachs
International on 26th July 2006. Goldman Sachs & Co and Goldman Sachs
Internaticnal are both wholly-owned subsidiaries of The Goldman Sachs
Group, Inc.

Gotdman Sachs (UK) L.L.C., Goldman Sachs Group Holdings (U.K.} and
Goldman Sachs Heldings (U.K.) are taken to be interested in the 21,685,168
shares that would be held by Goldman Sachs International upon full
conversion of the Convertible Bonds. Goldman Sachs International is 99%
owned by Goldman Sachs Holdings (U.K.) and 100% held by Goaldman Sachs
Group Holdings {U.K.) and Goldman Sachs (UK) L.L.C.

The Goldman, Sachs & Co. L.L.C. is taken to be interested in the 3,001,888
shares held by Goldman Sachs & Co. Goldman Sachs & Co is owned as 10
96.8% by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and the remaining 0.2% by The
Goldman, Sachs & Ce. L.L.C. {which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.),

The fetter “L" denotes a long position and the letter "5” denotes a short position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March 2008, so far as is known to the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company, no other person has
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations which were required
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisiens 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFQ and as recorded in the register reguired tc be kept
by the Company under 5336 of the SFO, or, were directiy or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of
the Company.

FERRZBHESR 5D

Hig:

(n

(2)

(4}

REELRBTEFSVE AELZEEENE
YFxtERBEAXSESsAMLIHEZ
154,682,3592 % {7 -

Goldman Sachs & Co#f#3.001,888 AR
Goldman Sachs Internationalts 7 21,685, 1684% o] &
RS (R TXHAM) RARR_BREAFLAZ
+ A HITEAIBBRMNS T Goldman Sachs
Internaticnal = The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. 15 1
LEBEGRH ZESH Goldman Sachs & Cok
Goldman Sachs Internationalt] BThe Goldman
Sachs Group, Inc. (I 2B B a]-

Goldman Sachs Internationalid 521,685,168/ 3] {4
fi% {11 ## » Goldman Sachs (UK) L.L.C. * Goldman Sachs
Group Holdings (U.K.)B Goldman Sachs Holdings
(VKR B RS 0 248 28 - Goldman Sachs
Holdings {U.K.}#§ A Goldman Sachs Internationat
9% A% 48 : i Goldman Sachs Group Holdings {U.K.)
E Goldman Sachs {UK) L.L.C.#5 & Goldman Sachs
International 100%HR i »

Goldman Sachs & Cod% 4 3,001,8881% A2 {% : i The
Goldman, Sachs & Co. LL.C.ERBIFAZSRE-
The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. F:The Goldman,
Sachs & Co. L.L.C.43 Al i & Goldman Sachs & Co
99.8% [20.2% = The Goldman, Sachs & Co. LLC.5&
The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. 12 EH B 2 7).

[LYERIFA-[S)RRELT-

BREXHBEEN MEARFEEREEITRAR
B R-BBNEFEZR=+ B HEfRGHEMA
TR AR A EH T R R Bz B AR R B
it HaABEEHRNERIENVHEIRSE
3nEEFARARBZEELEE RALEAAL
HREESEAREABEICHRETIERMAA
HEARESFEFMERNBRE (HAEF IR
ATIRARB ZBREARLER 2B EES
DZALL EHE-

HtBEpMBERLFE
STTAEER

47



Report of the Directors

HEEgHRESE

48

ARRANGEMENT FOR ACQUISITION OF SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Except for the share option schemes adopted by the Company and CPHL,
at no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of the Company are committed to maintain high standards of
corporate governance. The Company has comglied throughout the year
ended 315t March 2008 with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, with exception of deviation.
Detailed information on the Company’s corporate governance practices is
set out in the Corporate Governance Report contained on pages 34 to 39
of the Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Board, the percentage of the Company’s
share which are in the hands of the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s
iotal number of issued shares as at 16th July 2008, the latest practicable
date to ascertain such information prior to the issue of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHOW Yei Ching
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 16th July 2008

Chevalier International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2008
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Independent Auditor's Report
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consalidated financial statements of Chevalier
International Haldings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the "Group") set out on pages 51 to 156, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31st March 2008, and
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Heong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant
to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on cur audit and to report cur opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Company Act 1981 of
Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
Those siandards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatemeni.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to 1he entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the eifectiveness of the entity’s
internal contrel. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reascnableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st
March 2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Crdinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 16 July 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement

s R

For the year ended 31st March 2008 R E BB NF =A==+ -0 L F K

2008 2007
—B8NE —BERLF
Note HK$000 HK$°000
Fid 3% BETR BETT
Revenue W % 5 5,568,678 4,665,237
Cost of sales FER YN (4,885.395) (3,911,145)
Gross profit =¥ 683,283 754,092
Other {expense)income, net BEfe () /A -F8 6 {101,450) 120,465
Other gains, net Hiah#- 38 7 422,382 100,307
Selling and distribution costs HEREHERA (386,864) (342,131}
Adminisirative expenses 1T F (125,925) (118,694)
Operating profit g 491,426 514,039
Share of results of associates Bl B 0 B B8R 27,258 5,263
Share of results of jointly Fi {6 3 [ 1% &)
controlled entities % i 2,909 (3,159)
.......... 521,593 516143
Finance income Ht 7% 4 A 8 16,420 14,263
Finance costs MERA 8 {126,043) {122,356)
Finance costs, net MERR A8 g ] (109,623 {108,093)
Profit before taxation B B A ) 9 411,970 408,050
Income tax expenses gz 10 (112,811) (66,853)
Profit for the year A E H O F 299,159 341,197
Attributable to: A
Equity holders of the Company RARRERAEA 230,747 217,869
Minarity interests 4 BRR T AE £ 68,412 23,328
299,159 341,197
Dividends i 8 1 125,362 139,291
Earnings per share A
- Basic (HK$ per share) —EE(FREY) 12 0.83 1.14
— Diluted {HK$ per share) - B (BREY) 12 0.77 1.04

The notes on pages 58 to 156 are integral parts of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

GREEAFBR

As at 31st March 2008 # —_B2B2NE=/H=+—8H

2008 2007
—RBNE ZERLHF
Ngte HK$'000 HK$'000
B g BETR T T
Non-current assets khBRE
Investment properties BEIME 14 1,117,445 523,644
Property, plant and equipment ME - -BERERE 15 769,438 729,167
Prepaid lease payments ERHERR 17 446,018 455,239
Goodwill [k 18 210,330 210,330
Other intangible assets EEREE 19 161,044 158,864
Interests in associates RGBS LRz ER 21 172,818 137,084
Interests in jointly controlled entities A HL R e 2 M 2h 22 264,745 239,511
Available-for-sale investments AHERIEE 23 293,224 182,298
Investments at fair value through REMSRELAE
profit or loss BREMNEE 28 134,005 303,195
Deferred tax assets EEBREBEE 38 25,438 8,744
Other non-current assats HitERmEHEE 16 403,187 24,448
3,997,692 2,972,524
Current assets nEBEE
Inventaries & 24 338,717 304,385
Properties for sale EEME 25 258,945 461,159
Debtors, deposits and prepayments BEER FHESRAMNTIE 25 1,450,026 1,165,974
Amounts due from associates FENT B & 2 AR 3R 21 19,273 17,175
Amounts due from jointly WHAREH &R
controlled entities 08 TR 22 240,820 259,559
Amcunts due from customers RENTRENER
for contract work Wz HA 27 312,422 343,849
Investments at fair value through REHEELARE
profit or loss RE&IeE 28 760,218 1,000,758
Derivative financial instruments TTERMBITA 29 9,460 42,831
Bank balances and cash RiITHEEREAS 30 1,191,145 722,998
4,581,026 4,318,688
Current liabilities iy R=Ri i
Craditors, bills payahble, FEGER EEEE
deposits and accruals EAESREEER 31 1,321,692 1,178,146
Unearned insurance premiums FmH R B
- due within one year ——FRIH 26,503 32,174
Outstanding insurance claims RREBEH 32 215,572 255,337
Amounts due to associates PETER 2 D AR R 21 5,926 3,429
Amounts due to customers REHNTHREREF
for contract work AT 2 FA 27 260,681 208,113
Deferred income EEU A 224,484 21,372
Provisicn for taxation RHER 71.465 86,009
Derivative financial instruments TEMBIA 29 38,930 2,628
Bank borrowings BT E® 33 723,584 815,066
Other loans H fhfg 34 315 256
Dther payable H b FE 1 0 37 7,760 -
2,696,912 2,602,530
Net current assets RBEEERE 1,884,114 1,716,158
Total assets less current liabilities BEEFABAM 5,881,806 4,688,682

Chevalier Internaticnal Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008




Consolidated Balance Sheet

SREEREXR

Asat 31st March 2008 WM -fZNF=ZR=+—8

2008 2007
—8eNnEF ZERLHF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B & BETR ERTI
Capital and reserves BAL#R
Share capital R 35 348,228 348,228
Reserves Hi 36 2,973,919 2,645,093
Equity attributable to equity ZREIREREA
holders of the Company BN 3,322,147 2,993,321
Minority interests S EAR T 445,036 322,196
Total equity . R B3 3,767,183 3,315,517
Non-current liabilities ERDAMR
Other payable H fig B 3K 37 - 7,079
Unearned insurance premiums FAHERRE
- due over one year -Bi—F 11,357 13,789
Deferred tax liabilities BRIERARAM 38 206,231 113,487
Bank borrowings BITHER 33 1,511,621 856,275
Other loans HAE® 34 1,384 1,445
Convertible bonds - liability companent e - RAHE S 39 381,275 354,423
Convertible bonds ~ derivative companent @i -GET RS 39 2,755 26,667
2,114,623 1,373,165
Total equity and non-current liabilities BEXRIFTHAK 5,881,806 4,688,682

Approved by the Board of Directors on 16th July 2008 and signed on its BRESER_FBNELR+ABHE EHTH

behalf by :

KUOK Hoi Sang
BiEx
Director

HE

HBEAR®EE:

CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar
R#E
Director

n¥E

The notes on pages 58 10 156 are integral parts of these consolidated ERAEIS6AZHEINEESHBER 7 @K

financial statements.
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Balance Sheet

BEERRR

Asat 31stMarch 2008 M B RNE=ZRF=4+—H

2008 2007
—8BNE ZEREF
Note HK$000 HK$ 000
[i58+3 BYETR BT
Non-current assets HABLEE
Interests in subsidiaries FEHBLRZER 20 1,485,525 1,821,820
Available-for-sale investments [ eR: Yok %= 23 199,784 105,219
Investments at fair value through profit or loss HHIZREFE DA EEEMIEE 28 - 30,045
Other intangible assets HibmAEAE 599 599
1,685,908 1,957,683
Current assets hEBRE
Debtors, deposits and B FREGR
prepayments Tt ER 26 18,811 6,683
Amounts due from subsidiaries U E A DRI 20 2,223,157 1,407,098
Amounts due from associates FE 7 Bk 45 2 R 0B R 13 72
Investments at fair value through profitor loss HHAXEFR AL EREMNIRE 28 503,721 543,444
Derivative financial instruments FEHBIA . 29 8,381 40,780
Prepaid tax A 1,108 -
Bank balances and cash BIEGERRS 30 120,541 121,298
2,875,732 2,119,375
Current liabilities p5ig-B=Ri
Creditors, deposits and RER TARSER
accruals AERA 34 7.322 9,019
Amounts due to subsidiaries A5 BB BIOR 3R 20 1,095,855 886,370
Derivative financial instruments FTHEMBIA 29 38,914 2,567
Other payable H it B SR 37 7,760 -
Bank borrowings R1THER 33 158,270 475,000
1,308121 1,372,956
Net current assets RBRESE 1,567,611 746,419
Total assets less current liabilities 2EERMDA MK 3,253,519 2,704,102
Capital and reserves BERGHE
Share capital B8 35 348,228 348,228
Reserves fih 36 1,220,258 1,363,069
Equity attributable to equity holders of ELRBEREA
the Company MG & 1,568,486 1,711,297
Non-current liabilities FERBER
Other payable H i JE A 3 37 - 7,079
Bank borrowings RiTla 33 1,253,000 557,000
Convertible bonds - liability component AREEF-afEs 39 428,933 398,726
Convertible bonds — derivative component mgmRflE-THETRSS 39 3,100 30,000
1,685,033 992,805
Total equity and non-current liabilities BESEHFRBE K 3,253,519 2,704,102

Approved by the Board of Directors on 16th July 2008 and signed on its

behalf by :

KUOK Hoi Sang
NBE
Director

BE

The notes on pages 58 to 156 are integral parts of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEEREPX

For the year ended 31st March 2008 BE S FNE=ZA=Z+-HLFE

Equity
attributable
to equity
holders of Minority
the Company interests Total equity
TLRRE PHMBE
BEREARERR b3 Lo ¥ ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETRT ERTL AR T T
At 1st April 2006 R-RTA¥MA—B 2,720,794 266,897 2,987,691
Exchange difference on translation of ~ BEHHA QG-
operations of overseas subsidiaries, B ) R EE
associates and jointly controlled TROEBMRELY
entities [EHZ8 68,633 7,117 75,750
Change in fair value of EENRE 2
available-for-sale investments RAESH 4,768 - 4,768
Share of property revaluation of PR o) =k N
an associate MEERE 15,821 - 15,821
Total income recognised directly in equity HIERIEXRBR 2 MW AR 89,222 7117 96,339
Prafit for the year EHHH 317.869 23,328 341,197
Total recognised income for the year FEOEZEWALE 407,091 30,445 437,536
Dividends paid E 178 {139,291) - {139,291}
Dividends paid to minority shareholders B {1 F L8R REL - {5,989) {5,989}
Acquisition of additional interests WEMEBRE 2
in subsidiaries HoMER - (9,076) {9,076)
Contribution by minority BiER 2 7 MR E
shareholders of a subsidiary 2 A - 44,646 44,646
Dilution of interest in a subsidiary REBAFEREZ2EE 4,727 (4.727) -
At 31st March 2007 R_BEALEZA=Z+—E 2,993,321 322,196 3,315,517
Exchange difference on translation of  BEFSHIEE D A) -
operations of overseas subsidiaries, BEHOFIREREHSR
associates and jointly controlled MBEMEE L
entities EHEE 180,824 4,803 185,627
Change in fair value of CTHMtMIREZ
available-for-sale investments LR ERS 36,344 - 36,344
Total income recognised directly in equity BLE R R WA LH 217,168 4,803 221,971
Profit for the year FH T 230,747 68,412 299,159
Total recognised income for the year FHOCERBUAGR 447,915 73,215 521,130
Dividends paid BETRE 8 (128,148) - (128,148)
Dividends paid to mingrity shareholders 24 P BB TAR & - (7,886) {7.886)
Acquisition of a subsidiary i B — ) [ B 42 ©) - 7,428 7,428
Placement of shares of a subsidiary A2t — At B 2 B) 2 AR in
(note 36(b)) (F1 ¥ 36(b)) - 92,046 92,046
Dilution of interest in a subsidiary RMHBoRERZHE
(note 36(b)) {Fi{ # 36(b)) 13,566 {13,566) -
Acquisition of additional interests WRAMEDF 2 RMEH
in subsidiaries {note 36(c)) (BT ¥ 36(c)) (2,330) {30,574) (32,904}
Premiurm on acquisition of YEREI R 2 TS
further interest of g g
subsidiaries {note 36{d)) (Bt 8 36(d)) (2177) 2177 -
At 315t March 2008 BR-RBNF=ZARA=+—8 3,322,147 445,036 3,767,183

The notes on pages 58 to 156 are integral parts of these consolidaied

financial statements.

FSSAFIS6HZMENLEFEEHERR MR
B

ALEREREHFRAOA
_ETNEFH




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GEBRETREK

For the year ended 31st March 2008 BE —_FFNE=A=Z+—-H L FE

2008 2007
—SRNE —RRLE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bit % BEFR BBTIT

Cash generated from operations ERET RS 50 595,457 550,125
Interest paid 2 e {99,191) (103,005)
Profits tax and Mainland China income iax paid BE#NABH LS BAMEE (66,286) (56,709)
Profits tax refund MEHEXK 7,507 10,848
Net cash inflow from operating REEEEB RS

activities BRA 437,487 401,259
Investing activities RARK
Interest received 2IFR 16,420 14,263
Dividends received from associates BRI zRE 4,750 2,500
Purchase of property, plant and equipment HEDE - BEMREH (112,231) (157,102)
Purchase of investment property BEREDRE (7,799) -
Purchase of prepaid lease payments BERCNEARE - (699)
Deposits paid for property development TP EAmE

projects in Mainland China BRBEBEZIS (372,534) -
Expenditure on other intangible assets THHEMERAEE (3,780) (11,606)
Dividends received from listed investments rhiHEzBEIRA 11,079 9,260
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEVE BEEROEBR

plant and equipment, and prepaid miFHEERE

lease payments T {8 3R 32,110 37,575
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties SR B M EFISRIE 3,807 -
Proceeds on dispasal of other intangible assets M 5 5 4b 18 7 & #E FF 18 508 929 2,812
Proceeds from disposal of jointly controlled 5 26 B 12 T 2%

entities Fri% 38 - 45,706
Payments to acguire additional WREHT B 2 S| oM g

interests in subsidiaries 2R (32,904) {10,248)
Investments in associates FEBR2RA (9.621) {80,599)
Net cash inflow from acquisition of 4Rl e BN i 4

a subsidiary ZHREFRA 8,587 -
Net {advances to)receipts from MEEEAT (FiEz HXR)

associates W EY 2 BRI (1,933) 24,032
Net receipts from/(advances to) to jointly ) 2 R O 2 U 2 R RN

controlled entities (FrteEz B3 44,992 (98,141)
Purchase of available-for-sale investments AT EENIEA (74,736) (62,881}
Net cash outflow from XEREXEEZ

investing activities RE&BRH {492,864) (285,128)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow before MEnEmz2RE®

financing activities (R WA (55.377} 116,131
Financing activities MEER
Dividends paid BiRE {128,148) (139,291)
Dividends paid to minority EEHBLT L HER

shareholders of subsidiaries 2R (7.,886) {5,989)
Drawdown of bank and other loans REBFERREMER 3,206,039 1,337,177
Repayment of bank and other loans MBERTERREGLER (2,683,686) (1,672,336)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits WL/ (BMEEREARSR 17,228 (9,549)
Issuance of convertible bonds BT R H - 384,085
Proceeds from placement of EE-FHMBosziH

shares of a subsidiary iR E | 92,046 44,646
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from REOREEZE-Re P

financing activities TAS (Fd) 495,593 (61,257}
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Annual Report 2008




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
GEeBRsRB®E

For the year ended 31st March 2008 B E_—_FRNF=ZHA=+—-B L FE

2008 2007
—REBNE —RFLF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Fif i BETR BYTT
Increase in cash and cash ReERSER:EMN
equivalents 440,216 54,874
Cash and cash equivalents RENZBEER
at beginning of the year HERRE 697,081 620,294
Effect of changes in foreign Expn @
exchange rates 44,900 21,913
Cash and cash equivalents REBZHESR
at end of the year FERE 1,182,197 697,087
Analysis of balances of cash and RERERAREIN
cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash HVITEFLEBEE 30 1,191,145 722,998
Bank overdrafts RITEX 33 (2,671) (2,412}
Pledged deposits BHEFATFX (6,.277) (23,505}
1,182,197 697,081

The notes on pages 58 to 156 are integral parts of these consalidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R R M

(a}
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Chevalier International Holdings timited (the “Company”}is a public
listed company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability. The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are Cancn's Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM12,
Bermuda and 22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre, 8 Wang
Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong respectively. The Company has
its shares listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while
the activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 51 to
the financial statements.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar, which
is the same as the functional currency of the Company. These
financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 16th July 2008.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The ¢onsolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”). The consolidated financial statements have hbeen
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of investment properties, available-for-sale investments,
financial assets and financial liabilities {including derivative
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of consolidated financizl statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements,
are disclosed in note 4.

(a)
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Bl A Canon's Court, 22 Victoria Street,
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BIRE SRR o

(a)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation {continued}

In current year, the Group has applied the following new standard,
amendment and interpretations (“new HKFRSs"} issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants {(*HKICPA"), which
are effective for the Group's financial year beginning 1st April 2007
and relevant to the Group's operations.

HKAS 1 {Amendment)

TEGENE 1SR (1E5T)

HKFRS 7

BEMBERSENETR

HK{IFRIC) = Int 8

HE (RS HFESREZE ) RESHLNR
HK(FRIC) — Int &

(a)

BEABTHEME @

MM ER R

REFE - FEHAERDEESHILEHNR
M2 THEARE FEREZHTERN &
SRR ((HEEHBRSEL]) R
ETHFNE—BRBZAREMBRFEELE
Mo

Capital Disclosures
BEXREE
Financial Instruments: Disclosures
ERIE-BE

Scope of HKFRS 2
BEEVBERSENSE2R AR

Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

ER (ARFEERREERY) —REEW REHETAZEFIME
HK(IFRIC) - Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment
FE (ERVMEESRRESZEY) —RESZ 108 hHEAE IS RS RIEE

HK(IFRIC) - Int 11
TR (BARMEERRELZRE) —2EFE IR

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how
the results and financial position for the current or prior accounting
periods have been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior
period adjustrment has been required.

The following standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards have been published and are mandatory and relevant for
the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1st April
2008 or later periods, but the Group has not early adopted them.

- HKAS 1 (Revised), “Presentation of Financial Statements”
(effactive from 1st January 2009). HKAS 1 {Revised) requires
all owner changes in equity to be presented in a statement
of changes in equity. All comprehensive income is presented
in one statement of comprehensive inceme or in two
statements (a separate income statement and a statement of
comprehensive income). It requires presenting a statement of
financial position as at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period in a complete set of financial statements
when there are retrospective adjustments or reclassification
adjustments. However, it does not change the recognition,
measurement or disclosure of specific transactions and other
events required by other HKFRSs. The Group will apply HKAS
1 {Revised) from 1st April 2009,

HKFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions
SEMBREENER - SHREFRDORS

ERBLHEEMB RS LS RERTE
HEBRRMTEXNERAZEBELRUBRRE
BEE2RAALSHREAZE -Bit 54
LA ARER AR
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EIRP R
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
{a) Basis of preparation (continued)

HKAS 23 (Revised), “Borrowing Costs” (effective from 1st
January 2009). The amendment requires an entity to capitalise
borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a gualifying asset (one that
takes a substantial peried of time to get ready for use or
sale) as part of the cost of that asset. The option of
immediately expensing those borrowing costs will be removed.
The Group will apply HKAS 23 (Revised) from 1st April 2009.
The amendment has no material impact on the Group's
accounting policies as the Group's existing accounting policy
on berrowing costs complies with the amended requirements.

HKAS 27 (Revised), “Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements” (effaective from 1st July 2009). The amendment
requires non-controlling interests (i.e. minority interests) to
be presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from the equity of the
owners of the parent. Total comprehensive income must be
attributed to the owners of the parent and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. Changes in a parent's
ownership interest in a subsidiary that de¢ not result in the
loss of control are accounted for within equity. When cantrol
of a subsidiary is lost, the assets and liabilities and related
equity components of the former subsidiary are derecognised.
Any gain or loss is recognised in the income statement. Any
investment retained in the former subsidiary is measured at
its fair value at the date when control is lost. The Group will
apply HKAS 27 (Revised) from 1st April 2010.

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Amendments, “Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liguidation” (effective
from 1st January 2009). The amendment requires some
puttable financial instruments and some financial instruments
that impose on the entity an obligation to deliver to another
party a pro rata share of the net assets of the entity only on
liquidation to be classified as equity. The Group will apply
HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Amendments from 1st April 2009, but
it is not expected to have any impact on the Group’s financial
statermnents.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(a} Basis of preparation {continued)

HKFRS 2 Amendment, “Share-based Payment Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations” (effective from 1st lanuary
2009). The amendment clarifies the definition of “vesting
conditions” and specifies the accounting treatment of
"cancellations” by the counterparty to a share-based payment
arrangement. Vesting conditions are sesvice conditions (which
require a counterparty to complete a specified period of
service) and performance conditions {which require a specified
period of service and specified performance targets {o be
met) only. All "non-vesting conditions” and vesting conditions
that are market conditions shall be taken into account when
estimating the fair value of the equity instruments granted.
All cancellations are accounted for as an acceleration of
vesting and the amount that would otherwise have been
recognised over the remainder of the vesting period is
recognised immediately. The Group will apply HKFRS 2
Amendment from 1st April 2009, but it is not expected to
have any impact on the Group's accounts.

HKFRS 3 (Revised), “Business Combination”, {effective from
ist July 2009). The amendment may bring more transactions
into acquisition accounting as combinations by contract alone
and combinations of mutual entities are brought into the
scope of the standard and the definition of a business has
been amended slightly. It now states that the elements are
“capable of being conducted” rather than *are conducted
and managed”. It requires considerations {(including contingent
cansideration), each identifiable asset and liability to be
measured at its acquisition-date fair value, except leases and
insurance contracts, reacquired right, indemnification assets
as well as some assets and liabilities required to be measured
in accordance with other HKFRSs. They are income tax
expenses, employee benefits, share-based payment and non-
current assets held for sale and discontinued operations. Any
non-controlling interest in an acquiree is measured either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets. The Group will
apply HKFRS 3 (Revised) from st April 2010.
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2

{a)

(b)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

- HKFRS 8, “Operating Segments” {effective from 1st January
2009). HKERS 8 replaces HKAS 14, The new standard requires
a 'management approach’, under which segment information
is presented on the same hasis as that used for internal
reporting purposes. The Group will apply HKFRS 8 from 1st
April 2008, The expected impact is still being assessed in
detail by management, but it appears that the manner in
which the segments are reported will not change significantly.

- HK({IFRIC) - Int 13, “Customer Loyalty Programmes” {effective
from 1st July 2008). HK(IFRIC) - Int 13 clarifies that where
goods or services are sold together with a customer loyalty
incentive {for examgple, loyalty points or free products), the
arrangement is a multiple-element arrangement and the
consideration receivable from the customer is allocated
between the components of the arrangernent using fair values.
The Group will apply HK({IFRIC)-Int 13 from 1st April 2008.
The interpretation has no material impact cn the Group's
accounting paolicies as the Group's existing accounting policy
complies with the amended requirements.

The following interpretations to existing standards have been
published and are mandatery for the Group’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 1st Aprii 2008 or later pericds but are not
relevant for the Group's operations.

- HK(IFRIC) — Int 12, "Service Concession Arrangements”
(effective from 1st July 2008).

- HK(IFRIC) — Int 14, "HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit
Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction®
(effective from 1 January 2008).

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31st
March.

Subsidiaries are all entities {including special purpose entities) over
which the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating polities generally accompanying a shareholding of more
than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another
entity.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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(b)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation {continued}

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date that control ceases.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with those
used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets are presented separately from
the Group’s equity therein. Minority interests in the net assets consist
of the amount of those interests at the date of the original business
combination and the minority's share of changes in equity since
the date of the combination. Losses applicable to the minority in
excess of the minority's interest in the subsidiary's equity are
allocated against the interests of the Group except to the extent
that the minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an
additional investment to cover the losses.

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with minority as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. For purchases from
minority interests, the difference between any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets
of the subsidiary is deducted from equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to minority interests are also recorded in equity.

In the Company's balance sheet, the interests in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAESHHEBEG®
POLICIES (continued)

(c) Goodwill/discount on acquisitions (c) WiBEREFE

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary, an associate or a
jointly controlled entity, representing the excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the relevant
subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled entity at the daie of
acquisition, is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is
presented separately in the balance sheet, Capitalised goodwill
arising on an acquisition of an associate or a jointly controlled
entity is included in the cost of the investment of the relevant
associate or jointly controlled entity.

Separately recognised goodwill is tested for impairment annually or
more frequently if there is indicaticn that goodwill might be
impaired. Goedwill on acquisitions of associates is included in
investments in respective associates and jointly controlled entity
and is tested for impairment as part of the overall balance. For the
purposes of impairment testing, separately recognised goodwill
arising from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units ("CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A CGU
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goedwill arising en an acquisition in a financial year,
the CGQU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying amount of
the unit, the impairment loss is allacated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then 1o the
other assets of the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in the income statement. An impairment loss
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled
entity, the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included
in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary,
an associate or a jointly controlled entity represents the excess of
the net fair value of an acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of the business combination and
is recognised immediately in the income statement,

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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{c)

(d)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES {(continued)

Goodwill/discount on acquisitions (continued)

Contingent liabilities of an acquiree are recognised at the date of
the acquisition if the fair value of the contingent liabilities can be
measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are initially measured at
fair value at the date of acguisition. At subsequent balance sheet
date, such contingent liabilities are measured at the higher of the
amount that would be recognised in accordance with Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets” and the amount initiatly recognised less
cumulative amortisation, if appropriate

Interests in associates

The resulis and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these financial statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, interests in associates are carried in the
consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition
changes in the Group's share of the profit or loss ang of changes in
equity of the associate, less any identified impairment loss. When
the Group‘s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in that associate (which includes any leng-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Grougp's net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that
associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liahilities of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is
recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying
amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment as part
of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in the income statement.

Where a Group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
unrealised profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in the relevant associate, except to the extent that
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case, the full amount of losses is recognised.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (consinired)

(e) Joint ventures
Jointly controlled assets
When a Group entity undertakes its activities under joint venture
arrangements directly, constituted as jointly controlled assets, the
Group’s share of the jointly controlled assets and share of any
liabilities incurred jointly with other venturers are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements and classified according to their
natures. Liabilities and expenses incurred directly in respect of
interests in jointly controlled assets are accounted for on an accrual
basis.

Income from the sale or use of the Group’s share of the output of
the jointly controlled assets, together with its share of any expenses
incurred, are recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to/from the Group.

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a
separate entity in which venturers have joint control over the
economic activity of the entity are referred to as jointly controlled
entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity methed, interests
in jointly controlled entities are carried in the consolidated balance
sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group's
share of the profit or loss and of changes in equity of the jaintly
controlled entities, less any identified impairment loss. When the
Group's share of losses of a jointly controlled entity eguals or exceeds
its interest in that jointly controlled entity {which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the jointly controifed entity), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. An additional share of losses
is provided for and a liability is recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the jointly controlled entities recognised at the date of
acquisition is recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is included within
the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for
impairment as part of the investment. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acguisition, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Joint ventures (continued)

Jointly controfled entities (continued)

When a Group entity transacts with a jointly controlled entity of
the Group, unrealised profits or losses are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interest in the relevant jointly controlled entity, except
to the extent that unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case, the full amount
of losses is recognised.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the balance
sheet when a Group entity becomes a party o the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction cosis that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition, Transaction costs direcily
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
the income statement.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
{lows from the assets expire ar, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantizlly ali the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recaognised directly in equity is recognised in the
income statement.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid or payable is recognised
in income statement,
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(f} Financial instruments (continued)
(i}  Fihancial assets
The Group's financial assets are classified into either financial
assets at fair value through profit and loss, loans and
receivables or available-for-sale investments. All reqular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade daie basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace. The accounting
policies adopted in respect of each category of financial assets
are set out below:

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has two
subcategories, including financial assets held for trading and
those designated at fair value through prefit or loss on initial
recognition. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised directly in the income statement in the period in
which they arise.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition, leans and receivables (including debtors,
amounts due from associates and jointly controlled entities
and bank balances} are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses. An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate. Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
when an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recoegnised, subject to a restriction that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recegnised.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments {continued)

(i)

Financial assets {continued)

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as any of the other
categories set out above. At each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
assets are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are
recognised in equity, until the financial asset is disposed of
or is determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in equity is removed from
equity and recognised in the income statement. Any
impairment losses on available-for-sale investments are
recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses on
available-for-sale equity invesiments wili not be reversed
through the income statement in subsequent periods. For
available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the recognition of the impairment losses.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active markei and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked
ta and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instruments, they are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognitien. An impairment loss is recognised in the
income statement when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired. The amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the carrying amount of
the asset and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment losses will not be
reversed in subsequent periods.

EXFEHBEREE (9

MIETR ()
(i) MEBIEE)
A ENRE

AR EAFITERE - HBET
SrlemnRESRAESAERE
Bl(EMREN) -RENERREEH
B aHENERAAESE-2AE
ZEHRRAIEREE BERPAR
SR T A A RE B BEREE
EnwEz AHBARTESaRFEE
WHIE - WRMBERAER-TTHENR
ErAAEEGREREERAER-T
HEnnBkAREZRESEETER
iEmmBE-HRE 2 2R EEARE
BREzERSEmMEN JHEEN
FRAREZRESREERIAERRE
[g] e

RELBITRETIERE MASAMER
A RHBRAITERAKETEREN
ToRB 2T HENNBEIRE -RE
REREzERBERERFEREN
EBHAIBESEHE A BERSEN
AERE R EERARERERL B
EFARELEECRERERAUME
BEZETMSEBETRMGARER
SRRz REMZEHE-AHRE
EIEET g R E R RE -

ETERREEFROA
ZTTNEFE

69



Nates to the Financial Statements

Bt % 4R R B A

)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES t(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

{ii)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a Group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interast in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are classified into
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
other financial liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in
respect of financial liabilities and equity instrumenis are set
out below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financiat liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
financial liabilities held for trading on initial recognition. At
each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised
directly in the income statement in the peried in which they
arise.

Other financial ifabilities

Other financial iiabilities including bank and other borrowings,
creditors and bills payable, amounts due to associates
amounts due to subsidiaries and other payable are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Eguity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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(9)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(ifi} Derivatives
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage
its exposure against currency risk and interest rate risk. Such
derivatives are measured at fair value. Changes in {air values
of such derivatives are recognised directly in the income
statement.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
separated from the relevant host contracts and deemed as
held-for-trading when the economic characteristics and risks
of the embedded derivatives are not closely related to those
of the host contracts, and the combined contracis are not
measured at fair value through profit or loss. In all other
circumstances, derivatives embedded are not separated and
are accounted for together with the host contracts in
accordance with appropriate standards. Where the Group
needs to separate an embedded derivative but is unable to
measure the embedded derivative, the entire combined
contracts are treated as held-for-trading.

(iv) Convertible bonds

The Group's convertible bonds issued with embedded
derivative features are split into liability and derivative
components, The initial carrying amount of the liability
component is the residual amount after separating the
embedded derivative. The liability component is subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The derivative component is remeasured at each
balance sheet date and any gains or losses arising from change
in the fair value are recognised in the income statement.

Investment properties

Property thai is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or hoth, and that is not occupied by the Group, is
classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating leases
and buildings held under finance leases. Land held under operating
leases are classified and accounted for as investment property when
the rest of the definition of investment property is met. The
operating lease is accounted for as if it were a finance lease.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties {continued}

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recegnition, investment property is
carried at fair value. Fair value is determined by professional
valuation conducted as at the balance sheet date. Changes in fair
value are recognised in the income statement,

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the carrying amount of the
asset only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of
the asset can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed in the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement as
part of the other gain net.

If an investment progerty becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. If an item
of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property
because its use has changed, any difference resulting between the
carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of
transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation of property, plant
and equipment under HKAS 16. However, ii a fair value gain reverses
a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the income
statement.

Property, plant and equipment

(i)  Properties
Hotel properties, cold storage warehouses and other properties
held {or own use are stated at cost less accumutated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided on the cost of the buildings on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 20 to
S0 years or the remaining terms of the respective leases,
whichever is the shorter after considering the residual value.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(ii) Plant and equipment
Plant and eguipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation is provided
ta write off the cost of the plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis after taking
into account their estimated residual value at the following
rates per annum;

2
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Annual charge

SENME
Pipe rehabilitation equipment FEEWRE 16.67%
Others Hid 10% - 20%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.

The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an
asset is determined as the difference between the sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the income statement.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments represent upfront premium paid for land
cost. Prepaid lease payments are charged to income statement over
the term of relevant land leases on a straight-line basis.

Other intangible assets

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired separately and
from business combinations are recognised at cost and at fair value
respectively. After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. Amortisation of intangible assets are charged
10 income statementi within adminisirative expenses. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset
are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
income statement when the asset is derecognised.
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{1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Other intangible assets {continued)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
expenditure is recognised only if it is anticipated that the
development costs incurred on a clearly-defined project will be
recovered through future commercial activity. The resultant asset is
amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful life, and carried at
cost less accumutated amortisation and impairment losses.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged tc the income statement in
the period in which it is incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable
value is determined on the basis of anticipated sales proceeds in
the ordinary course of business less applicable selling expenses.

Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage
of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet date, as
measured by the proportion that the value of work carried out
during the year.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated
reliably, coniract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract
costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. Contract costs
are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.
When it is probable that contract costs will exceed total contract
revenue, the expected loss is recognised as expense immediately.

When contract ¢osts incurred 1o date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is shown as
an amount due from customers far contract waork. For contracts
where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is shown as
an amount due to customers for contract work. Amounts received
before the relaied work is performed are included in the balance
sheet, as a liability, as creditors. Amounts billed for work performed
but not yet paid by the customer are included in the balance sheet
under debtors.
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| (p)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.
Bank overdrafis are shown as a separate current liability in the
balance sheet.

Pledged bank deposits are not included in cash and cash equivalents.

Unearned insurance premiums

Unearned insurance premiums represent the estimated portion of
the premiums written which relate to periods of insurance
subsequent to the balance sheet date and are deferred to
subsequent accounting periods. Unearned premiums are computed
on the basis of net premiums written for all classes of insurance.
Net premium written represents gross premiums received or
receivable after deducting reinsurance premiums.

Insurance claim

Claims paid and cutstanding comprise claims paid, claims reported
but not yet paid as at the balance sheet date and an estimate of
claims incurred but not reported which is calculated with reference
to foreseeable events, past experiences and trends.

Revenue recognition

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue is recognised using the percentage of completion
method, measured by reference to the value of work carried out
during the period. When the outcome of a contract cannot be
estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.

Income from sale of properties is recognised on the execution of a
binding sales agreement or the completion of properties, whichever
is later.

Income fram sale of goods is recognised when goods are delivered
and title to the goods has passed to the customers. Revenue is
arrived at after deduction of any sales returns and discount.

Inceme from rendering of services is recognised at the time when
services are rendered. Receipts in advance of provision of services
are accounted for as deferred income.

Premiums for direct insurance business and reinsurance are
recognised as income over the terms of insurance policy period.
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(q)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
referance to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset’s
net carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group's
rights to receive payment have been established.

Rental income under cperating leases is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the terms of the respective leases.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as
receivables at the amount of the Group's net investment in the
leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so
as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the income
statement on a straight-tine basis over the term of the relevant
lease. initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the
Group at their fair values at the inception of the lease or, if lower,
at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the bhalance sheet
as an obligation under finance lease. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease
obligation s¢ as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged
directly to the income statement, unless they are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the Group's
general policy on barrowing costs as stated in the policy below.

Rentals payables under operating leases are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease, Benefits received and receivables as an incentive to enter
into an operaling lease are recognised as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

76 Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008

(p)

(q)

EXREHBRERE @

Wiz BERR ()
REMBEEEZ R R A TS R 6 b f AR
EREFSZAHEEMZ ARAMEEDH
U ERMNENRMEEAEREREZ B A E
BUHRAEFRRRSURAZLER.

REAMGRERADREARDYRDRAZE
BB AR

BEREZHSRANREISBHEEESR
TAFEHAE

R
BRERATH LR ERELZKBH
RiERSaBBRiEA RESURAAHM
AEA-MEHGAEGHERAERIERE-

TEMEHBA

BEHATERABAZFEDAGRTHEE
BHRA FEARSNBEREAZ ZRA-BA
FRUANSREZGHAM LRBIRE
REAMANEFRAZEEE AEHESR-

BERAEELHGWARTHMETZER
HMERZERERRAEZ SRR THEEH
HESZEREERAGARBARTEE
ZEEEN TAEBANESEERAY
4 a

TEBARBA

REEETHAZAERBAEREELA
B HHREHE2RE(KRNEXBR)ERE
TREZEE-HEMAZBERAGERER
AEMARERNAD-HRANATERER
FHEIGREBERHZMSR RARSHEN
RETZHE-REBRERFAUBEA
BALAERRAWM BEXREREHAE
MEERGIS EHEAT WREZREZ
EREEA-REBRBRAR(RTHRE) -

BERA s EMEENARBAFRAZRE
BEFARSRA-BARTEEHEED WRE
WrmRMER EEREZRESNAERLSE
ERAZWME-




Notes to the Financial Statements

S0t 75 i 3% B

(r)

{s)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of gualifying asset, are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the income statement
in the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual Group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of
that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency
(i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in the
income statement in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of
the Group’s net investment in a foreign operation, in which case,
such exchange differences are recognised in equity in the
consolidated financial statements. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-menetary items carried at fair value are
included in the income statement for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity,
in which cases, the exchange components of that gain or loss are
also recognised direcily in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign cperations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Company at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their
income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised as a separate component of equity, the exchange
fluctuation reserve. Such exchange differences are recognised in
the income statement in the period in which the foreign operation
is disposed of.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1st
April 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign
cperation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
balance sheet date. Exchange differencas arising are recognised in
the exchange fluctuation reserve.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged as an expense as
they fall due.

Taxation
Income tax expense represenis the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the income statement
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes income statement
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit,
and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
exient that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, and interests in
associates and jointly controlled entities, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future,
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Taxation {continued}

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all
or part of the assel 10 be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the income
statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited
directly 1o equity, in which case the deferred tax is alse dealt with
in equity.

Impairment

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet been
available for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
¢circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs 1o sell and value in use, For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-sale
investments, investments at fair value through profit or loss, debtors,
creditors, amount due from/to related companies, bills payable,
bank balances, borrowings, convertible bonds and financial
derivatives. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

2
{u)

(w)

BEASHBERE @

BLIR (#)
BEREEEZREENRELETAEITR
FoAEAST A RAERERN AL 2 S
ARG EERER AR

BEESHEARRENANISHAERMN
2 A B 55 o B T B I 40 M 3 bR g At
AMFERA-IEEELAR T HEERERD
i EE ARTZRE EHFERAT BE
HEARRBRAPEE-

# {8
ERUAFERERREEACAERARE
MAEFETRENA-NREHRNRNE
EERETHHNEERENARRERD
H-AREgRD R EEEARERR -G&
HEEMEABAEEARTURMNE 25
ERAHESR-EENTRRAERELS
AEARHERAENFEEAEANMEMRE
THRSE-HEALETHEH AESRA
EUEBHRERENE B (HEES
B SN RSN EERNE L RAEE R
ARSRHARNAS THDMRE.

MBREBREEERREE

SHEENTEMBTIAGETLENRA R
BEHREAAEBIMNGE FHWRN BN
ORE PR/ AR D RRE - BHRE R
TEF B TREGRHRTEMBIRX
FUBTEZABIRAMMETRR-ZF
BHIAZHMEBUNEEAZFRARZE
BNHFIWT-EEBERRERRETRES:
RERERARBETEEZEE-

ATRARBARDE
ZUSNERH

79



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 85 3R R BT &

3  FINAN

CIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors
{a} Market risk

{i)

(it}

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from bank deposits,
investments in debt securities, bank borrowings, bills
payable and convertible bonds. Majority of the Group's
bank borrowings carry interest at flowing rate and exposes
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s
bank deposits, investments in debt securities and
convertible bonds carried interest at fixed rate and expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The management
monitors interest rate exposure and manages significant
interest rate exposure by using financial instruments such
as interest rate swap. However, these instruments are not
qualified for hedge accounting.

At the balance sheet dates, if interest rates had been
increased/decreased by every percentage point and all other
variables were held constant, the post-tax profit of the
Group for the year ended 31st March 2008 would
decreasefincrease by approximately HK$12,510,000 (2007:
HK$11,552,000), This is mainly attribute 1o the Group's
exposure to interest rates on its variable rate bank balances
and bank borrowings.

Foreign currency risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising frem various currency
exposures. Foreign exchange risk arises when the Group
entity’'s recognised assets and liabilities are denominated
in a currency that is not the Group entity's functional
currency.

The Group's financial assets that are exposed to foreign
exchange risk mainly comprise of instruments in debts
and equity securities and trade debtors arising from sales
made to overseas customers. The Group's financial liabilities
that are exposed to foreign exchange risk mainly arise
from Euro denominated borrowings and accounts payable
balances arising from overseas purchases. It is the Group’s
policies to ensure that the net exposure is kept to an
acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies at
spot rates where necessary to address short-term
imbalances. The management will continue 1o monitor
foreign exchange exposure and will consider managing
significant foreign currency exposure by using financial
instruments such as foreign currency forward contracts
should the needs arise.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 3 MERBEEEERBEEG®
AND POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MERARBREER (4
(a) Market risk {continued) (a) WmHARE(E)
(i) Foreign currency risk {continued) (iiy 0% B 1% ()
Major financial instruments under foreign currencies (other Ao mEHERRE 2 NMEGHET
than the functional currencies of the Group entities) that A(FoRssETRIiEES)
are exposed to foreign exchange risk are mainly FEUARSEEZEL(IER])F
denominated in Renaminbi and United States dollar {“US H-AEEEARRANENNEZ &
dollar"). The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the REERTRAENEZE R ZGE
Company’s foreign currency denominated financial assets BT
| and financial fiabilities at the balance sheet dates are as
| follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE B
2008 2007 2008 2007
The Group wmm by 3 FA S8 +F —ERBNE TRELF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T il g ST BeT T BT
Us dollar (T 1,334,244 1,270,253 (9,445) -
Renminbi ARM 120,110 103,870 - -
Euro Bl 99,120 64,795 ({153,430} {(91,109)
Singapore dollar N T 27,138 7.529 - -
Japanese yen = 17,672 174,578 - -
GBP B 16,632 2,220 - -
Canadian dollar mERT 12,225 13,498 - -
Australian dollar pi: 1,571 8,912 - -
Others Eitb 22,796 14,163 - -
Assets Liabilities
| HE afE
| 2008 2007 2008 2007
| The Company P N —ReNE ZRBALF —BBNF —FE+F
: HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i BT BT BEFA EET T
' US dollar % 554,247 547,577 - -
| Euro BL 394,046 44,681 (99,370) (30,247}
| Singapore dollar ¥ T 22,344 2,239 - -
Japanase yen AT 12,673 11,352 - -
Canadian dollar mEXRT 223,090 196,314 - -
Other Hih 23,825 14,042 - -

E+EEAAFRLE
ZDRNEFE
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
{a) Market risk (continued)
(if) Foreign currency risk {continued)

The following table details the Group’s and the Company's
sensitivity 10 every percentage point increase and decrease
in the functional currency of corresponding Group entities
against the above foreign currency. The sensitivity analysis
includes only cutstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year
end for every percentage point increase in foreign currency
rates. A positive number below indicates an increase in

31

BEEAMEEAEEREBE @

MEREERE ()
(a} HHEE(F
(i) 50 5 e ()

TEHFINSEEME XA ZAMY
RERHA NS TS MmsRS
—HESHEZEBE-GBREANFR
BENMIEZEEEHE BERF
FiEERSRN - BasRcRE
TLERE - EHRBEL ENEEA
TEEERTBI Y TR
—BEESHIBERATERMEE

profit/investment revaluation reserve where the above BibAEARTEM-.
foreign currency strengthens every percentage point against
the functional currency of corresponding Group entities,
2008 2007
The Group FHEm ZE®NE —EELE
HK$'000 HK$'000
HY TR EBT T
Increase in profit i 1% 0 12,088 14,041
Increase in investment revaluation EEEMEGEN
reserve 2,750 1,624
2008 2007
The Company PN =8B NE —EF+F
HKS$ 000 HK$°000
BT BT
Increase in profit 2 ) 38 0 9,486 6,991
Increase in investment revaluation BEEGRHEHEN
reserve 1,822 868

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 3 BBREBEBEEEREE
AND POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors {continued) 31 MEEBREE GG
(a} Market risk {continued) {a) w@aEEE)
(i) Price risk GiEBRaE

The Group and the Company are exposed to equity
securities price risk because invesiments held by the Group
and the Company are classified on the consolidated
balance sheet and the balance sheet either as available-
for-sale or at fair value through profit or loss.

If the prices of the respective quoted equity instruments
of the Group had been increased/decreased by every
percentage point and all other variables were held
constant:

- the posi-tax profit for the year ended 31st March 2008
would increase/decrease by HK$2,301,000 {2007:
HK$1,181,000) as a result of the changes in fair value
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;

- investment revaluation reserve would increase/decrease
by HK$2,926,000 (2007: HK$1,808,000) for the Group
as a result of the changes in fair value of available-for-
sale investments.

If the prices of the respeciive quoted equity instruments
of the Company had been increased/decreased by every
percentage point and all other variables were held
constant:

— the post-tax prefit for the year ended 31st March 2008
would increase/decrease by HK$1,181,000 (2007:
HK3$1,646,000) as a result of the changes in fair value
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;

- investment revaluation reserve would increase/decrease
by HK$1,998,0600 {2007: HK$1,052,000) for the
Company as a result of the changes in fair value of
available-for-sale investments.

FEMEF LR EERAFESER
B LB RAEB RS AR AR
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3.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Principal financial assets consist of debtors, other receivables,
deposits, amounts due from associates and jointly controlled
entities, amounts due from subsidiaries, available-for-sale
investments, investments at fair value through profit or loss,
derivative financial instruments and bank balances and cash.
The Group's maximum expaosure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as at
the balance sheet dates in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the balance sheet.

The Group has established different credit policies for
customers in each of its core businesses. The average credit
period granted to irade debtors was 60 days. The Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual debt at
each balance sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

Ameounts due from related companies, including group
companies, are continuously monitored by assessing the credit
quality of the counterparty, taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other factors, Where necessary,
impairment loss is made for estimated irrecoverable amounts.
As at 31st March 2008, the amounts due from related
companies are fully performing.

Investments, derivative financial instruments, interests
receivable and cash transactions are limited to financial
institutions or investment counterparties with high credit
quality. The Group centrels its credit risk to non-performance
by its counterparties threugh monitoring their credit rating
and setting approved counterparty credit limits that are
regularly reviewed, the Group does not expect any significant
counterparty risk. Moreover, credit limits are set for individua!
counterparties and periodic reviews are conducted to ensure
that the limits are strictly followed,

The Group does not have a significant exposure to any
individual debtors or counterparties.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2008
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3.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

{c)

3 BREREREEEZERBEEM@
3.1 BM¥RAREFEE

Liquidity risk (c) BeREBRAR
The Group aims to maintain prudent liquidity risk management FEFBAOHBEAZECRDEBE
and flexibility in funding by keeping sufficient cash BREBFBRHSERSE THKE
equivalents, readily realisable marketable securities and to Bz tHESECARBEEBEPHEE
have committed short-term and medium-term credit lines HEURBASEIK-
available.
The Directors of the Company believe that the Group has ZonEEfE FRBEBRRTHEL
abtained sufficient committed and uncommitted general credit ERERFRAF -REERE BUE
facilities from banks for working capital purposes. HEEEE2H-
The Group's liguidity position is monitored closely by the FRNEEEEYERREEZAHE
management of the Company. The following table details sRA-THRENTEESRARZSE
the Group's contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. HAMBR-RIEDBEESRBE A HE
The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted fFAZEFAMMNSRABIRNTR
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date BemBHs-2BEeENIEESE
on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes ZHRERE-
both interest and principal cash flows.
Total
undiscounted
Less than 1-2 2-5 More than cash
1 year years years 5 years flows
#FRRE
The Group 31, ol -ER¥ -EIF HA%% ZRat
HKS$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS"000
AMTR BETR LS BETR ARTR
2008 3 J18:
Bank borrawings frER 761,553 429,832 1,063,740 120,631 2,375,756
Convertible bonds PR - 452,400 - - 452,400
Amounts due to associates EHEERRER 5926 - - - 5,926
Creditors, bills payable REiHRN-AHRER
and daposit FARS 1,321,692 - - - 1,321,692
Derivalive financial instruments ~ §T4HMBIA
inet settled) (Bah) 3,590 {6,802} {15,808) {21,100) {41,120}
Derivative financial instruments  FTABBTA
{settled gross) (AgRH)
- outflow - 262,314 - - - 262,374
- inflow —-mA (190,865) - - {1,769} {192,634)
BEiEBEEHRLE

—ERNEFE
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT QOBJECTIVES 3 FRRREEEEREEm
AND POLICIES (continued)

3.1 financial risk factors (continued) 31 HHEEREE
(¢c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) B&rmmgi
Total
undiscounted
Less than 1-2 2-5 More than cash
1 year years years 5 years flows
®REE
The Graup EER PR-F —ZWE ZERE HRLE ERAH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
ARTT AETR ARTRL A%t BETR
2007 —ERLE
Bank barrowings BiEH 854,655 184,382 648,372 151,876 1,839,285
Convertible bonds TRRES - - 452,400 - 452,400
Amounts due to associates EREERAER 3,429 - - - 3,429
Creditors, bil's payable EES BRESR
and deposit FAES 1,178,146 - - - 1,178,146
Derivative financial instruments S4B IE
{net settled) (FiH) 10,849 6,112 9,525 2,565 29,151
Derivative financial instruments  fiERBIAR
{settled gross) (BEEE}
- outflow - 316,137 - - - 316,137
- inflow -k (350,034) - - (1,621) {351,655)
Total
Less than 1.2 15 More than  undiscounted
1 year Years years 5 years cash flows
AR
The Company X428 HR-% -ERE ZERE AAnE HAAH
HK$'000 HK$°000 HKS$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
E®TR 2¥Tx BT ANTR BANTR
2008 it 3 Y%
Bank borsowings BOEXR 161,752 331,10 1,135,503 16,364 1,644,720
Convertible bonds EREE - 500,850 - - 500,850
Creditars, bills payable AHERBREER
and deposits FARS 7322 - - - 130
Derivative financial instruments 158K TA
(ne settled) (3EH) 3,590 (6,802} (16,808) {21,100) {41,120)
Desivative financial instruments S4BT A
{settled gross) (mEEn)
- outflow - 94,282 - - - 94,282
- inflow -GA {20,836) - - {1,769) {22,605)

86 Chevalier Internaticnal Holdings Limited
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

HEEAEERBEZRHE @

Bt s ELBY (R & (1)
() HERDEE S

Total
Less than 1-2 25 Mare than undiscounted
| year Years years 5 years cash flows
FRES
The Company RAH PR-E -ZRE CERE #AnT HEAH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 KK$'000 HK$'000
BETRL BETR AETT AETR BRETR
2007 ZPtE
Bank barrowings BiTER 497,325 .06 553,206 60,060 1,132,747
Convertible bands BE-13iE) - - 500,850 - 500,850
Creditors, bills payable AHER-AHESR
and deposits FARZ 9,019 - - - 9,019
Derivative financial instruments S4B TA
{net settled) (BeH) 10,949 6,112 4,525 2,565 29,151
Derivative financial instruments ~ §T£MBIR
{settled gross) (ABET)
- otflow -Ek 74,038 - - - 74,038
- inflow —mA (107.496) - - (1,623) {109,117)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern while maximising
the returns for shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance.

The Group regularly and closely reviews and manages its capital
structure to provide cost efficient funding to the Group and its
companies and make adjustments to the capital structure in light
of changes of economic conditions or corporate needs.

The capital structure of the Group consists of total equity.

The Group’s net debt to equity ratio is expressed as a percentage
of net debt (comprise total debt less bank balances and cash and
structured deposits) over tatal equity. Total debt comprises bank
borrowings, other loans and liability component of convertible
bonds.

3.2 BXERER
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BrEh RAREASSRZEKRBELH
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3.2

(i)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital risk management (continued)

The net debt to eqguity ratio at 31st March 2008 and 2007 was as
follows:

3

3.2

BHEMEEEERBEE @

EXEBREE (4
—EENFER-STLE=A=+ AF
AR EE R BT

2008 2007
—RRNnF ZERLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI R BETT
Total debt WIE R 2,618,179 2,027,465
Bank balances and cash and BRITEEZERREEEBEER
structured deposits (1,318,496) (1,110,645)
Net debt BER 1,299,683 916,820
Total equity g 3,767,183 3,315,517
Net debt to equity ratio HEHEERLR 34.5% 27.7%
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4., BREFETTRAE
JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based HHERHEBEETEREEMESRE P H
on historical experience and other factors, including expectatians BRERERTHEASEMHAREEMHM
of future events that are bealieved to be reasonable under the A i AT
circumstances.
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. FEEARKELGAARBER-MEZ B
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal HEERBLCHBMNTEERER -A858
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have ABEBEEEELRBEZREER T —@H
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying BEERAFEAABZGIT REREM
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next finandial year are T
discussed below:
Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangible (i) BHEEBERSERERE

assets

The Group tests annually whether gocdwill and intangible assets
have suffered any impairment in accordance with accounting policies
stated in note 2 to the financial statements. The recoverable
amounts of CGUs have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations or its fair value less cost to sell, whichever is appropriate.
The value-in-use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the CGUs and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Estimated useful life of intangible assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful life and
consequently related amortisation rate (if any) for its intangible
assets (other than goodwill). These estimates are based on the
historical experience of the actual useful life of intangible assets of
similar nature and functions. Actual economic life may vary from
estimated useful life. Periodic review could resuft in a change in
amortisable life and consequently increase or decrease in
amortisation expenses in future periods,

Income taxes

At 31st March 2008, a deferred tax asset of HK$43,419,000 in
relation to unused tax losses has been recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases where the actual
future profits generated are more or less than expected, additional
deferred tax assets or material reversal of deferred tax assets may
arise, which would be recognised in the income statement for the
period in which such an addition or a reversal takes place.

Also, the Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Construction contract revenue recognition

According to the accounting policies of construction contracts as
stated in note 2{), the Group uses the percentage of completion
method to determine the appropriate revenues to be recognised in
a given period. The stage of completion is measured by on total
amount of work done certified by customers over total estimated
contract sum.

Upon applying the percentage of completion method, the Group
needs to estimate the gross profit margin of each construction
contract, which was determined based on the estimated total
construction contract costs and total construction contract sum,
including variation orders and claims. If the actual gross profit margin
of consiruction contract differs from the management’s estimates,
the construction contract revenue io be recognised within the next
year will need to be adjusted accordingly.

4
(i)

{iii)

(iv)

Rt REE @
BRAE (FRUM GHIEREN

ZREEEBAEBRIMI  BRAENMT
fEEraEAF ML R EAMBEE (I
By -AFHHNBREARUMERIEL &
MAEZRRAGEAFHZBRERMEL.
NE@EFEWo AT EAFHARL
AEERRE I EATREEHEUME W
EmnRESREARCBEEN-

ECE

KRoFFNFZA=+ B HADRAHES
HEMZREHEEEHEK43419,000LE
RAREGSAER RS EE - ERLBURAR
LRE - FTRSEALEHRABMLER
WENZENE-ETR L EEZREANS
R CHER SHREEHBEE B MK
HARE RSN BEHRAR RS &
MR-

B ENEAYHSEATZEER ZAHG
B-EBREZRFAEHZBEE SERAEL
BAAW-EEFABAERF HHAEXBR
HESHB AR RIS HBEE R R E
AR AEETEARIMBUR - EMEZHE
HHEEEER 2 T E-HASFEZSER
BERAEVMARZEETRH ZFE0NY
BREBOTHEAZFERRECHRARE

REASHRMER
BEEE2NMRERSHNERBE &
RUUETIEALEREEEREENRA
RIEECEMTFERNBEIAMRGS
Bkt R AL R

BREARIBSLZER ARETERERH
BRESHERFESHERR(RERMITE
REM BHEERESHNENE-NRR
BAENZTRENREEEENRGAEZER
MTEERORZENEEGHRAEGETIE
B -

Xii@ﬁ%&%?ﬂﬁmﬂﬁl—
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4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4
JUDGEMENTS (continued)
(v) Determination of insurance liabilities (v}

The Group’s insurance ltabilities mainly comprise provision for
outsianding claims. The Group determines these estimates on the
basis of historical information, actuarial analyses, financing modeling
and other analytical techniques. The estimated insurance liabilities
is affected by assessed net Joss ratio. Assessed net loss ratio for
2008 and 2007 were 103% and 114% respectively. Differences
resulting from reassessment of insurance liabilities are recognised
in subsequent financial statements. The directars continually review
the estimates and make adjustments as necessary, but actual results
could differ significantly from what is envisioned when these
estimates are made.

(vi) Estimate of fair value of investment properties (vi)
The valuation of investment properties held directly by the Group is
made on the basis of the “Market Value” adopied by the Hong
Kang Institute of Surveyors (“HKIS”). It is performed in accordance
with the HKIS Valuation Standards on Properties published by HKIS.
The valuation is reviewed annually by qualified valuers by considering
the information from a variety of sources including (i} current prices
in an active market for properties of different nature, condition or
location, adjusted to reflect those differences; (i) recent prices of
similar properties in less active market, with adjustments to reflect
any changes in econcemic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at these parties; and (i) rental income
derived from existing tenancies with due provision for reversionary
income potential based on market conditions existing at the balance

B8 8 = 5T b 5T B BT (o

BERBAM

FREsRBRAM TEEERARINRRY
A IEBREATER BUST-UHERX
EEMOMEMEMEGE AT REARYE
EEBRLECAERDEE —FINFR
CERLF RS ERI0B%R114% - &
HitE o RRAMKBRREZMBERER-
ERETETEEHS CEHRENELRE.
ERREREEREHEASAET SRS
B nle

A REYHRZAE
FEEEREREZRADRZEENRES
AREWoeRRAITEIZS THEEEDY
HE2gR Mz ERERRMR G DREESE
AEfT-4 AR EHASFEMEE -BED
B2ESERF AN BIE:()TREH K
ARMB 7 MEREETE 2 RITMNE BiE
HRABKREMGHER: RVALDERET
ERMIB T BAAE BELRBEURRE &
EAER AR ZEBRLRE-

sheet date,
5 REVENUE 5 Wi
2008 2007
—ReNFE ZRELEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR EB T
Revenue represents amount received FEATEREREN 2
and receivable from:
Construction and installation contracts BERLTETRE 3,170,812 2,369,135
Sale of computer, business machines B EmhAKEREanEE
and others 1,043,613 . 1,069,632
Provision of maintenance and REHEEADEEERK
property management 624,952 576,733
Food and beverages Ei3 299,034 250,076
Warehouse operations EEYE 117,257 100,070
Sale of properties (35 85,082 50,080
Hotel operations BEEE 66,005 59,730
Interest income from investments EEREZNERA 53,894 72,614
Leasing of properties MERE 52,904 45,450
Insurance premium % B #% 40,129 47,509
Dividend incorme from listed securities EHEHFZARBWA 11,079 9,260
Leasing of equipment REEE 3,917 4,948

An analysis of the Group’s revenue by business and geographical
segment is set out in note 40.

Chevalier Internaticnal Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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BE R SRR B A

OTHER (EXPENSE)/INCOME, NET

Hip (X)) /WA FE

2008 2007
—BeNE —EELE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BET T
(Loss)/gain on investments at fair value  RIBHEROAEREMBERZ
through profit or loss (note) (M548) /3t (RIED) (87,723} 90,179
(LossMgain on derivative financial HEMBIAZ (5H)
instrumenis /R (24,332) 22,222
Interest from amounis due from i glediR TN I ¥
associates el A 165 735
Interest from amounts due from HEBSHEREEYRZ
jointly controlled entities Fl WA 1,257 2,900
Commission income HEWA 9,183 4,429
(101,450) 120,465
Note: ik

The net unrealised and realised loss on investments at fair value through
profit or loss for the year ended 31st March 2008 are HK$71,830,000 (2007:
net gain of HK$56,665,000) and HK$15,893,000 (2007: net gain of
HK$33,514,000) respectively, which include net unrealised gain of
HK$7,533,000 (2007: loss of HK$19,694,000) and realised loss of
HK$2,398,000 {(2007: gain of HK$485,000) on debt securities and structured
deposits designated as financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
upon initiation recognition.

BE-_RRNEZA=Z+—ALLFE -HRERED
AERBZSRAZARRARCERGRIHRSIA
HEET71,830000L (2T F - WHEFR/AEN
56,665,0007C) B % 15,893,000 (Z BB +F:
Y25 B R 33,514,000 ) - E DB IR (B
HERBUHER) BIFRBERNEEOABEREEZM
IMEES RBRREENT 533000{ —FFLF: 5
138 % 19,694,000) R 2 B3R E18E % 2,389,000
(ZF T+ 5 IRHHB%485,000) -

HIHBREmAeR S

CRSNFEEH
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B 75 SRR MY R

7 OTHER GAINS, NET 7 HftWs FE
2008 2007
—EBNE ZERLE
HK$'000 HK$°000
YT BETT
Increase in fair value of REYEZLAE
investment properties {note) 1840 (HYE) 387,263 53,362
Fair value gain on derivative component FIHBREHFTET AR S 2
of convertible bonds oA EE M 23,912 26,489
Net loss on disposal of hERENEY
investmant property BHFHE (653) -
Gain on disposal of jointly HEXRZESREY
controlled entities U 25 - 19,714
Exchange gain, net FEH Wi 82E 9,373 9,712
Impairment loss on available-for-sale FHENEEZ
investments HEEBE (835) (1,473)
Impairment loss on geodwill ez EEER - (5,000)
Impairment lass cn property, g BERESEEZ
plant and equipment RAEEE (7.415) {13,754)
Write back of/(provision for) impairment FEFEEREZ HEERBERD
loss on prepaid lease payments { i {8 5 1) 2,637 {1,628)
Impairment loss on intangible asset BEEEZRERER - {(2,157)
Tax incentive BRI R 1,768 -
Bad debt recovered B 4% [ 5 05 7.770 7,636
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property, HERGAERE WL
plant and equipment and BB REHEz (BRA)
prepaid lease payments SR (1,438) 7,406
422,382 100,307
Note: B &L
During the year, the Group has transferred Chevalier Place of Shanghai FA-REECHIRERES#E%167,769,0007TH -
Chonmain Real Estate Development Co Ltd. with carrying value of BEHERNERRABRLCAFAZ LB IAMEE
HK$167,769,000 fram properties for sale to investment properties. Valuation PEERERANE- MR DESEZHENE
gain arising from year end revaluation in relation to the properties transferred 27 iAW SR E S N 275,901,0007T ¢
has led to an increase in fair value of HK$275,901,000,
8 FINANCE COSTS, NET 8 MBER BEH
2008 2007
—BRNE —FFLF
HK$ 000 HK$'000
BYTR BT
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable HEBRAFAZRITER
within five years and overdrafts BREZ A 90,511 96,391
Interest on convertible bends whelly HRARTEA A RRESEZFE
repayable within five years 35,532 25,965
126,043 122,356
Less: Interest from bank deposits RCOIRTTERAMBRA {16,420) {14,263)
109,623 108,093

92 Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

9

Profit hefore taxation has been arrived
at after charging the following:

Depreciation on property,

plant and equipment
Less: Amount capitalised to contract work

Auditors’ remuneration

Staff costs (note a)

Less; Amount capitalised to contract work

Operating lease payments in respect of

leasing of
— Premises”
- Equipment

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
Amortisation of intangible assets
Write down of properties for sale 1o net

realisable value

Write down of inventories to net

realisable value

and crediting the following:

Gross rental income of HK$52,904,000
(2007: HK$45,450,000) from properties
less direct operating expenses (noie b)

Income from leasing of equipment

Write back of properties for sale to net

realisable value

# Included in operating tease payments in respect of leasing of premises

FRBLATA R S M T XIEA -

M BEREHE
2 é

B-RBESHIERE

ERaME

A TR (HiEa)

HoBEEH TIERE

BRERITHEHA 288

HARA
_g%l
—

EARE N R R

HitmAEAERH

FERRBEES
R FEE

BEFHETRER
B

EHATHRE:

B Sk A E ¥ 52,904,0007T

(ZR T+ % :#%45,450,0007T)

FERER W (D)

EHEEEA

REHEREREER

2AFE

are contingent rental of HK$8,623,000 (2007: HK$7,476,000).

PR M

BR %1 B8 A
2008 2007
—RRNEF —EFRLF
HKS$ 000 HK$'000
BET R AETT
89,333 86,576
{177) {147)
89,156 86,429
10,236 8,674
964,739 827,420
(93,337) (58,032)
871,402 769,388
107,852 85,743
22,690 14,027
130,542 99,770
11,783 11,743
3,986 3,603
- 10,058
1,315 3,674
37,775 28,626
3,917 4,948

11,831 -

# HANRFHGARRMEERACAAA

EAENEE23000L (R LE
#57,476,0005T) «

REiBREEARAR |
—RONEEH
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B ISR M
9 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 9 BREBAEF
Notes: B i

10

{a} Dezails of directors’ emoluments included in staff costs are disclosed
in note 42.

Included in staff costs are an amount of HK$3,613,000 (2007
HK$1,198,000) in respect of redundancy payments made to staff and
an amount of HK$39,003,000 (2007: HK$37,303,000) in respect of
centributions to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes, net
of forfeited contributions.

(a)

HEMSODEEEN I RAMNERME
A2 e

BEIRTEEE&FEAGLIAnaHdss
3,613,000 (- F T F % 1,198,000
T B B IS Y ER D 6 R AR R R AT O B
B 39,003,000 (ZFRLE B
37,303,0007L) =

{b}  Included in rental income is an amount of HK$1,960,000 (2007: {b) CEERAREHAERRZAGR
HK$1,294,000} less outgoings of HK$1,126,000 (2007: HK$1,186,000) %1,960,0007x (ZFF /8% 1,294,000
from jointly controlled assets. FYREHEN1,126000C (ZFRHEF B
#1,186,0007T )
Included in gross rental income is an amount of HK$21,410,000 (2007; BHESBARREABRADEZRALS
HK$19,995,000) derived from invesiment properties. 21,410,0005C (BBt F 8% 19,995,000
i) .
INCOME TAX EXPENSES 10 FIEH X H
2008 2007
3 - 1€ 3 —ERtF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT
Current tax SEREE
Hong Kong HHE 32,686 35,096
Overseas s 20,479 18,947
Over-pravision in grior years BTFEBEER (13.036) -
40,129 54,043
Deferred tax B E 72,682 12,810
112,811 66,853

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 17.5% (2007:
17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits after ofisetting losses
brought forward of each individual company. Taxation on overseas
profit has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for
the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in
which the business operates.

Details of deferred taxation are disclosed in note 38.

Chevalier international Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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B FIATIE 56 8 AR R R 17.5% (=%
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B i% iR R A
10 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued) 10 FREHR X WE
The tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the profit before FEEHBESEARAREANERAZER
taxation per consolidated income statement as follows: Bl FUSISR O T -
2008 2007
Z|¥9NE —FELEF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
BYTa BETT
Profit before taxation B 5 A i F 411,970 408,050
Adjust for: HE:
Share of results of associates SR DR 2 EiA (27,258) (5,263)
Share of results of jointly cantrolled DEHRBERIREZ
entities Fi {2,909) 3,159

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of
17.5% (2007: 17.5%)

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries

operating in other jurisdictions
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses
Tax effect of non-taxable income
Tax effect of current year's tax losses
not recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses and
other deductible temporary difference

not previously recognised
Qver-provision in prior years
Others

Tax charge for the year

381,803 405,946

i FRREI7.5%

(BT LE175%) HHOEE 66,816 71,041
EETETZEEEMHB LA

AERTERRE 25,273 169
TAEMEEMBRESR 50,908 34,579
BEAEBHRANBAES (42,457) {46,298)
ATHIZGEFEE RS

58 60,755 33,144
FRUNATHERRBERERE

HibrfiNp M RN

BREEeE (35.448) {26,099)
BEFEHBHEEH (13,036) -
Efl - 317
EFEEBE 112,811 66,853

EtEmamaRan

RGNTFRE
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B3 SR R Mt a
11 DIVIDENDS 11 BRE
2008 2007
—ReNE ZFFREF
HK$'000 HK$000
BT BT
Interim dividend of HK$0.16 Bk A R %o 16T
{2007: HK$0.20} per share, paid (ZF2+F - FE¥0.20T) 44,573 55,716
Final dividend of HK$0.29 FE R R ERE AN 0.29T
{2007. HK$0.30) per share, proposed (=22 +F . 5HE¥030m) 80,789 83,575
125,362 139,291

A final dividend of HK$0.29 per share, totalling HK$80,78%,00C,
has been proposed by the Directors of the Company and is subject
to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general
meeting. This proposed dividend has not been dealt with as dividend
payable as at 31st March 2008.

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a} Basic
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

FLOREFHEBEERUB S TREY
0.2970 & B 80,789,000 AN B M
ZREAFAY LBREE - RERRSR
—RENE=ZRAZ+-REREAEGRS
B

12 BERERN

(a) BX
FRETBMOBERACRRESE AEE
BB HUAFEECRT SRR ZNMETHE
Etii-

2008 2007
—ReNE ZEE+E
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT

Profit attributable to equity holders of EoaBERE ARG
the Company B 230,747 317,869
Number of Number of
shares shares
Riawe 87 % B
‘000 'C00
TR TR

Weighted average number of ERITERARZ MmE

ordinary shares in issue 58 278,582 278,582
Basic earnings per share (HK$} EREXERM GEE) 0.83 1.14

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annua! Report 2008
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B 7% ¥R R B 2

12
{b)

13

EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company's dilutive
potential ordinary shares are derived from the convertible bonds.
The convertible bonds are assumed to have been converted into
ordinary shares, and the net profit is adjusted to eliminate the
interest expense less the tax effect. The number of shares calculated
as below is compared with the number of shares that would have
been issued assuming the exercise of the convertible bonds.

12
(b)

BEREZR )

ne
SRAYEND RS NEAEEREY
B ERTEER T MET R R
HE- AT BEESERER LA TR
B A5 5 o T 4 B 1T 36 7Y R AR U N A SRR
T FIBIE PR LUE N S M RBIA S
M ETRAHEZBRANERBRIAR
HEBGES I ERARMRAEE.

2008 2007
—ReNnE ZEELE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR YT
Prafit atiributable to equity holders of oA RIERE ARG
the Company 2R 230,747 317,869
Interest on convertible bonds Al AR il % 2 L2 35,532 25,965
Fair value gain on derivative component B[R MH# 6T T AR 2
of convertible bonds oA EE (23,912) (26,489)

Profit used to determine diluted earnings BEFHEMRBARN >

per share i F) 242,367 = 317345
Number of Number of
shares shares
R®E Rin&E
‘000 '000
T8 ThR
Weighted average number of ERTEARSZ MiE
ordinary shares in issue FHR 278,582 278,582
Adjustments for convertible bonds JomEEFRE 37,873 26,656
Waighted average number of ordinary REEERBERT 2
shares for diluted earnings per share TR METAY 316,455 305,238
Diluted earnings per share {HK$) CRBAER (GER) 0.77 1.04
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF 13 AL RBRERFTAREEIR

THE COMPANY

Loss attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company is HK$33,935,000 (2007:
profit HK$60,947,000).

KAl AEGREEPES
33935000 (—BEELF:-HBHEBEY
60,947,0005C) MR AR A ISHRERPRIE -

ATOREEFRDT
—RRNAEEHR
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1
B R EE i
; |
14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14 REYE |
The Group FEM |
|
Total
2
HK$'000
AET R
At 1st April 2006 KRBT REMA—H 469,693
Exchange realignment EREE 9,034
Transfer to property, plant and equipment BB EH% - HE RRE (8,445)
Increase in fair value BB 53,362
At 3151 March 2007 BR-FRRE+F=/=+-—8 523,644
Exchange realignment E H A% 35,430
Addition RE 7,799
Dispasal e (4,460)
Transfer from properties for sale BERTEDE 167,769
Increase in fair value o EEMm 387,263
At 31st March 2008 R-ZBZENF=A=Z+-H 1,117,445

The Group’s interests in investment properties at their carrying values

REEEAE AREE 2 BEDEERIND

are analysed as follows: T
2008 2007
=y 3 1E: 2 —BFLEF
HKS$'000 HK3$'000
A%t BT T
In Hong Kong i
Leases between 1C to 50 years FHMITER+F2ZELG 438,688 333,779
Outside Hong Kong BRI
Leases between 10 to 50 years FH-+-EATE2EY 528,637 60,328
Freehold KAEME 150,120 129,537
1,117,445 523,644

Notes: fi gk :

{8)  The fair values of the Group's investment properties in Hong Kong, (a) TREBURFLE-TEABREHZIEED
Mainland China and overseas as at 315t March 2008 have been arrived BR-FENF-ZAZ+—-BZRAEIS
at on the basis of valuation carried out on that date by Knight Frank BT AREYETEMRSRAEHTE
Petty Limited or DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, who are BoA®BRRETAROGNREAETLMH
independens qualified professional valuers and have appropriate HARE ZSUEFIERREESEAR X
qualifications and experience in the valuation of properties in the EEREMEEETYERENSR -ZH
relevant locations. The valuation, which conforms to the Valuation APATESHINSaRAGNREE
Standards on Properties of the HKIS, was arrived at by reference 1o HAFELBHBLRAEDENTEH &
markel evidence of transaction prices for similar properties or BARNEZ RS FRENRTE.
calculated on the net income allowing for reversionary potential.

(b) Investment properties in Hong Kong with a carrying value of by ERERZEBORREFEESEGARE

HK$21,000,000 (2007: HK$18,667,000) represent the Group's share
of interest in jointly controlled assets,

{c) Charges were created on the investment properties with a total
carrying value of HK$420,458,000 (2007: HK$278,824,000} for the
purpose of securing banking facilities granted to the Group.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008

I PR 2 1 e - L OR T (8 A5 %5 21,000,0005T
(ZBF £ #%18,667,0007T) ¢

% 42 1 5 B % 420,458,000 ( — BB+
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 W% -HMERER
The Group AW
Furniture,
fixtures,
Plant, other
Cold Other  machinery  eguipment
storage Hotel properties and  and motor
warehouse properties for own use  equipment vehicles Total
HR-ER-
Hit ME- Hitt: &
EFRER AEHR BERYE HERRH ERE ag
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EXTT b BT T BYTR g AETR
Cost 293
At 1st April 2008 R-RTAE
MA—H 61,000 141,073 381,014 201,080 259,585 1,043,752
Exchange realignment Eiyg - (276) 5,766 14,432 12,134 32,056
Additions WA - - 2,066 93,986 61,050 157,102
Disposals ok - (896) - {23,203) (21,023) {45,122}
Reclassification/transfers ~ EHi 9,/ B - - 3,958 2} 2 3,958
At 31st March 2007 BR_BB+E
ZRA=+—A8 61,000 139,901 392,804 286,293 311,748 1,191,746
Exchange realignment HHAE - 15,139 24,809 32,292 16,258 88,498
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEHE 2 A) - - - 45 658 703
Additions RE - 634 3 63,019 48,247 112,231
Disposals HE - - (630) (35.596) (10,464} (46,690)
Reclassification/transfers EH S8,/ @8 - - - (424) 424 -
AL 31st March 2008 BR-FINF
=ZHA=+—H 61,000 155,674 417,314 345,629 366,871 1,346,488
Accumulated deprecation RIRITHE HE
| and impairment
| At st April 2006 RIBRAE
A—8 9,187 26,227 74,280 81,888 174,792 366,375
Exchange realignment ERER - 1,435 620 6,178 3,265 11,498
Charge for the year rEESE 2,205 2,910 8,662 36,761 36.008 86,576
Impairment loss AEER - 6,972 - 6,782 - 13,754
Disposals el - - - (561) {14,392) {14,953)
Reclassificationftransfers EH 7@/ B8 - - (671} (2) 2 (671)
At 31st March 2007 BZFT+EF
—A=+—8 11,392 37,544 82,921 131,047 149,675 462,579
Exchange realignment EALAE - 4,339 5,996 12,144 10,516 32,995
Charge for the year TEEHE 2,205 2,801 9,391 38,766 36,170 89,333
Impairment loss HEAGH - 2,915 - - 4,500 7.415
Disposals i - - (185) (10,286) (4,801} (15,272)
Reclassificationstransfers BEH 2R/ B8 - - - (297) 297 -
At 315t March 2008 BR-ZENF
=A=+—H 13,597 47,599 98,123 171,374 246,357 577,050
Carrying value WMEE
At 31st March 2008 RZTENF
=ZR=+—18 47,403 108,075 319,193 174,255 120,514 769,438
At 315t March 2007 i o
=R=+—-E 49,608 102,357 309,883 155,246 112,073 729,167

Er-BRM%EEE LS 99
—RRNFEHE
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

16

15 ME-BERRE @

Notes: fit it

{a)  The carrying value of properties comprises: (ay DRERzZERESE:

2008 2007

= 2 JI%-3 —ZR¥PtEF

HK$'000 HK$°000

A TR AR TT

Freehold Jand and buildings thereon KAEBERERALZEF 156,788 142,811
Buildings on leasehold fand HAatw - sEgF 317,881 319,037
474,669 461,848

(b}  Charges were created on the property, plant and equipment with a (by IREBERE%E193,692,0000(=FF+
total carrying value of HK$193,692,000 (2007: HK$252,385,000) for % 252,385,0005T) 2 R -BRE RRE
the purpose of securing banking facifities granted to the Group. BHEER EAEREETER ZIGR:

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 16. HMFRBEE

The Group g

2008 2007
ZRENE —FRLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR EET T
Depaosits and development cost MEBRABZFLERS
for a property development project RFEEH R
(note a) (Fiexa) 252,198 -
Deposits for a joint venture property CETCEDERRIFHIES
development projeci (note b} (Bt & b) 125,286 4,950
Others Hih 25,703 19,498
403,187 24,448

Notes: B & :

(a} A non-wholiy-owned subsidiary of the Group is engaged in a () FEB-MFEZAMACELRERPRA
residential redevelopment project for redeveloping certain shanty areas WEHAERGTRARERESTHEE Y
at Fan lia Dian, Lu Yuan District of Changchun City, Jilin Province, EEERHA MBI RERHEY 2t
Mainland China. The subsidiary is the approved developer for the HEERE-RN_BFNEZR=1+—8 ®E
development project. As at 31st March 2008, deposits paid and costs ERAGEZEHEHESRMELZFRA
incurred for the relocation of existing residence amounted to S OB B H W 182,306,000 RAEW
HK$182,306,000 and HK$69,892,000 respectively. 69,892,0007T °

(b}  Pursuant t0 a development agreement dated 27th June 2006, the by BEBHLE-_FFAERA-tTHEHZEE

Group provided an advance of RMB112,870,000 {equivalent to
approximately HK$125,286,000) to an independent third party {the
"IV Partner”) for the development of a property development project
in Hefei, Anhui Province, Mainland China (the "Joint Development
Project”). It is intended that the joint Development Project will be
undertaken by a joint venture company (the "Joint Venture Company”)
to be established in the Mainland China between the Group and the
JV Partner, and the Group’s initial injection of capital will be satisfied
by the conversion of the existing advance. The fermation of the Jaint
Venlure Company is subject to the approval of relevant authorities in
the Mainland China,

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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MR
17 PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 17 E{SHEEFRE
The Group RN
2008 2007
—BBNF —FRRLF
HK$'000 HK$'C00
EMTR BT
The prepaid lease HAEAFARE:
payments comprise:
Leasehold land in Hong Kong: REBZERI -
Leases of over 50 years FHERARE+TFZ2HAN 97,967 99,966
Leases of between 20 ta 50 years HE#H-_+ERTFZHED 317,464 326,881
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong: REELMMNO T cHA M-
Leases of over 50 years FHBBRTFZEN 18,113 16,671
Leases of between 20 to SO years FH-_TERA+FZHER 12,428 11,667
Leases of less than 20 years EHIHR-tFZ2AB 46 54
446,018 455,239
The movements in the prepaid lease payments during the year are EREMAATASSHZ SN T:
analysed as follows:
2008 2007
—REBNE —FBtF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
E® TR BT
At 1st April ®MmE-—H 455,239 461,708
Exchange realignment EHE 2,055 2,387
Additions AR - 699
Disposal o 2 (2,130) -
Amortisation # 5 {11,783} (11,743)
Written back of/(provision for) HESEER
impairment loss S(BE) 2,637 (1,628)
Transfers from investment properties guaEEmsE - 3,816
At 31st March B=A=+—8B 446,018 455,239
Charges were created on the prepaid lease payments with a total OB TH R {8 A8 % 148,778,000 ( —BF + F:
carrying value of HK$148,778,000 (2007: HK$311,456,000) for the HE%311,456,000m) 7 B EEREC (FIE
purpose of securing banking facilities granted to the Group. B UEARTREERTEEZRR:.
18 GOODWILL 18 BEH
The Group W
2008 2007
—8SNF —FFLF
HKS 000 HK$°000
BETR ok
At 1st April ®mA—H 210,330 212,540
Price adjustment for subsidiary acquired EFHRBEHBLEZ
in prior year MisAE - 1,618
Acquisition of additional interest W B Bt BS O T HE ShHE %
in subsidiaries - 1,172
Impairment loss (note) FERE (ME) - (5,000}
At 31st March R=ZA=+—8 210,330 210,330
Note: BiaE:
Details of impairment assessment of goodwill are disclosed in note 41. EE ARSI R T B
ntmmmmameﬂ'?b1
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19 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Chevalier International Holdings Limited

19 HMBEEE

The Group 75
Cold
Roads and storage and
drainage Other public
and patentsand  Trademark bonded
Development  waterworks license  of branded  warehouse
expenditure license rights coffee shops licenses Other Total
B b f
ABRAE HABHA RRUTDE B2
RERA IERE ERR ZBR REARA b:1:| ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A¥TR #ETR ENTR #ETR #8TR BYETR BETI
Cost .3
At 1st April 2006 RZTF E¥EE-A 8018 26,534 10,480 108,000 3,000 1,500 157,924
Exchange realignment EHRE%E 1,907 - 92 - - - 2,699
Additions g 97 - 11,509 - - - 11,606
Disposal he - - (2,812) - - - (2.812)
Transier b - - - - - 2,369 2,169
At 31st March 2007 R-RRLE
ZA=zt+-8 10,014 26,534 19,869 108,000 3,000 4,009 171,586
Exchange realignment BHER 1,695 - 4,024 - - - 5,719
Additions i1 - - 3,780 - - - 3,780
Disposal o - - {3,257 - - - (3,257
Reclassification ENDE 1,016 - {1,016) - - - -
Al 315t March 2008 R-ZENE
ZA=+-8H 12,725 26,534 23,500 108,000 3,000 4069 177,828
Accumulated amortisation ~ RHR@AR
and impairment 41
At st Aprit 2006 BR-%¥ E0A-18 1521 - 635 - 1,237 1,567 5,966
Exchange realignment BRRE 725 - m - - - 996
Charge for the year AEFYH 1,047 - 1,923 - 300 33 3,603
Impaifment loss AEHA - 2,157 - - - - 2,157
At 3151 March 2007 R-FELE
zA=+-H 4,299 2,157 2829 - 1,537 1,900 12,722
Exchange realignment EXHRE 1,560 - 844 - - 1,404
Charge for the year TERIE 1,262 - 241 - 300 - 3,986
Disposal HE - - (2,328) - - - (2,328)
Reclassification EHAR 169 - (168) - - - -
At 315t March 2008 RZSSNE
=f=z+-1 7,290 2,157 3,600 - 1,837 1,900 16,784
Carrying value EEA
As at 31st March 2008 RZZIAE
ZF=+-"H 5,435 24,377 19,900 108,000 1,163 2,169 161,044
As at 31st March 2007 B-9%t%
ZA=+-H 5715 24,377 17,140 108,000 1,463 2,169 198,364

Annual Report 2008
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19

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The above intangible assets (other than roads and drainage and
waterworks license {"License”) and trademark of branded coifee
shops (“Trademark“) are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
{ollewing estimated useful lives:

Development expenditure

MERH

Other patents and licenses rights
HipFEnERBRRE

Cold storage and public bonded warehouse licenses
ABREBRLARRHESER

Others

H fih

The License and Trademark were purchased as part of business
combinations in prior years. The directors of the Company are of
the apinion that the upkeep of the License and Trademark is at
minimal cost and the Group would renew the License and Trademark
continuously. Various siudies have been performed by management
of the Group, which support that there is no foreseeable limit to
the period over which the License and Trademark are expected 10
generate net cash inflows for the Group.

The License and Trademark are considered by the management of
the Group as having an indefinite useful life and will not be
amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite upon
reassessment of its useful life annually by the management. Instead
they will be tested for impairment annually and whenever there is
an indication that it may be impaired. Particulars of the impairment
testing are disclosed in note 41.

Charges were created on the other intangible assets with a total
carrying value of HK$11,315,000 (2007: HK$8,323,000) for the
purpose of securing the banking facilities granted to the Group.

Han\B\EEE

ruEpEE (TaEEE EHRKEITE
MR ([R] ) RRBNNE > HE (S
B))BUESERTHGHTERAFEMSE
T

10 years
T

16 years
TRE

10 years
T

5 years

HEF

MEREESRRUGFEBA BRBSH
Z2—Hip-ARRHERA ERAFTRER
BIEEEY MARELEHEERFET
HEGR-*RHERFCETSRAR &F
ARLIHEBENEESHETNRELS
Benswip URTARDZES-

AETEEERAMNBEERATRRAE
AT S TARBE EEFERERA
AEAFRRFANETL HEASNERF
MERAL -BEHHBERELRTEMNE
BRI TRERN S B EE 2 AR
AR

WEEEAE%11,315000 (BB +F:
#W8,323,0000C) ZRMMBEEED EILF-
EBETHARABERSTERZHER.

ATEREEFRLA

—RRNAEFER
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

20 FRibMiB ARl 2 M s

The Company b N
2008 2007
—BBNE ZEBREE
HK$:000 HK$'000
HYFR FEMET T

Cost less impairment AR E

share listed in Hong Kong FREzL-TRG 309,536 213,266
Unlisted shares RS 944,405 1,264,725
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE W Bid B 2 RT0E 3R 231,584 242,577
Loan to a subsidiary BEZT—HMERBLA - 101,252

Market value of shares listed Rz MERH2ZME
in Hong Kong

Amounts due from subsidiaries FE 4 i B o B R 3R

Amounts due to subsidiaries FEATEE 2 AR R

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries as at 31st March
2008 are set out in note 51.

Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries under current assets and
liabilities are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand;
except for a sum of amount due from subsidiaries totaling
HK$344,598,000 (2007: 163,878,000) which are interest bearing
at prime rate of The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited. The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollar except for amount due from
subsidiaries of HK$213,359,000 (2007; HK$189,247,000}
denominated in Canadian dollar, HK$322,935,000 (2007: Nil}
denominated in Euro and due to subsidiary of HK$99,370,000 (2007:
HK$30,247,000) denominated in Euro.

104 Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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1,485,525 1,821,820

237,694 325,513

2,223,157 1,407,098

1,095,855 886,370

RIFENF=ZA=+—BETEMBLF
ZHEE - B8RS -

MiE 2B N R EEE AR REE
B -HERHBLOI RS REY
344,598, 000 ( B B+ & - # ¥
163,878,0007C) AR ER LEEURITER
SREBHEMNEZHRER-HBRR AT/
Lz 8 TS LA 78 I - R R TR 0 B8R BRR
213,359,000 (- B R L & B %
189,247,000 ) AN E K T 9 {8 - &%
322935000 (BB F ) LEENRE-"
BA B FE < B BB 2 B] R 3k 78 5 99,370,000 (=
BEF EH30,247,0000L) BB ESIE-
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

21 FiEBE AR ZER

The Group P4 |
2008 2007
—RBNE “RELE
HKS$'000 HK$'C00
BYTR s
Share of nei assets HRIEEERE 118,388 88,894
Goodwill i 5t 54,430 48,190
172,818 137,084
Amaunts due from associates {note b) FE W B 8 D E) bR AR (BidaED) 19,273 17,175
Amounts due 1o associates (note b) BE A< B 0 R bR R (B EED) 5,926 3,429
The summarised financial information of the Group’s associates is KREBELRZHBEHBENRNET:
set out below:
2008 2007
—Bgeng —BFtEE
HKS$ 000 HK$'000
BYTR BETT
Total assets MAE 486,410 377.205
Total liabilities R =Ry (205,665) (162,594)
Minority interests L EEREELS (8.334) (4.296)
272,411 210,315
Revenue U 2% 540,738 350,527
Profit for the year R F T 62,477 17,734
Notes: Fi &% :
(a) Particulars regarding the principal associates at 315t March 2008 are (a WM-FTNEZR=+-—EHSXERS|LD
set out in note 52. 2R CHEREiEs2
(b  Amounts due from/to associates are unsecured, interest free and by BMELIABEK - GHERDEEE SHBRE
repayable on demand, except for the following balances: ERMB U TESERN:
(i Amount due frem an associate of HK$7,566,000 (2007: Nil) {i) ~EBERAR _FFNFEURE
bears interest at a rate of 6.2% per annum. " 7.566,0007C (ZFFHF &) DA
HmEaks@.
(i) Amount due from an associate of HK$4,100,000 (2007: Nil} in {ii) —HBELARR _SFNFEEEE
2008 which bears interest at prime rate of Hong Kong and *4,100,000L (BB LF:8) N
Shanghai Bank Corporation Limited plus 100 basis point per FHTAEDRITABRRANZBAN
annum, FRooBE S
The carrying amounts of amounts due from/lo associates approximate BELTMY HEZEDERREZEHEMN
their respective fair values. Amounts due from/to associates are DAERAH-BEATIRE EDHAR
denominated in Renminbi except for amounts due from an associate wro|{E -t — B B0 B2 BN E.379,0007T
of HK$8,379,000 {2007: HK$57,000) and due to an associate of (ZFF-HF #%e7,000T) BRFFAL~
HK$2,623,000 (2007: Nil) are denominated in Hong Kong dollar. MBELAZEN2,623,00T (28Tt
Amounts due from associates are neither past due nor impaired. ) 7 RS EOR Ty BT R (H - PR AR B
DB DI A

REMBRBAMAR | 4,
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22 INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

22 fribERbhEzER

The Group b=
2008 2007
—8"NE “RFLE
HK$'000 HK$'000
YT BETR
Share of net assets FRiERESA 264,532 239,298
Goodwill an 213 213
264,745 239,51

Amounts due from jointly controlled FE MG KB E D RN

entities (note b) (FigEb) 240,820 259,559

The summarised financial informaticn of the jointly controlled

BASMEREMzAREHNERIMBER

entities related to the Group's interest is set out below: HEEHNH0T:
2008 2007
—®¥BNE ZRBREF
HK$'000 HK$°000
BAEMTR BETT
Current assets EAE 602,144 378,718
Non-current assets EmEVEE 134,703 115,870
Current liabilities WER (321,895) (172,521)
Non-current liabilities FEMEN A (150,420) {82,770)
264,532 239,298
Revenue 1 2% 183,541 57,387
Expenses, including taxation i (BERE) (180,632) (60,546)

Notes: i3

(a) Particulars regarding the principal jointly controlled entities at 31si
March 2008 are set out in note 53.

{b)  Amounts due from jointly controlled entities are unsecured, interest
free and repayable on demand, except for amounts due from jointly
controlled entities of HK$15,545,000 (2007: HK%$110,555,000) bears
interest at rates ranging from 110% to $15% of prevailing market
rates quoted by The People's Bank of China and the average effective
interest rate of the balances as at 31st March 2008 was 6.57% per
annum. The carrying amounts of amounts due from fointly controlled
entities approximate their respective fair values and are denominated
in Renminbi.

106
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(a) R-FRENF=RB=t+—-HEEXEHAEAZH
ERZER CRV/KESI -

(h)y HFARHLEBEREDEER 2HOLEK
EXMR - MHARARNCERKIELS
15,545,0007C (Z B R4 :110,555,000) B
hESEEMSEPRARSSHBRT
HBHENORENSHHAZME -R-T
FNEF=ZAZ+—-ReBTHEHTBREN
EH6.57% « AEE IR AR R 2 BEE
HHABOAREEE ERARYESEHE.
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23 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 23 AIHEMNRE

Available-for-sale investments as at 315t March 2008 comprise:

HRIFENFEZRAS+-RewHENRA
BiE:

The Group The Company
=M b /N
2008 2007 2008 2007
ZReNF - ok o i1 F 12 —RRLE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
HETR BEETT B¥TR BETRE
Unlisted investments, EMIER -EORE:
at fair value:
- equity securities - EEH 17.601 18,428 17,565 18,394
- private funds (note) -HAES (M) 274,961 162,373 182,219 86,825
292,562 180,801 199,784 105,219
Unlisted equity securities, FLETREES
at cost less impairment A MER B 662 1,497 - -
293,224 182,298 199,784 105,219

Available-for-sale investments are denominated in the followings

AIHEMRERKTHEE:

currencies:
The Group The Company
b=y, Z4aE
2008 2007 2008 2007
ZBRNF ZBELE —RENE TEEL+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
BETR ok v BT BB T
Us dollar ETT 230,882 141,300 143,639 65,753
Euro 5773 44,079 21,072 38,580 21,072
Hong Kong dollar pig 18,227 19,892 17,565 18,394
Others H 36 34 - -
293,224 182,268 199,784 105,219
Note: B 3L :

The fair value of the private tunds is determined based on the quoted
market prices of the underlying listed investments and fair value of the
unlisted investments, determined based con the financial models (such as
discounted cash flow model), held by the funds.

HRABGZRAEDEEEEHFEZLTRAL
TRBMRAFETRANERBENNRERL
RRAMARBORREWMET-

A+EBERERAA | .4,

—RRNAETH
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24 INVENTORIES 24 7H
The Group EM
2008 2007
—98nfF —RFPLE
HKS$'000 HK3$'000
BETR BETRT
Raw materials R 85,693 69,414
Finished goods RS 204,236 210,023
Consumable stores HEADHE 48,788 24,948
338,717 304,385
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and included in BZABAYINAHERETZEEREAE
cost of sales amounted to HK$1,028,090,000 (2007: B 1,028,090 000 (ZFELEFE:-EB%
HK$1,186,449,000). 1,186,449,0007T) »
Charges were created on the inventories with a total carrying value MR RE AE 106,782,000 (Z B L&
of HK$106,782,000 (2007: HK$94,596,000) for the purpose of AR 04,596,000 ZEWC EIER  EHE
securing banking facilities granted to the Group. FTAHERITERZHBR-
25 PROPERTIES FOR SALE 25 SEMHE
The Group M
2008 2007
ZRRNAE ZEFLE
HK$000 HK$'000
i 1. S EWTR
Unamoriised prepaid lease payments AEHENETRE
— in Hong Kong -REE 34,609 34,849
- outside Hong Kong — R EBASER 13,540 63,681
Development costs AEEE 210,796 362,629
258,945 461,159

Properties for sale include the Group's share of interest in jointly
controlled assets with an aggregate book value of HK$18,870,000
(2007: HK$19,936,000).

The cost of properties sold and included in cost of sales amounted
to HK$64,634,000 {2007: HK$43,002,000).

Charges were created on the properties for sale with a total carrying
value of HK$92,075,000 (2007: HK$109,105,000) for the purpose
of securing banking facilities granted to the Group.

Chevalier Internationak Holdings Limited
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FEDROEXEABEERARIEHEE HIE
W {H 55 18,870,000 (ZFFtF:
#:19,936,0007%) *

CHBENAFHERENFEDEREARRE
¥ E4 634000 (BB LE EH
43,002,0007T) o

CEEEHRAME%92075,000 L (ZBR L4
¥ 109,105,000) 2 HEHMECERE B
DEEFEERZRITEEZAR.
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26 DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 26 BUWERR FHEERAMNE
The Group The Company
ram EaF
2008 2007 2008 2007
—ReNngE ZBRtE —R2NE —BEtF
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI R it BETR BETT
Trade debtors H % BNk R 701,562 633,973 - -
Less: Provision for impairment & BEE & (26.897) (27,704) - -
674,665 606,269 - -
Other debtors, deposits and  HbERER - FHES

prepayments (note) B FRE (M) 584,286 426,629 18,811 6.683
Retention receivables R B IER 191,075 133,076 - -

1,450,026

Note:

Other debtors, deposits and prepayments include a loan made to
an independent third party of HK$7,780,000 (2007: HK$7,800,000),
which is unsecured, interest bearing at the U.S. Prime Rate and
repayable by four installments of which the final instaliment is
repayable on 30th April 2009.

tncluded in debtors, deposits and prepayments are the Group's share
of receivable of HKX$332,000 (2007: HK$136,000) in relation to
jointly controlled assets.

Charges were created on the debtors, deposits and prepayments
with a total carrying value of HK$53,150,000 (2007:
HK$36,932,000) for the purpose of securing banking facilities
granted to the Group.

The Group has established different credit policies for customers in
each of its core businesses. The average credit period granted to

trade debtors was 60 days.

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade debtors is as follows:

1,165,974 18,811 6,683

B

HEEER - EHESERAREAaERS
UB=AEE ZE%7,780,000n 2B (=
EF-EH#%7,800,000T) RERHEAE
ER EEREXRHRIERSMUBHE &
E—MRRER _BRFATMA=T MR

B EH FHESREMNAHSEAEERN
EHRIEH R E A 2 WA B 332,000
(ZRFLF:#%136,000T) -

B 4 (B 53,150,000 (TR E  E
#36,932,00070) 2 IR -FHIES RE
HBRBECEER AR PRERRITERZ
iR

AMEHERELEREFOMIETES
BB -BTHEATFIHEEHAARGOK

FRERZEYERzZRESTNT:

2008 2007

—RSNE —FBRtEF

HKS'000 HK$'000

BMTR BETR

0 - 60 days 0—60X 520,322 515,630
61 — 90 days 61—90% 52,799 18,763
Over 90 days #90X 101,544 71,876

674,665 606,269

ATEMRBARAR | 4,

-“SRNAETH
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26 DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

{continued)

At 31st March 2008, gross trade debtors balances totalling
HK$28,904,000 {2007: HK$30,375,000) were individually
determined to be impaired, which related to customers that were
in financial difficulties. The management assessed that only a portion
of the trade debtors balances is expected to be recovered.
Consequently, impairment loss of HK$26,897,000 {2007:
HK$27,704,000} was recognised as at 31st March 2008. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances. The movement in
the provision for impairment loss during the year is as follows:

ERER FHEE KRR
)

AZEBRNEZAZ+ B XA HBREE
FrzRUEREBESRA X BHE%28,904,000
TT{ZEE - FEE%30,375000) @R
FEEABTHE-RERB2HE AHE
ENERATESEUERES Al -B-F
BENEFE-AZt+ O BEEREEYE
26,897,0007T (Z B T+ 4 : % 27,704,000
) AEBYERESARNEIMRERR-
FR-HERGZ280T:

2008 2007
—RENE —BFEE

HK$'000 HK$°'000

BT YT
At 1st April ®REA—A 27,704 48,014
Impairment loss recognised CHEBREER 2,065 6,461
Imgairment loss written back CEEREESE {1,805) (16,735}
Uncollectable amounts written off BT @ 2 &5 (1.777) (11,133}
Exchange realignment XA 710 1,097
At 31st March W=R=+—H

The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are not considered to be
impaired are as follows:

26,897 27,704

FREBTFREZESERERZIERSN
mE:

2008 2007

g - - 1 : “RFtLF

HK$°000 HK$'000

BETR EE®TT

Neither past due nor impaired M B RE 337,064 312,049
Less than 60 days past due WH L Re0X 210,682 211,148
61 ~ 90 days past due WHEI61—90% 41,999 14,039
Over 90 days past due b TR B[S 82,913 66,362
Amount past due but not impaired CHBBERRE 335,594 261,549
672,658 603,598

Debtors balances that are neither past due nor impaired mainly
relate to individuals or companies with no history of default in the
past.

Chevalier intgrnational Holdings Limited
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26

DEBTORS, DEPQSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

{continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade debtors are denominated

26 BUIRR FHEERASAR

(|

ABEEZERIERZREEATIAY

in the following currencies: B :
2008 2007
—R9NEF _EBBtEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BY T AT
Hong Kong dollar it 322,031 303,854
Macau pataca RPN 84,117 60,382
Euro BRFE 83,037 90,494
Australian dollar BT 51,184 51,888
us dollar i 20,924 20,138
Renminbi AR% 10,060 10,804
Other currencies Hib i 103,312 68,709
674,665 606,269

The carrying amounts of the Group's debtors and deposits at 31st
March 2008 approximate their fair values.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) CUSTOMERS FOR
CONTRACT WORK

RIBBENFZAZ+—B ZREZEWE
PEFELESZEEERALCAESEE-

27 RANIRBREREFWR/ (X

$) 2 58

The Group rZ8EME
2008 2007
—BRNE SRS LEE
HK$000 HK$'000
BMTR BRI
Contracts in progress at the REBEHAZEIHRER:
balance sheet date:
Contract costs incurred EELEZEHME 3,509,791 3,836,857
Recagnised net {losses)/profits EHRF (5B /ME {44,633) 40,753
3,465,158 3,877,610
Less: Progress billings o HEE RO (3.413,317) (3,741,874)
51,741 135,736
Analysed for reporting purposes as: REHFEARSMA:
Amounts due from customers included CRERNRDEEARZ
in current assets EEEF W2 RIE 312,422 343,849
Amounts due to customers included ERERG#ARAZ
in current liabilities EREFXTZRIE {260,681) (208,113)
51,741 135,736

Advances received from customers for contract work amounted to
HK$7,488,000 (2007: HK$87,071,000) and were included in
cregitors,

HAMTIRURESAMNRAENT 488,000
R(ZETLF:#%87,071,000) EEIER

AR A

b il Bol i R eg S|
—UDNAEEH
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28 INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

28 REZRKREAREEENKRE

R=A=+—-B RESZEEAABERENR

Investments at fair value through profit or loss as at 31st March

comprise: B
The Group The Company
TN ELF
2008 2007 2008 2007
—B8NE —ERLE —gRNE —ERLE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
HBETT BETT BT T E¥TT
Listed investments: rHEE:
Held for trading HIEBEBRAZ
- debt securities —ERRE 57,483 67,817 - 7,067
- equity securities listed —FRZEW
in Hong Kong S 7R 2B 4 124,895 122,017 84,688 85,316
- eguity securities listed —Hithe 5z £
overseas A % 70,417 276,334 52,996 71,699
- exchange-traded funds - RBHEBES 8,704 - 8,704 -
258,499 466,168 146,388 164,582
Unlisted investments: FEEMIEE:
Held for trading BIEEERAE
- equity linked notes —RIGHBER 49,278 164,058 13,104 145,048
- mutual funds —-5EBES® 165,520 94,392 116,484 82,357
~ money market funds - CAE-T % 167,712 14,729 167,712 14,729
Designated upon initial B E N ERESY
recognition
- debt securities —HEES 125,863 176,959 60,033 52,276
- structured deposits —EENTER 127,351 387,647 - 114,497
635,724 837,785 357,333 408,507
894,223 1,303,953 503,721 573,489
Analysed for reporting EBRBARZ 5
purposes as:
Non-current assets EmBEE 134,005 303,195 - 30,045
Current assets MBEE 760,218 1,000,758 503,721 543,444
894,223 503,721 573,489

1 4| 2 Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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28

INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

The fair values of the listed investments are determined based on
the quoted market bid prices available on the relevant exchanges
and the fair values of the unlisted investments are determined based
on financial models or by reference to quoted prices from relevant
financial institutions.

Unlisted investments include structured deposits of HK$127.4 million
(2007: HK$387.6 million), whose fair values are affected by the
changes in market price of specific equity securities or market
interest rate.

The carrying amounts of investments at fair value through profit or
loss are denominated in the following currencies:

28 RIBBBRELAEEENRE

(#1)
EHRBAZAAEBNEBEREABZIEMZ
THREABOWMME MFLTREZDR
DEMBEREE YELEREFRERRA
Bz

JE IR EBIEEE 127,400,000 (Z B F
+4F E# 387,600,000 ) 2 AEBAGFR &
DEHEHTRATEzMIEEBRTIEN
EREFH-

HRMSERSAEEENRE 2IREAEBETG
T ABIE:

The Group The Company
M b S|

2008 2007 2008 2007
i3 FAE: 2 —BFRtF —BeNE ZEFLEE
HK$000 HK3$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BT AN TR EETT
UsS dollar ETT 557,065 637,522 348,866 421,170
Hong Kong dollar ki 121,895 130,222 84,687 95,421
Euro B 37,351 40,800 29,302 23,512
Other currencies Hin &% 171,912 195,409 40,866 33,386
894,223 1,303,953 503,721 573,489

Charges were created on the investments at fair value through
profit or loss with a total carrying value of HK$1,688,000 for the
purpose of securing banking facilities granted to the Group in 2007.

o 0 48 {5 4 %5 1,688,000 L MR BERIE QA
ERENEACEER ER-_ZFLERT
ARMBITEEZHER

ArmREmARAT | 4
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29 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

29 TTEMBIR

The Group The Company
Fam b 0
2008 2007 2008 2007
—RgRNE —EFtF —BE®NEF s o - 2
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BT HBMT R AYIT R
Financial assets/{liabilities) BHMTAHEIAZ
in respect of derivative MBEE/(AH)
financial instruments
- Interest rate swaps (note ay — F| &2 H (M Ea) 175 3,000 175 3,000
- Foreign currency forward —EHSNES H
contracts (note b) (Ff2Eb) {3,089) 2.356 {4.152) 366
- Derivative notes (note ¢) —fTETERSE
(BtiEc) 1,758 34,847 1,758 34,847
- Accumulators {note d) — AP EEE
(B Ed) (28,314) - {28,314) -
(29,470) 40,203 (30,533) 38,213
Analysed for reporting FEBAR2
purposes as: ba il
Current assets mENAE 9,460 42,831 8,381 40,780
Current liabilities MBEN (38,930) (2,628) (38,914) (2,567)
{29,470) 40,203 (30,533) 38,213

Notes: Fi 8% -

(@) Interest rate swap contracts with a total notional amount of (a) #HETEBH/EINTAEN1,026,760,000T
HK$1,026,760,000 (2007: HK$610,025,000) were entered to (ZZ2+%:%%610,025000T) Z
swap floating interest rate to fixed interest rate or to swap FlERESHUEENEEHEETF
between different floating rates. These contracts will mature FlEEREMEaIeMERg.
within the period from 27th August 2009 to 7th September WESRER-_BB]AFENAZ-T+H
2018. ECE-NFARACEHMARE-

(b) Foreign currency forward contracts with a total notional {b) HITERFHE AR 195,420,000 (=
amount up to HK$195,420,000 (2007: HK$222,746,000) were FFLF B%222,746,0000T) ZEH
entered to swap various foreign currencies to other cross SMESHLUETRINERAEMZXES
currencies. These contracts will mature within the period from R HESHBR_FFNFEA
3rd April 2008 to 22nd July 2009. ZHE-FRAFEAZT-8BER

.

() The Group entered into various option contracts in relation (¢ ZTEEHEHRITRFMARZEHELN
to underlying stock index and listed securities. These contracts BHEZHECH LFERBN_-FF
will mature within the pericd from 11th April 2008 to 1st ANENA+—EZZF—"F/-A—8
June 2016, HAR A B

(d)  Accumulators are knock-out options {which are exercised (dy RBREHELRRENBEIEED

automatically and periodically), under which the Group wil
be entitled to receive the underlying shares or assets at an
agreed strike price. These contacis will mature within the
period from 9th April 2008 to 12th March 2009. As at 31
March 2008, the Group is committed to purchase equity
securities as the agreed strike price totalling HK$72,855,000
(2007: Nil).

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008

FHAE BASREBEEREDRTZ
TTEBUDEBENHRRERETEN
BR_EENENANBE_FERAE
TH+-RHBRIBAR_SFNE
ZA=+—B8-xRMAREGEESR
B {EH#EY¥ 72,855,000 2 & H %
(ZZ=2t+F:8)-
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29 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 29 FTEBBIE
{continued)
The derivatives are measured at fair value at each balance sheet LT TAESLHAZAABNB-ES
date. Their fair values are determined with reference to fair value 2hAENMMBERELACSTROAERY
of comparable instruments in the market or quoted prices from FREMHE- SIS IAZERENNTHE

counterparties, The carrying amounts of derivatives are denominated " 5IE -
in the following currencies:

The Group The Company
xEM b A
2008 2007 2008 2007
—ReNF ¥R LF —B2NE —EFELF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BYETR BETT
Hong Kong dollar i (16,152) 958 (16,152) 958
US dollar ER {9,445) 39,245 {10,508) 37,255
Other currencies Hit g% {(3.873) - (3,873) -
(29,470) 40,203 (30,533) 38,213
30 BANK BALANCES AND CASH 30 RTEFREE
Bank balances and cash comprise cash held, short-term bank RITEgEESaBEEEMBRES RIH
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less and cash HRA-RESZRARZBHARTERETEA
placed with financial institutions. The carrying amounts of these HEgEFOZAR HSEEZIRAERLE
assets approximate their fair values. NRERES.
The carrying amounts of bank balances and cash equivalents are BIHEFREEZEAEDHATHESINE:
denominated in the following currencies:
The Group The Company
Emm P AN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—|R"NF ZERLE —¥®NF —E2E+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE TR T T BT BETT
S dollar EIT 549,554 145,985 72,388 23,399
Renminbi ARM 262,015 147,547 - -
Hong Kong dollar B 162,206 239,044 13,481 96,487
Singapore dollar FinET 81,628 93,373 20,408 -
Other currencies Hibtlr% 135,742 97,045 14,264 1,412
1,191,145 722,998 120,541 121,298
As at 31st March 2008, bank balances of HK$6,277,000 (2007: R_FBNEZA=+—B #%6,277,000
HK$23,505,000) were pledged to a bank for the purpose of securing TR+ E%23,505000) ZRFE
bank facilities granted for the Group. FOEER FABRTEREBERTER 2B
2o
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 1.7% EHRTERZEEMELIT% (2B L
(2007: 2.8%); these deposits have an average maturity of 14 days F:28%) HFERZTEHIWMAR14R(=
{2007: 26 days). BRLHFE26K)

ATEREFEFRDG

—OINEER
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MRHRERHT
31 CREDITORS, BILLS PAYABLE, DEPOSITS AND 3 BEAGRR - EBARB FARS
ACCRUALS ERREH
The Group The Company
b.g: 4. | bl
2008 2007 2008 2007
—ReNE —EFtEF —¥e%NE —EFtEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$ 000
BAYTF BYTR BRI YT
Trade creditors and HeEAGERER
bills payable TR 449,571 412,607 - -
Cansideration payable Yo i — P R R AR 1 2
for the acguisition of ETHER BARE
certain interest in a jointly
controlled entity 56,597 51,475 - -
Accrued contract costs BHRFZHRERA 274,428 136,356 - -
Retention payables FE 4+ 4R B R 30 128,414 99,305 - -
Other creditors, HibERGER -TAES
deposits and accruals RAREHA 412,682 478,403 7.322 9,019
1,321,692 1,178,146 7,322 9,019
Included in creditors, bills payable, deposits and accruals are the ERES EAES EARSETERAS
Group’s share of liabilities of HK$95,000 (2007: HK$129,000) in EAEEMGEMRARTHEE 2 I H&
relation to jointly controlled assets. AR #95,000T (Z BB -LF HE 129,000
L) e
The following is an ageing analysis of trade creditors and bills REGE B9ETRIBENRB 2RSS
payable at the balance sheet date: HamT:
The Group The Company
=mm F40E
2008 2007 2008 2007
—ReNng —EBLE —R8NE ZFFLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BMTRT EET BWTR BT
0 - 60 days 0— 60K 360,652 373,697 - -
61 - 90 days 61— 90K 26,030 6,834 - -
Over 90 days BN 62,889 32,076 - -
449,571 412,607 - -

Chevalier Internationat Heldings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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31

32

CREDITORS, BILLS PAYABLE, DEPOSITS AND 1
ACCRUALS (continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade creditors and bills payable
are denominated in the following currencies:

EER-EAER - FAEE
REREA
SEERESRNGRERECESZIREED
54 5] 5 8 B (E -

2008 2007

—BeNF —ERLE

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETR BETR

Hong Kong dollar B 198,756 208,805
Euro BriE 107,400 80,376
Us dollar ETT 15,136 49,307
Other currencies Hfin 5% 128,279 74,119
449,571 412,607

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade creditors, bills payable
and other creditors at 31st March 2008 approximate their fair values.

OUTSTANDING INSURANCE CLAIMS 32

The Group

Insurance claims of the foliowing business classes are not usually
settled within one year:

Employee compensation
Meotor third party liability

Public liability

The claims development, net of reinsurance, of the above business

claims are disctosed as follows:

R-SENEZAZ+-0 FREZHSE
R EARERAMEN KA GEER
HAaf{ERAS.

RRARBER
M
FHEBENZRRENT—ETE—E AL

1 .
/A

EEEM
REE=FEOE
DRAE

TMEBENZBONRRE (N A&ER) 0T
B

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Total
Underwriting year UREX -Bg-f -PPIF —PYME -—FTRAF “¥¥AF ZTEtFE C_REAF itk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
AT ARTR BETR A¥T BEETR BETR AETR BYTR
Estimate of GHRANMED
cumulative claims
At end of year FEREH 141,653 177,753 207,000 154,651 79,750 60,371 88,767
One year later —Fig 75.307 87,985 101,084 126,184 80,471 87,731 -
Two years later AEE 89,510 134,277 124,843 121,067 70,097 - -
Three years tater =F# 104,263 133,568 116,879 101,303 - - -
Four years later Fi 101,745 136,621 101,705 - - - -
Five years later R 102,894 121,798 - - - - -
Six years later ~EiE 97,609 - - - - - -
Cumulative claims RIREM 97,609 121,798 101,705 101,303 70,087 87,11 88,767 669,010
Cumulative payments AfinHEE 97,335 121027 101,571 78,713 35,100 17,342 2,250 453,438
Claims outstanding FREREH 274 o 134 12,590 34,597 70,389 86,517 215,572
ALDEEEARAT |
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33 BANK BORROWINGS

33 WITEXK

The Group The Company
*iEM ELQE
2008 2007 2008 2007
—ReNF —EBLF “R®NE ZEBLE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
HY T AETT AMFR YT T
Bank loans RITER 2,232,534 1,668,929 1,410,000 1,032,000
Bank overdrafts HITEX 2,671 2,412 1,270 -
2,235,205 1,671,341 1,411,270 1,032,000
The borrowings are repayable R 2 BHEMT
as follows:
Within one year —FR 723,584 815,066 158,270 475,000
More than 1 year but not — g B4R
exceeding 2 years HBWE 404,557 164,992 317,000 75,000
More than 2 years but not MEALEF
exceeding 5 years HARE 996,489 564,895 921,000 482,000
More than 5 years BATHHF 110,575 126,388 15,000 -
2,235,205 1,671,341 1,411,270 1,032,000
Less: Amount due within WoR—FENIEH
one year shown under T EELRE
current liabilities BEfiARZER {723,584) (815,066} (158,270) {475,000}
1,511,621 856,275 1,253,000 557,000
Secured gl 350,555 372,040 - -
Unsecured = iF 3 1,884,650 1,299,301 1,411,270 1,032,000
2,235,205 1,411,270 1,032,000

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Repert 2008

1,671,341
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33 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 33 BITER
The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate their HAEER2EEEEES s A RBEES BF
fair values as majority of the Group's borrowings carried interest at MEANIZERBRUEFDASHA-ROE
floating rate. The bank borrowings are denominated in the following HMRATH EEAE:
currencies;
The Group The Company
FHm b N
2008 2007 2008 2007
—BRNE —E¥BtEE et 3. AN —EEL+F
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
BT EETT BRTR AT
Hong Kong dollar ok 1,646,520 1,412,837 1,411,270 1,032,000
Renminbi AR 249,750 - - -
Euro Bl & 210,177 137,478 - -
Australian dollar i 64,532 59,676 - -
Canadian dollar IE- YN 53,432 52,391 - -
S dollar ET 10,794 8,959 - -
2,235,205 1,671,341 1,411,270 1,032,000
The effective interest rates of the bank borrowings at the balance REUARITERZTHREINRMT:
sheet date were as follows:
The Group The Company
M 4T
2008 2007 2008 2007
—RENE —FFLE —BRNE —ERLF
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'00C
BT BETT BE TR YT
Hang Kong dollar ik 2.2% 4.7% 2.2% 4.6%
Renminbi AR 7.4% - - -
Euro B 5.0% 5.2% - -
Australian dollar BT 9.8% 7.9% - -
Canadian dollar g XL 5.0% 5.0% - -
US dollar ER 4.6%

The exposure of the bank borrowings to interest-rate changes and

the contractual repricing dates are below 6 months.

Bank borrowings of HK$350,555,000 (2007: HK$372,040,000) are
secured by charges on the assets of the Group as disclosed in notes

14, 15, 17, 19, 24, 25, 26, 28 and 30.

7.6% - -

B ERZIERYRTRERAGANE
AL

$R1T 18 B8 % 350,555,000 (B E+F &
#372,040,0007T) PUEEEEELER B
B 14-15-17-19-24-25-26- 28R 30 #&
go

R-BRERFRAA
ZRENFER
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34 OTHER LOANS 34 HA{ER
The Group FHEE
2008 2007
—ReNE b -2
HKS$'000 HK$'000
BYFR AW
The other loans are repayable as follows: HE{{EXR 2 HSENT:
within one year —%FR 315 256
More than 1 year but not —FREET
exceeding 2 years BAMRF 326 268
More than 2 years but not MFELA FAR
exceeding 5 years HALF 1,049 865
More than 5 years HBHF 9 312
1,699 1,701
Less: Amount due within one year HR—FRIBERETER
shown under current liabilities BifiAZER (3135) (256)
1,384 1,445

The loans are unsecured, interest free and repayable by 6 annual
installments, the last of which falls due in 2013. The carrying
amounts of the other loans approximate their fair values. The loans

are denominated in Swedish Kroner.

HitEFASRERER RVERS R HEF
R -BEBXAR-F-ZHF-HIibER
ZEEERES AL EBE - LM EMUE
HEARER-

35 SHARE CAPITAL 35 A
2008 2007
ZReNEF ZEFEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT EBTX
Authorised: EERE:
540,000,000 ordinary shares of 540,000,000/ & @A
HK$1.25 each BREEEN 25T 675,000 675,000
Issued and fully paid: EBITRAZRA:
278,582,090 ordinary shares of 278,582,090R% ¥ A B%
HK$1.25 each BERTHEEE1.25% 348,228 348,228

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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36 RESERVES 36 f#E
The Group Py |
Capital Property  Investment Exchange
Share Capital redemption revaluation revaluation  fluctuation Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
_REME NRER RAS® fELR
REEM [ &35 ] -1 ] =1 Hi FHER ReHH X
HK$°000 HX$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK Y000
BETR BETR BETR AMTL BT AMTR BETT BETL
{note a)
(Riza)
At 15t April 2006 R-BREAF
A-8 417,860 327 875 1,526 - 849 37,81 1,580,545 2,372,566
Exchange difference RS T-
on translation of RELAFR
operations of KEEHEESN
overseas subsidiaries, ERHMEYZ
assaciates and jointly ERz®
controlled entities - - - - - 68,633 - 68,633
Change in fair value of AEfnRdEs
available-for-sale DHERY

investments - - - - 4,768 - - 4,768

Share of property AE—REe
revaluation of an associate R A EG - - - 15,821 - - - 15,821
Total income recognised  ERRAH
directly in equity BEZREA - - - 15,821 4,768 68,633 - 89,222
Profit for the year KEFZHET - - - - - - 317,869 317,869
Total recognised income and & NE 1R
expenses for the year WARRE - - - 15,821 4,768 68,633 317,869 407,091
Dividends paid cERE - - - - - - {139,291 {139,291)
Diluticn of interest BE-EERDA
in a subsidiary g - 43127 - - - - - 4,721
At 315t March 2007 R-STLE
ZR=+~-A 417 860 332,602 7,526 15821 5,617 106,544 1,759,123 2,645,093
Exchange differance BRESSHERRA
on translation of BRELAR
vperations of #EIEHEED
pverseas subsidiaries, BRRELZ
associates and ERER
jointly controlled entities - - - - - 180,824 - 180,824
Change in fair value of qRENREL
available-for-sale DRERE
investments - - - - 36,344 - - 36,344
Total income recognised ~ B IEREZ
directly in equity ERzZARA - - - - 36,344 180,824 - 217,168
Profit for the year EEFIEH - - - - - - 230,747 230,747
Total recognised income and £ XD HE
expenses for the year BARRE - - - - 36,344 180,824 230,747 447 915
Dividends paic oaRe - - - - - - (128,148} (128,148)
Dilution of intarest AA-MRGLE
in a subsidiary (note b} B (M1Eh) - 13,566 - - - - - 13,566
Acquisition of additional ¥ BRFH K3 22 A1 B 5
fnterests in subsidiasies 3 (Ko
{note ¢} - {2,330} - - - - - {2.330)
premium on acquisition of WEAKRKEL A
further interest of ZHM (Fitd)
subsidiaries {note d) - {2170 - - - - - 2,479
At 31st March 2008 R-ZSTNF
ZR=Z+-A 417,850 341,661 7,526 15,821 41,961 287,368 1,861,722 2,97391%
ELEEREARLE
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36 RESERVES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

{c}

(d)

The balance arose mainty from various Group recrganisations in the
past comprising redomicile of the Company, spin-offs and privatisation
of Group entities.

Pursuant to a placing agreement dated 3rd May 2007, the Group
placed 25,384,146 shares of Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited {the
“CPHL"), a subsidiary of the Group, to independent third parties for
a gross proceed of HK$93,921,340. Pursuant to another subscription
agreement dated 3rd May 2007, the Group subscribed 25,384,146
newly issued shares of CPHL at & consideration of HK393,921,340.
As a result of the share placing and subscription agreements, CPHL
effectively issued 25,384,146 additional shares to new shareholders
of CPHL for a net proceed of HK$92,046,000 and the Group's interest
in CPHL was diluted from 56.70% to 50.02%. The dilution has resulted
in @ gain of HK$13,566,000, which was accounted for directly in
equity.

During the year, the Group acquired additional interests of certain
subsidiaries of the Group, at a consideration of HK$32,904,000. The
difference between the consideration and the Group’s additional share
of the identifiable net assets of these subsidiaries ar the date of the
acquisition of HK$2,330,000 was accounted for directly in equity.

On 2nd May 2007, the Company purchased certain subsidiaries and
businesses engaging in the computer and information communication
technolegy industry {717 business®) from CPHL at an aggregste
consideration of HK$55,572,000. The Group effectively bought ocut
the remaining interests in the IT business from the minority interests
at a premium of HK$2,177,000, representing the difference between
the portien of cash consideration and share of net asset value of the
remaining interest, which has been accounted for directly in equity.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Repori 2008

36 @&

Fit &x:

(a)

{b)

Q)

(d)

EHIEXROBESREEHATA 0
FLCIER SEARZAKRRAAEL-

BEBEE-_BRF+FRAZBZARMIG
H FEEL S YKEEEG3921 340 B
FBASELZIERREEAT(IHLE
T5]) 225384, 146RB B TFREUYB=H-48
BE-HANA-RFLFRAZHZEMN
B AREARTAE93,921,340T 25
25,384 146RE H -2 S BTAL(7 - BREAR (B
NERRBBE B+t IoTlRET
25384 146MR AR PH A Z S MR - Fr
AR IEE S A N02,046,0007T AR A M E
RETZOHE7EAHS6T0%ENE
50.02% ° I EH T A AE M 13,566,0007T Ik 28
EEERENTER

RER - FEEEBRAESTHACZ
B A AAEN32,904,0007L - LM AW
EBREEHELRTHBAEFATENS
EEBBANY2330,000 EHOHER
ERPER-

RoEFT+FRA_B - TLAUSHRTE
o5, 572,000 E+iZEWEE TRER
BWREMBMABRTE(TARBBERBEN 2
HBATREB - ARERABULES
277,000 B R (IR SR ABTEGTE
HZAERBLNBZERIRLGRIERE
PREREAMBEEZBTHERZ 2EE
HERERTRE-.
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36 RESERVES (continued) 36 f& ()
The Company N
Capital  Investment
Share Contributed redemption revaluation Retained
premium surplus reserve reserve profits Total
BxER BARY BEXMEMHE REEHHRE RESH ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$G00 HK3'000
BT EETT E¥TR AETE EEBTIL AETR
(note)
fit it
At 1st April 2006 BR-ZRERE
mA—A 417,860 95,413 7,526 71 916,759 1,437,629
Change in fair value of ~ AIHEMHRRF
available-for-sate Z2RfE
irvestments 2% - - - 3,784 - 3,784
Total income recognised HEREZERZ
directly in equity Bl A - - - 3,784 - 3,784
Profit for the year TFEFEZEH - - - - 60,947 60.947
Total recognised income and FAZ &2
expenses for the year WARBE - - - 3,784 60,947 64,731
Dividends paid BiEAR 2 - - - - (139,291) (139,29%)
At 31st March 2007 RZFTLF
=A=+-—A8 417,860 85,413 1,526 3,855 838,415 1,363,069
Change in fair value of AHEmEA
available-for-sale 205
investiments 2§ - - - 19,272 - 19,272
Total income recognised ~ HEWRERERZ
directly in equity B A - - - 19,272 - 19,272
Loss for the year FEEZBH - - - - {33,935) (33,935}
Total recognised income and FARE HA
expenses for the year BARRZ - - - 19,272 (33,935) (14,663)
Dividends paid 2R S - - - - (128,148) {128,148}
At 31st March 2008 R-BBAE
=RA=+—8 417,860 95,413 7,526 23,127 676,332 1,220,258
Note: fi bt

Contributed surplus represents the difference between the value of net assets
of subsidiaries acquired and the nominal amount of the Campany's shares
issued for their acquisition. Under the Company Act of 1981 of Bermuda,
the contributed surplus of the Company is available for distributicn to
shareholders.

RABBDRRAURHBLAZAEFEHRWR
BARTELTRBZANZEM-BEERE—N
A—ERE (B &R BABRBDTERIERE
Z .

ALEMMEHRAN | L.
“ggazsm | 123




Notes to the Financial Statements

ISR MEE

124

37

38

OTHER PAYABLE

The Group

QOther payable represents subscription payable on an available-for-
sale investment.

37 HthEMK
W
A BB B TD T R 2 A AT R TR

2008 2007
ZR9NF ZER+E
HK$'000 HK3$‘000
BT EETT
Subscription payable: EfIREE: 7,760 7,760
Less: Imputed interest WoHIORE - (681)
Subscription payable at fair value BEOoRBENEZEGZRE 7,760 7.079
Carrying amounts repayable: REMZ RN

- Within one year -—%FRA 7,760 -

- More than 1 year, but not ——F AT HBMRE
exceeding 2 years - 7,079
7.760 7,079

The subscription payable is interest-free and repayable in February
2009. At inception, the fair value of the subscription payable balance
are determined by adopting a discount rate of 4.7%. As at 31st
March 2008, the fair value of the subscription payable approximates
its fair value, The subscription payable is denominated in Hong
Kong dollar.

DEFERRED TAX

The Group

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities/{assets)
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior
reporting years:

Accelerated  Revaluation
tax of
depreciation  properties
ERAHA  4r1-
HK$'00¢ HK$'000

RAZEELREREAR_FFAF _AM
B-MARE ENRERZ2OAGHEGTIHE
RELTRHE-R-_FENAFZA=+—8-
BNREBRzAAERAREEHES B2
BILARRTIE-

38 IEEBIF
AEME
TXHMBDEEREERBERBEMER
ZEEBREBAAN/ (AE) RARKEE

BURNFEE22E:
Allowance
for doubtful Tax
Trademark debts losses QOthers Total
BE  RAGEE ERER b8 2@

HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 KK$'000 HK$'000

BETR A%Tr #BTn BETn #%¥Tr B¥ThR EETn
At ist April 2006 BR-RFEAEEA-B 58,417 50,633 18,500 (4,358) {44,489) 13,263 92,356
Exchanga realignment ERAR 530 - - (202) (877) 126 {423)
Chargafcredit) to income EAFHEHE
statement for the year %/ (3t A) 7,019 5222 - 1,307 (174) 664) 12,810
At 31st March 20607 B-B2+EZF=+-8 066,066 55,855 18,900 (3,263) (45,540) 12,725 104,743
Exchange realignment ELH% 322 4,638 - (232) (609 {751 3,368
ChargeAcredi) to income EREEYER
slatement for the year A% /{5 A) {1,146) 85,566 - 435 2,730 {15,203} 72,682
At 31st March 2008 BZ82)N$¥=-H=1+-B 65,242 146,359 18,500 (3,060) {43,419 {3,229) 180,793

Chevalier Internationaf Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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38 DEFERRED TAX (continued)

39

For the purposes of balance sheet presentation, certain deferred
tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the
analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reperting purposes:

38

IE 3 % 78 (5
ARAAEAREZENA R BHBEHE
FERATMBO AL RUBRESHET &
ERASESHNT:

2008 2007

—ReNE ZRRLE

HK$000 HK$'000

BT T EETIT

Deferred tax liabilities BIEBARAMR 206,231 113,487
Deferred tax assets BREBRBEARE (25,438) (8,744)
180,793 104,743

At the balance sheet date, the Group had unused tax losses of
HK$1,563,192,000 {2007; HK$1,485,882,000) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of HK$248,108,000 (2007: HK$260,228,000) of such losses.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining HK$1,315,084,000 (2007: HK$1,225,654,000} due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in tax losses
are losses of HK$78,050,000 {2007: HK$66,015,000} of subsidiaries
in Mainland China that will gradually expire until 2013, 1ax losses
of HK$22,103,000 (2007: HK$14,354,000) of other overseas
subsidiaries that will expire from 2008 to 2018. Other tax losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had unrecognised deductible
temporary differences of HK$16,584,000 (2607: HK$21,114,000).
A deferred tax asset has not been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 26th July 2006, the Company issued a semi-annual 2.125%
convertible bonds with an aggregate amount of HK$450 million
{the “Convertible Bonds"). Each bondhclder has the option to
convert the Convertible Bonds into shares of the Company with a
par value of HK$1.25 each at a conversion price of HK$11.20,
which is adjusted to HK$10.19 and HK$9.98 as a result of the
approval for the payment of the final dividend of an amount of
HK$0.3 per share for the year ended 31st March 2007 and interim
dividend of an amount of HK$0.16 per share for the period ended
30th September 2007 respectively, The adjustment became effective
from 29th August 2007 and 4th January 2008 respectively.
Conversion price will be further adjusted upon approval of dividend
in future.

39

REHA FEMAHEZ2EHABRAEN
1,563,192,000 ( — B2 2 + % : &
¥51,485,882,0007T) ol A fEIE 85 18 R 2 it
Floe H P EW248,108,000L (—FR-LE &
% 260,228.00070) 2 B SIEC B ARE
BEGE-BATUAHMUTER MBS
T ZHIERIBA% 13150840008 (=2 F
kM 225 654,0007T) - R ABELR
EEE-RAGHRLETREABHB2EER
HiE—F— =4 2 555 H#E% 78,050,000
(ZBR1E  B%66,015,0007T) R H {55
MEBARERHRRRNEE_F—NE
2 ERS A E%22,103,000L( BT+
FHEHE14,354,0007) cH BRI RKE 8
BHEE

REHE FRH RERTAEYR2AR
BE16584, 000 (BB H B W
21,114,0007) A EMBHERKLEEER
WzEABRMNBUBEEREBZTNRE
HEZR HUFAERERZAEABEHRE
Eﬂ

ARRES
R-EARELAZ+RB - ERFABTES
8 %0 7 ™ 450,000,000 2.125% A1 A AR i %
(Tellafis]) Bk ABEBATR
BHESIEESIREE 20T ZBRBEAER
AlzERAEEE 15Tz BHG -ARER
HRE-_FR+EZR=+—BILLERZE
HESEROIETREBEE_SR+-FAA=
+ B EH 2 e B R FRR0.168 T HRALE
HfSRRHELSGREY10.19T RHEN9.98
T WEHARSRRIRRLENAZTAH
RoRRNE—FRB&N-ARMEMSEERE
REHETEE-

HIORRYARLE
ZUUNEFE
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

Unless previousiy converted or purchased or redeemed, each
Convertible Bond shall be redeemed by the Company at 121.30%
of its principal amount together with accrued interest on 28th July
2011 (the maturity date of the Convertible Bonds).

Cn 28th July 2009 (the "Put Option Date”), the holder of
Convertibie Bond will have the right at such holders option, to
require the Company to redeem all or some of the Convertible
Bonds of such holder on the Put Option Date at 113.1% of their
principal amount together with accrued interest up to but excluding
the redemption date.

The proceeds from the issuance of the Convertible Bonds have to
be split into liability and derivative components. On issuance of the
Convertible Bonds, the fair value of the derivative component is
determined using an option price model; and this amount is carried
as a liability until extinguished on conversion or redemption. The
remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the liability ccmponent
and is carried as a liability on the amortised cost basis until
extinguished on conversion or redemption. The derivative component
is measured at fair value on the issuance date and any subsequent
changes in fair value of the derivative component as at the balance
sheet date are recognised in the income statement.

The canvertible bonds recognised in the balance sheet as at 31st

39

AERES ;)
BRIFCHBREMESRTE TRHFARFRT
——F+tA-+NEB(FRERFHSE) &
EEHEZ12130%EREFZRRE 825
B E AR %

R-FRANELAZ+NB(IEBMEERS) -
ENRARMAsHFAEABREHBREEREL
FRREEEREISB V% EREHE
BEOH(ETEEZR) 2o 28
HEAA MR E-

FITHRIREROFDENRARS ERET
ETABD -STE LASBSNL R EBBEE
EREMEE U EERERSANEZEE
BEENE - R TNFSRRAESRARAMER
FEAAMZHABHRS EERBRNHEN
EB-fTATARSUBTEZOLEMNE &
BREERMRAZEMTETIATESZA
ABRBEEAOFBANSRERSERTER.

RORBRNEZA=+—-BzZAEAfIRE

March 2008 are calculated as follows: BzUBERMASHEOT:
The Group The Company
rHam X4A
HK$’000 HK$'000
YT BET T
Liability component afEe
At st April 2007 R-RB+EMA—R 354,423 398,726
Interest expenses et 26,852 30,207
At 31st March 2008 R-_FENE=ZHA=+—8 381,275 428,933
Derivative component T T ASHE
At 1st April 2007 R-ZFR+-FMA—A 26,667 30,000
Fair value adjustment LDRERE (23,912) (26,900}
At 31st March 2008 R_BBNF=FE=1—8 2,755 3,100

The effective interest rate for the liability component of the
convertible bonds is 9.8% per annum. As at 31st March 2008,
convertible bands with par value of HK$%50,000,000 (2007:
HK$50,000,000) are held by a subsidiary of the Group.

The carrying amount of the Group’s convertible bonds-liability
component at 31st March 2008 approximates its fair value,

RERAHAMSER s NBREEEMNES
BE-H_BRNE=ZA=+-H0 EEELHE
¥ 50000000 (B R LF B ¥
50,000,0007T) 2 o 32 A% 52 i e 2 £ 6 — 4 Bt
BarlEg.

R-ZBRFNFZR=+—8 FRAREBEHES
ROREBRAREEHAS-.
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BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS
Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is organised on a worldwide
basis into five divisions. These divisions are the basis on which the
Group reports its primary segment information. Principal activities
of the segments are as follows:

Construction and engineering: Construction and engineering work
for lifts and escalators, aluminium windows, civil, building
construction, electrical & mechanical, environmental and pipe
rehabilitation contracts.

tnsurance and investment: General insurance business except aircraft,
aircraft liabilities and credit insurance, and investment.

Property: Property investment, development and management, cold
storage and hotel operations.

Food and beverages: Food and beverages trading and retailing.

Computer and information communication technology and others:
Sales and servicing of IT eguipment and business machines and
retailing and trading and servicing of motor vehicles and food
trading. '

Segment assets primarily consist of investment properties, property,
plant and equipment, prepaid lease payments, goodwill, other
intangible assets, available-for-sale investments, other non-current
assets, investments at fair value through profit or loss, inventories,
properties for sale, debiors, deposits and prepayments, amounts
due from associates, amounts due from jointly controlled entities,
amounts due from customers for contract work, derivative financial
instruments, bank balances and cash.

Segment liabilities primarily consist of creditors, bills payable and
deposits, unearned insurance premiums, outstanding insurance
claims, amounts due to associates, amounts due to customers for
contract work, deferred income, derivative financial instruments
and other payable.

40 ¥R ESSE

EBoR

REEME FEHZEREESATHEE
PN HEMSEERTEMERAEE
SERAMNEE-ZFHAZIERBNOT:

BERBHIE ARABRSEAYTIR 8
E-LABFRR BHRER REEEE
BTt

REREE: —RREBER (TEERRA-R
BECRERRR) RIRE-

e MERE FEREIRSBALORE
ER-

B RAMERGHEART S

EREAMBANERA AAMBERER
BHBEHERRRRIEHITERE
BEARHS-

SRAETZERERENE BEREH A
NEAMNR BR EAEREE THENK
B HMERSDEE REXREQCAEER
MIRE FH-HE0R BRER FLES
ERMARE BYUBBELCRER AREHE
ERBE REHNTEEMNEPUMZ R
FEMBTRURBIIHREFRES-

SEAMIEREARER BHEBREEA
B HRERERE RRERREN BABRE
DRAIBR MENIREATF X Z3E:
BEWA - G7 £ B3 T A B H A 5 5K

REtEAMME TR QR
ZOTNFEFRE
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40 BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

(continued}
Business segments (continued)

Segment information about these businesses is presented below,

Revenue and results
Year ended 31st March 2008

40 ¥XRGHEMSE @

EBoE (4D

HEFEBZTRERDT:

iy 2 59 3 HR

BE_QSNF=ZHA=1+—-A4LEE

Computer and

information
Construction Insurance communication
and and Foed and  technology
engineering  investment Property beverages  and others Consolidated
REE
RER g989
- HRIE RRERR 0¥ £ HNEERRf® 74
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$"000
BETR BRTR BT ARt AETR EMTR
REVENUE i
Total segment revenue THEH 3,845,780 120,431 419,935 299,034 964,253 5,649,433
Inter-segment revenue SHRZENE (384) {15,329} (52,630) - (12,412) {80,755)
External revenue Hohu 3,845,396 105,102 367,305 299,034 951,841 5,568,678
RESULTS ¥ |
Segment results SRZEH 14,652 (71,052) 501,446 7.087 54,859 506,992
Unallocated corporate FORZEEES
expenses {15,566)
Share of results of associates F7{% B8 0 T3¢ 4% 3,966 - 14,509 9,631 (848) 27,258
Share of results of jointly B {4 & EE %)
controlled entities CRER 1,067 - 1,842 - - 2,909
Finance income BBBA 16,420
Finance costs MERA {126,043}
Profit before taxation B R F 411,970
Income tax expenses FiElEd (112,811)
Profit for the year REFHET 299,159

tnter-segment revenue is charged at prices determined by

management with reference to market prices.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Anrual Report 2008
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40 BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

{continued)

Business segments (continued)

Assets and liabilities
As at 31st March 2008

40 ERRBEM TR @

E¥a ¥
RERAM

HR-®@®NEF=ZA=+-—8

Computer and

information
Construction Insurance communication
and and Food and  technology
engineering  investment Property beverages and others Consolidated
BHE
RER REA
BHEIR KBREEAR nE £% NERHM 23]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BNETR AETR BETER BETR AT
ASSETS RE
Segment assets SHAE 2,214,392 1,766,442 3,291,693 325,609 421,825 8,019,961
Interests in associates REBBARZEY 9,580 - 47,826 77,963 37,449 172,818
Interests in jointly B it £ R H
controlled entities TEZER 16,155 - 248,590 - - 264,745
Unallocated corporate FORRAAE
assets 121,194
Total assets BaE 8,578,718
LIABILITIES =F |
Segment liabilities SEAR 1,247,512 357,957 138,315 58,622 111,612 1,914,018
Unallocated corporate AARLEAM
liabilities 2,897,517
Total lizbilities 8 it 4,811,535
Other information HibEH
Year ended 31st March 2008 BEZz-9RNE=A=+—-HLLFH
Computer and
information
Construction Insurance communication
and and Food and  technology
engineering  investment Property beverages and others Consolidated
BER
BER EABR
BETE RRIEER PE 1.1 BERRME &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A¥TR BRI BETR AYTR BAYTR BT
Capital expenditures AERY 74,847 32 11,084 36,402 1,445 123,810
Depreciation and HHRBE
amortisation 59,535 74 18,502 21,987 5,004 105,102
Impairment loss on property, % BEREEZ
plant and equipment AESHA - - 4,059 3,356 - 7.415
Write back of impairment BEBHBAREZ
loss on prepaid lease AESR
payments - - (2.637) - - (2,637)
tmpairment loss ALEmREs
on available-for-sale BEFE
investments - 835 - - - 835
HIGHoEmaMas
e F AR
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40 BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

{continued)

Business segments (continued)
Revenue and results

Year ended 31st March 2007

40 ¥REHEMESE

ExaE(E
Wik &

BE_®Rt5ZA=+-BLEE

Computer and

information
Construction Insurance communication
and and fFood and technology
enginearing investment Property beverages and others  Consolidated
LR &
BER B
BwmIE REBREESE i B8 HERHf B®e
HX$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 KK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETI BETT P b AETT BHETT
REVENUE W 2
Total segment revenue I 35 o8 &R 3,003,573 149,140 352,672 250,076 995,159 4,750,620
Inter-segment revenue o 8 2 iUk 2% (284) (19,756) {47,531} - {17,812} (85,383)
External revenue ¥ b U 2 3,003,250 129,383 305,141 250,076 977,347 4,665,237
RESULTS ¥
Segment results SR ER 186,131 150,238 135,476 14,909 39.417 526,171
Unallccated corporate FoBzDREE
expenses {12,132}
Share of results of FRIG B & R R ¥R
associates 2,557 - {70} 955 1,821 5,263
Share of results of jeintly B {6 £ R1ZHI
controlled entities EER 2,674 - (5,833) - - {3,159)
Finance income BB M A 14,263
Finance costs MiEHEA {122,356)
Profit before taxation B Bl F 408,050
Income 1ax expenses EHED {66,853)
Profit for the year KEFBHA 341,197

Inter-segment revenue is charged at prices determined by
management with reference to market prices.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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40 BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

{continued)

Business segments (continued)
Assets and liabilities

As at 31st March 2007

Computer and

information
Canstruction Insurance communication
and and Food and technology
engineering investment Property beverages and others  Consolidated
BERE
RER BEiRaR
BRTE RBRRA hg HH BERES g4
HK$'000 HK$'00C HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BRI BRI BETR BETRE BMTR
ASSETS BE
Segment assets FREE 1,870,217 1,788,237 2,357,950 318,557 406,279 6,841,280
Interests in associates HiEmEna 2§s 9,294 - 164 62,092 65,534 137,084
Interests in jointly Hiit KR E S
controlled entities REZER 15,083 - 224,428 - - 239,511
Unaflocated corporate FRORDRRE
assets 73,337
Total assets BAE 7,291,212
LIABILITIES Ak
Segment liabilities FHAIN 1,062,840 345,692 136,784 47,630 137,459 1,730,405
Unaltocated corporate AaEREARA
liabilities 2,245,290
Total lrabilities =af 1,975,695
QOther information BiEH
Year ended 315t March 2007 BE-RRLrE=F=1—QIL4EE
Computer and
information
Construction Insurance communication
and and Food and technology
engingering investment Property beverages and others  Consolidated
BER
BER AR
BHIE {RRERHE nE g8  HEERHEM 54
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BRI AT AWTR BETR Y TR
Capital expenditures ji %K 117,354 373 3,892 45 656 2,132 169,407
Depreciation and FERHEE
amortisation 57,931 161 16,614 17,352 6,864 101,922
Impairment loss on property, 1% - BER#H 2
plant and equipment RESSE 6,782 - 6,972 - - 13,754
Impairment {oss on prepaid B ATRAZ
lease payments BESA - - 1,628 - - 1,628
Impairment loss on ERAERBRZ
intangible assets HESE
and goodwill 7.157 - - - - 7.157
Impairment loss AHERREY
on available-for-sale REEA
investments - 1,473 - - - 1,473
ATRRERERLE

TEQNTER
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40 BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 40

(continued)

Geographical segments {based on location of assets)
The Group’s operations in construction and engineering are located
in Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland China, Singapore, Europe and
Australia, Insurance and investment business is conducted in Hong
Kong. Property operations are mainly carried out in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and Canada. Food and beverages business is carried
out in Hong Kong, Singapore and Mainland China. Computer and
information communication technology operations are mainly carried
out in Hong Kong, Mainland China and Thailand. Other operations
are carried out in Canada and the USA, respectively.

XBEEHEMYEm

HESE(RBEEMEN)
ARERERBMTETEREE BM-7
- i BN R RN EE-RERIRE
EFEER-DNERBIERER - THAL
ENeEREF-GREHTETFR Fi0H
EhEmtSEr-BHARBAMHEERERE
EFR PREAREREEF - EOEES A
EiEXREEEE-.

Revenue by geographical market

EtEREEHS 2 W
2008 2007
—RBNE -3 =

HK$'000 % HK$'000 %

BETR BETT
Hong Kong & 3,083,921 55 2,717,761 58
Macau b N : 834,150 15 424,475 9
Canada mEX 458,778 8 411,363 g9
Europe & 403,770 7 465,607 10
Australia M 207,961 4 173,302 4
Singapore ¥ 187,785 3 155,346 3
USA xH 160,632 3 106,872 2
Mainland China oM : 156,515 3 132,801 3
Thailand E-3) 48,032 1 72,764 2
Others Hfl 27,134 1 4,946 -
5,568,678 100 4,665,237 100

The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of segment
assets and capital expenditures analysed by geographical area in
which the assets are located and capital expenditures are incurred:

WTAREERASAHIBREMERES S
ZAFEERBERAFTRNZAN:

Carrying amounts of

segment assets Capital expenditures
SRAERDE B

2008 2007 2008 2007
—B®NE —EBLE N QKNS IFRELE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BRTR EETR AT HETT
Hong Kong HiE 4,482,949 3,576,789 51,788 69,778
Macau | 243,885 131,892 2,928 1,249
Canada meEx 311,062 282,244 1,292 1,136
Europe B 545,376 575,336 29,206 49,923
Australia | 262,979 288,727 19,974 26,275
Singapore 37 A0 339,526 306,038 1,424 3,639
USA HE 206,082 209,068 - 37
Mainland China o B A b 1,524,094 1,084,441 17,198 17,170
Thailand =E 58,636 52,973 - 67
Others H{ 45,372 333,772 - 133
8,019,961 6,841,280 123,810 169,407

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND 4 BERERTAFHERLEE
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE LIVES 2R E R
As explained in note 40, the Group uses business segments as its R R aORT I FEE U EBSRERAZHE
primary segment for reporting segment information. For the purpose SEEHzEA M- BBITHERNS &E-
of impairment testing, goodwill and other intangible assets are AeRuATHzEREENREER IR
with indefinite useful lives, and are allocated, at acquisition, 1o the EHPEREEREETZS R ReELR
CGUs that are expecied to benefit from such intangible assets. The - ERAZREECESART
respective carrying amounts had been allocated as follows:
Goodwill License Trademark
[k -3 G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R EETR BT
Construction and engineering: BERMEIE:
- Pipe technalogies, roads - CTHEEW-EBHSR
drainage and water works KFE IR 57,323 24,377 -
— Lifts and escalators -AREFRAGER 3,259 - -
Property: W
- Logistics and warehousing -BREEEHE 64,566 - -
Food and beverages 28 85,182 - 108,000
210,330 24,377 108,000

The Group tests goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives
annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indications
that they might be impaired.

The recoverable amounts of CGUs in food and beverages operation
and the pipe operation in Europe and Australia are determined
from fair value less cost to sell approach while recoverable amounts
of CGUs for remaining operations are determined from value-in-
use calculations approach. The key assumptions for both approaches
are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected
changes to selling prices and direct costs. Management estimates
appropriate discount rates that reflect current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific te the CGUs.
Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past practices
and expectations of future changes in the market.

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value-in-use or fair value less cost to sell, whichever is
appropriate, of the CGUs to which goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite lives has been allocated. Both approaches require
the entity to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present
value.

FEAMEFHENARBRAZRIRAFE
CEVAERSAMABE MEAREHR
g BEATEITA

BREBUEBNARRNZEEXBZRE
EEBUMTIREEESEAAERHEEMN
FHEARNT ERAGRSESBUMTTHY
B & F IR AP ME AT kM B
BEANFERBATHMEFENMRRRBE
ENBRREMREENEHRASRH TR
B RBEENMERRACECHEURA
BBEA A TAEEMSENERBRAR
o R B AR AR o L AR I T 5B TR 1R B
BHEARGROHBAME -

HrEARESHERGHESRBRLASR
RAATHEVAEZREEAHN TR
FEENAAEAFHERA (RFRME) E
o WEt SRR RO RA AR E
FHENERZARAGRE FREE MR
EHHARE

RIBRERgELE)
ZRTNELHE
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41 IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND 41 BERERTAEHELEE
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE LIVES 2R E R ()
{continued)
For impairment assessment adepting value-in-use calculations FRERRBEMIEGHBER SE2ES
approach, the Group principally prepares cash fiow forecasts derived HyBRERaEl DEMESEEBERLS
from the most recent financial budgets approved by management ERFHAE s UM BREL REEH2%
for the next five years and extsapolates cash flows for the following E0% I EEEMENBEARARTES
five years based on estimated growth rates ranging from 2% to RERE-AKRBRBARGRLD 2 Balf s
10%. The pre-tax rates used to discount the forecast cash flows DRI%ENRBTE -FRREAEIRFTASE
range from 7% to 12%. Goodwill and trademark is allocated to DM S EH S - R R HE R
the Group's branded coffee shops segment. The recoverable amount AAEREERATAR - SRz HERT
is determined basad on fair value less costs to sell. These calculations BEELE? - FHVFREsBHERS RS
use post-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets BA —FHEREZRASRLAREERBTEN
approved by management covering a one-year period. Cash flows FI0%E20NEERERRESNEEE TR
beyond the one-year period are extrapolated using a growth rate FAT%RBRE EFRISUREFHEBEX
ranging from 10% to 20% per annum up to the fifth year and zero 15%MmiEH -
growth rate per annum from the sixth year to fifteen year, gross
margin of 75% and a discount rate of 15% per annum.
42 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 42 ESRSB/ITRAEZHE
MANAGEMENT
Directors’ emoluments EEME
Emoluments paid and payable to the directors of the Company are I RENTARNEEZMEMT:
as follows:
2008
—RENF
Retirement
Salaries henefits
Directors’ and other scheme
fee benefits contribution Total
19 Bik&
EpNE H#EH ZHE R
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BT R BRTR BMT R BETR
Executive Director: g §::%
Chow Yei Ching [&] 71 12 - 9,027 - 9,027
Kuok Hoi Sang 18 & - 4,913 338 5,251
Fung Pak Kwan {nocte a) w5 1E s (Bl it a) - 696 45 741
Tam Kwok Wing e - 2,700 158 2,858
Kan Ka Hon (note b) ¥R (Fiitb) - 2,030 152 2,182
Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar B#IE - 1,500 75 1,575
Ho Chung Leung AR R - 1,600 120 1,720
Ho Sai Hou {note ¢) It B (Ff sk - - - -
Independent RUYFRTEE:
Non-Executive Director:
Yang Chuen Liang {note c) HER (T - - - -
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph 231z Rs 400 - - 400
Li Kwok Heem, John (note b) ZFE@#t (Kigkb) 150 - - 150
Sun Kai Dah, George HAHE 150 - - 150
700 22,466 1.1 24,054

Chevalier international Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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42 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 42 BEERBRITBAEZHME W@
MANAGEMENT {continued)
Directors’ emoluments {(continued) BHEBME (4
2007
—RBLE
Retirement
Salaries beneftits
Directors’ and other scheme
fee benefits contribution Total
ek Rik&
Exas H 18 F 2R k]
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT EE TR BETR
Executive Director: BITRE:
Chow Yei Ching JE 77 - 8,672 - 8,672
Kuok Hoi Sang ;i - 4,500 338 4,838
Tam Kwok Wing BE g - 2,100 158 2,258
Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar A IE - 1,500 75 1,575
Fung Pak Kwan (note a) Bi{aw (HEa) - 3,330 227 3,557
Kan Ka Hon (note b) M (ki Eb) - 2.230 126 2,356
Ho Chung Leung IDf::¥: - 1,800 99 1,899
Independent RUFRITHE:
Non-Executive Director:;
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph BB HE 400 - - 400
Li Kwok Heem, John (note by @3 (MikEb) 150 - - 150
Sun Kai Dah, George EHE 150 - - 150
700 24,132 1,023 25,855
Notes: Fid &% -

{a) Resigned on 1st October 2007,
(b) Resigned on 31st March 2008,
() Appointed on 1st April 2008.

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals include three (2007: three) directors
and the total emaluments paid to the remaining two highest paid
individuals for both years are as follows:

(a) RKR-FTRLE+A-RREI-
() R-IBRNEZA=+-—HARE:
00 RIZSNFHRA-BBE{E-

-Y=F=4.]

BERABALZME BE=ZREE(ZFF
HEZR) R BAMFRA T HERERS
e AL 2BMESR:

2008 2007
—RRNE —BRL+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind  F& - R ZHAER 4,252 4,122
Performance-based bonus ERRAEM 2L 1,992 1,592
Contributions to retirement scheme BAREZHEE 202 180
6,446 5,894

RABREEERAR |

—EINGEH
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42 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 2 EERSRTHAGSZHME o
MANAGEMENT (continued)
Employees' emoluments (continued) BEHMH 8
The emoluments of these two highest paid individuals fall within HEREBERHEZ AT ERSHIESATS
the foilowing bands. # Rl
2008 2007
—RRNnE ZFBLE
HK$'000 HK$°000
BEMTT i i
HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000 7% 2,500,001 72— % % 3,000,0007C 1 1
HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 % 3,000,001 7T — 5 ¥ 3,500,0007T - 1
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,0C0 A% 3,500,001 7% — 7 % 4,000,0007T 1 -
2 2
The above remuneration paid to Directors also represents only FTRmESEH M REERBE_RY
benefits paid to the Group's key management during the year ended NFZA=+—"BLFERAFRHEZEER
31st March 2008. B zEH-
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 43 HFAREE
At 31st March 2008, the Group had contingent liabilities in respect RZZRNFZA=+-0 FRERFREL
of guarantees issued for utilised borrowings in relation to: ZHRRzZEKARBE:
2008 2007
ZRBNE —RELE
HKS$'000 HK$’0C0
BYTx AT
Banking facilities granted to jointly ArHREHOCREZHEITER
controlled entities 321,900 95,950
Banking facilities granted to associates R FPBEQLFAZRITER 46,650 43,520
368,550 139,470

At 31st March 2008, the Company had contingent liabilities in
respect of guarantees issued for utilised borrowings in relation to:

R-BENFZRZ+—H -ARERKER
BRAFHZ ERZEARAREE:

2008 2007

—BRNnE —RRLE

HK$'000 HK$ 000

HBETR BT

Banking facilities granted to subsidiaries X THEB AR ZRITEH 952,283 665,811
Barking facilities granted to jointly FTHEEH R ZBTER

controlled entities 321,900 95,950

Banking facilities granted to asscciates  #H THRELFZRITEH 46,650 43,520

Performance bonds and demand bonds of B2 A EELAHITIZ
subsidiaries under certain contracts BHRBIREANRE 194,061 170,492
1,514,894 975,773

Chevaler International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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44 CAPITAL COMMITMENT 44 EXRER
The Group b §--3. |
(a) Subsidiaries (a) KWL T
2008 2007
—RB8NF —ERtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT R EETIT
Capital expenditures contracted BRTHHEBEITEMN
for but not provided in the financial BREMBB/RA
statements in respect of FIRZASRE
— acquisition of plant and equipment -BARE REH 2,495 5,952
— acquisition of !and and building -~ AL R 41,192 -
- acquisition of remaining interest -BA—fEBELaz
in an associated company (note) BT HEE (MR 136,171 138,000
179,858 143,952
Capital expenditures authorised but not MBmRASER
contracted in the financial statements ABFHRFHIEY
in respect of A A
- acguisition of plant and equipment -BAEEREH 16,729 664
- acquisition of land and building -BALBRDE 1,279,025 -
1,475,612 144 616
Note: fi3L:
Al 31st March 2008, the Group has commitied to acquire the W_SSNEZA=+-—-B-£58HAEMD
remaining 51% of the issued share capital of its associated company, — £ ®WI P = HSinochina Pacific Limited¥
sinochina Enterprises Limited ("SEL"} from Sinochina Pacific Limited, BH K Bt 4% 4 8] Sinochina Enterprises Limited
an independent third party. After that acquisition, SEL will become a (MSELI ) B TS 1% ZERTTRE - IR T
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. The consideraticn is based on i SELRLAREE 2 FHE QR IR AR
the forthcoming financial results of SEL and its subsidiaries and TORIESELE AR B O R ERMELRHETF
| associates for the year ending 31st December 2008. The total ENE+ A=+ HALFEIRERAR
i consideration 10 acquire the 100% of the issued share capital of SEL BMLE-BIOSEL 100%ZEBTREZ A
| {including HK$64 million paid in respect of the 49% already acquired) R (BB WARSEL 49% 2EBITRAZ
| shall not exceed HK$200 million, B ETI4B/E % 64,000,000 BT RERY
i 200,000,0007L =
: (b) Jointly controlled entities (b) HREREHER
The Group’s share of the capital commitment of its jointly FRMAEEARENER > EFES
controlled entiiies is as follows: W
2008 2007
—ReNE —ERLE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BWTR EBTT
Contracted for but not provided BEEOERER 216,724 146,813
Authorised but not contracted for D HEMEBREL 306,903 252,004
523,627 398,817
TOREARMEARAT | 4.
HERE e | 137
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45 OPERATING LEASES
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The Group as lessee

The Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of renting of
premises which fall due as follows:

KEHEE

SHEERREAA
AEEGETHERE TR ASAR
MARF R L2 REARSH ROESH
nF

2008 2007

Z28NE ZRRLE

HK$'000 HK$'000

EWTR EWTR

Within one year —ER 102,746 79,140
In the second to fifth year inclusive —ERAFA 128,150 88,443
Over five years AFHRE 7,674 6,941
238,570 174,524

The above lease commitments only include commitments for basic
renials, and do not include commitments for additional rental
payable (contingent rents), if any, which are to be determined
generally by applying pre-determined percentages to¢ future sales
less the basic rentals of the respective leases, as it is not possible o
determine in advance the amount of such additional rentals.

The Group as lessor

At the balance sheet date, investment properties and completed
properties for sale with a carrying value of approximately HK$925
million {2007: KK3$480 million) and HK$77 million {2007: HK§251
million) respectively were rented out under aperating leases. All of
the properties were leased out for periods ranging from one year
to five years. The future minimum lease payments receivable by the
Group under non-cancellable operating leases for each of the
following periods is as follows:

ERTTEBRANTENMMEERR FEEST
FEEREEFHG TREANMENES
(SREE) (WA ZERE —RIVAREH
EHEAMER RS He R FRARTER
SILEE -

FEMERBAA

REBR LS4 HEEH R DERDE
REFEeEDE 2 hkEBEIND AEE
925,000,000 (B B £ E : &K
480,000,0007C) B ¥ 77 000,000 (- B8
L FAEM251,000,0007T) ik R 2 HA
EFRA—EZRE-FEARRTIRB ZEH
HUHANERRENNSEEREWESEN
T

2008 2007

—ReNE —ERRtF

HKS'000 HK$°000

BT A¥TR

Within one year —FR 36,074 34,100
In the second to fifth year inclusive TERFRN 17,038 15,124
53,112 49,224
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{a)

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Share option scheme of the Company

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
by the shareholders pursuant to a resolution passed on 20th
September 2002 for the primary purpeose of providing the
participants with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in
the Company and to encourage participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The Scheme will
expire on 19th September 2012.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme and any other schemes is not permitted
to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date
of shareholders’ approval of the Scheme (the "Scheme Mandate
Limit”) or, if such 10% limit is refreshed, at the date of shareholders’
approval of the renewal of the Scheme Mandate Limit. The maximum
aggregate number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise
of all outstanding options granied and yet to be exercised under
the Scheme and any other share option schemes, must not exceed
30% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue from
time to time. The number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company then in issue, without
prior approval from the Company's shareholders. fach grant of
options to any director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
must be approved by independent Non-executive Directors. Where
any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director or any of their respective associates would
result in the shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options already granted and to be granted in excess of
0.1% of the Company's issued share capital and with a value in
excess of HK$5,000,000 in the 12-month period up to the date of
grant must be approved in advance by the Company's shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 30 days from the date of
grant, upen payment of HK$1 per grant. An option may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time during the
effective period of the Scheme to be notified by the board of
directors which shall not be later than 10 years from the date of
grant. The exercise price is determined by the Directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the highest of the closing price
of the Company's share on the date of grant, the average closing
price of the share on the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant, and the nominal value.

No options have been granted under the Scheme.

46 B AESTE
(a) FAFAZBREH Y

FATRERZBRESS (TR DA
B EF-FAA-TERARZREERR
HER TERHARARTEHERYNERE
ASRFzHEE BHDHLHEFHEERSEFL
AREMRBAEMNFAEN RWSEARAR
BEREHEFE-THEEN-_F—=-FNA
+hERW®-

BHEAHESESHBFABELEZBRENK
GHETEEEEDFERITRONEBER
ERGEHAMZ 0% ([T HEERR]) -3
REEHATHHGSEREEERZEI10%
REELEHE RE-BERESHEALR
HEEENRTEZBREE28ITH
MBTZEZROEYN THEEBBEQATH
BRTZIRID30%  REFRTRBE L HLHL
HORIA-—BEERTEAENAL ZER
EROGHAETHEMENEQRSBITZR
1% BFEMES THRARXEERFRZ
F-AERESEER Y ERITHE B E M
ERTERREBIERTHIREESA
FBMEACREZERE FUREERH
BRE-TEANGBEATFEFDOEEREE
R MEEMBETREETEAZ2ERRRG
BEERRZEBITRRZEO. 1% kA BME
K55S 000,000 ZFERBI AR ZRES
S .

BEAFRBHBEEEAZ+EARS TR
HEREE NS 1 TLEREET 2BR
EBRIETIRBAH S BERNTHBIZEER
WRAERNETE TEAMMENARE
Log FRERTHERASHEB MRS T
FTHETARRDARIZHBELRE B
DR AR B AR (AR L B HATE IR XX A e M T
G- AoaRPRRERLBMTAERSEH
ERTAOTEHETERADARM 2 EE
IEmmE Q-

¥R RIEL .

Rt amaRad
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46 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) a6 BWBRESR

(b) Share option scheme of Chevalier Pacific Holdings (b) EtZZERARLFZEBRETH
Limited FRFIZHBARIIR " BR-_F£hAA=-1+8
The share option scheme of a subsidiary of the Company, CPF FABBARE Bl ([HEiZE8er @) - HiER
{"CPHL Scheme") was adopted on 20th September 2002 and its MAELFZ B - ERRIERER T
terms are similar to the Company's Scheme. No options have been Ay i B el
granted under the CPHL Scheme.

47 RETIREMENT BENEFITS 47 EHKEF

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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The Group has established various retirement benefit schemes for
the benefit of its staff in Hong Kong and overseas. In Hong Kong,
the Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme which
is registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance
{the "ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the "MPF Scheme"”) established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control
of trustees. Employees who were members of the ORSO Scheme
priar to the establishment of the MPF Scheme were offered a choice
of staying within the ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF Scheme,
whereas all new employees joining the Group on or after 1st
December 2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme,

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5% of the
relevant payroll costs at a maximum of HK$1,000 per month to the
Scheme. The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions
from both employees and the Group at rates ranging from 5% to
7.5% of the employee’s basic salary, depending on the length of
service with the Group.

Where there are employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to
vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by the
Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions. At
31st March 2008, the total amount of {orfeited contributions, which
arose upon employees leaving the QRSO Scheme and which are
available to reduce the contributions payable in future years, was
HK$44,000 (2007: HK$87,000). The amount of forfeited
contributions utilised in this manner during the year was
HK$354,000 (2007: HK$634,000). At 31st March 2008,
contributions of HK$2,996,000 (2007: HK$2,015,000) due in respect
of the reporting period were paid over to the ORSO Scheme in
April 2008.

The Group also participates in the employee pension schemes in
countries or locations where the Group operates, The Group is
required to make monthly defined contributions at rates calculated
as a percentage of the monthly payroll.

FEEBRBTEREMEARY S ERKER
HE-EEE AREE2RMATHKZ ()
B OB RIRRE BHADD S M Z B R kW
(EHOMNEHED R (DIR-BFEEFES
ZREHMEHEHETERBERZRNNQ
BMEatm (MBI ldbnl
EHSRHAZAESRBRE LhERDAR
BERER-2MESH R BRBENEHIITST
REA—RRE BRERsLHNeHER
BEmfEsMEtd-mER-SREF+2
A-B&HMiE ARAREEQ -FELES
mEza-

HENSHBP BINARELERERSA
AMASKS%ETH -8 8 LR A% 1,000
TeELMEHBIP EERETNHIER
EERER NEBERIAMSHETS%E
Ho

LHSHHRAPRBSEFEINETRS
BrEXE4886 THELRENEEEHR
ZR-R-_FENEF=ZA=+—80 EHER

EMTEERIETASEN RNEBES

B 44,0007 (ZFBE -4 B %87,0007T) +
RAEFHEREEABRAZMEHRE A%
354,0007C (=R B4 % 634,0007%) < %
CTRENEEZ/=+—0 BHEMsEHE
ORI S EAAHEY2,996,000T (R_F
ENFHEAZR —FFCF #%2,015000
JL) *

FHEETSHTHBEER B - ARRRE
ZEBRAEHM-AREARARKER
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B SR E
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 48 BREALTZRS
Details of the material transactions entered into during the year REFEEHREREALZ?HEZSFHERT:
with related parties are as follows:
2008 2007
ZSRNE “ERLE
HK$'000 HK$ 000
BeTR T
Interest income from associates FEaBELRzHBRA 165 735
Interest income from jointly KEHAREFSREZ
controlled entities FRBA 1,257 2,900
Rental income from an associate EEBE T sHSRA 342 -
Purchases from an associate BEREARER 11,564 -
The remuneration of Directors, which is also considered to be key AEEEE (HETFRRACRETIEENE
management of the Group, during the year were disclosed in note BRE) ZHFHRRER2PER-
42.
EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE 49 HERARSHE

Pursuant to a share purchase agreement dated 16 May 2008 entered
into among the Company, CPT Belgium Holdings SPRL, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, and Sekisui Chemical Co., Ltd.
("Sekisui”), an independent third party, the Group conditionally
agreed to sell whereby Sekisui conditionally agreed to purchase
75% equity interest in CPT Chevalier Pipe Technologies GmbH (the
“CPT”) and certain of its subsidiaries {the "CPT Group”} at a
consideration of U5$37.5 million (approximately HK$292.5 million).
The completion of the transaction is conditional upon approval of
relevant regulatory bodies in place of operations of the disposed
entities. Also, the agreed consideration of transaction is subject to
the consolidated net asset value of the CPT Group being not less
than US3$29.5 million {(approximately HK$230.1 million) (the
“Minimum NAV") as at 31 March 2008, any shortfall shafl be
compensated by the Group (the "Compensation”).

Based on the Minimum NAV and the consideration of the purchase,
the Group has estimated the gain on disposal to be approximately
US$15.4 million (approximately HK$120.1 million). The actual gain
or loss resulting from the transaction however will be determined
based on the actual consolidated net asset value of the CPT Group
as the date of completion of the transaction with adjustment on
the Comgensation, if any.

# 1 4 ] - CPT Belgium Holdings SPRL (&
E@MZ72AMBRR) BRAKESIEKRS
# (K] BRAYSE=ZAIR-_2FNER
A+~ BiTuzBARBES ~EEBFEYT
mELEmMMAkEESREHRECPT
Chevalier Pipe Technologies GmbH ( TCPT])
EHEFHBLE ([CPTHRE]) 75%ZRAE
H R H537.500000FE T (MEMN
292,500,0007T) ¥ S AFHHLHENRN
BENMAENEEREHLEEASTR-F
B OCPTEER-—FFNFZA=+—BZ&H
S HAEFAERTLH29,500,000Em EER
#)#:%230,100,000T) ([REEZEFHE))
(FEBEREmsBEELHEm(ImE )
RESsHBEROMIBEM-

REREESESERKRMAR FEMBTTE
HERE 7 WEHA15400000F T (HER
120,100,0007T) - Z X B E L 7 RIS 2k ol
EEEIAECPTHENZ SRR A HER
By rNREEEEFE

HEREBEAMAR | 4
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50 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 50 BREEL 2B E

2008 2007
—88NF —ERRtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BETRT
Profit before taxation BEangn 411,970 408,050
Adjustmentis for: HE:
Share of results of associates PR i Bk 2 5] $e 41 (27,258} (5,263)
Share of results of jointly controlled entities ERih ARG R R4 (2,909) 3,159
Interest from bank deposits RAFRZH2HWA (16,420) (14,263)
interest from amounts due from associates FE M B & A TR IR 2 FR WA (165) (735)
Interest from amounts due EEERERERBRZTBEA
from jointly controlled entities (1,257) (2,900)
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts MITEZREXIZHE 90,511 96,391
Interest on convertible bonds wholly HAERAFAZ
repayable within five years DE-Y: §ivg )N 35,532 25,965
Dividend income from listed securities EEHZBEBEKA (11,079) {9,260)
Depreciation Ei ) 89,156 86,429
Amortisation of other intangible assets HitvBRAERY 3,986 3,603
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEYE BERAHRE
plant and equipment and BEAHEEXREEE
prepaid lease payment /(U ag) 1,438 (7,406}
Net loss on disposal of HERBADEZD
investment properties B8 653 -
Increase in fair value of REMEZ DR
investment properties # 5N (387.263) (53,362)
Fair value gain on derivative component of THERHAHFTETIAERZ
convertible bonds DR EWE {23,912) (26,489)
Transaction costs related to derivative HUBAROHTETASG
component of convertible bonds HRZZSHE - 2,029
Gain on disposal of jointly controlled entities HeEfRES SR WE - (19,714)
Decreasef(increase) in fair value of FEMBIAZOR
derivaiive financial instruments b (1) 24,332 (22,222)
Decreasef(increase) in fair value of REBERELCAERED
investments at fair value through BEZARERD
profit or loss () 87,723 (90,179}
Reversal of provision for bad debt BESEER (7.770} (7,636)
Amoriisation of prepaid lease payments RN BEETRBH 11,783 11,743
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments FEYRZEMEARE
on properties for sale i ] 2,613 1,770
{Write backywrite down of properties FEME(BR) /BEE
for sale to net realisable value AIRRAEE {11,831) 10,058
Write down of inventories to BEFEZE2R
net realised value FE 1,315 3,674
{Write back of¥provision for impairment A EANREAESE
loss on prepaid lease payments (Ba) /B (2,637) 1,628
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AEENREZME
investments B8 835 1,473
Impairment loss on other intangibie assets HttmAEZHERSIE - 2,157
Impairment loss on property. M -BEREMHZAME
plant and equipment iz 7.415 13,754
Impairment loss on goodwill BmEzHELSR - 5,000
Operating cash flows before movements BEALRENZ
in working capital BEESRLE 276,761 417,454

Chevalier International Hdldings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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50 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 50 REEEZRE @
(continued)
2008 2007
—R]2NE —RBLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETE EWBT T
Changes in working capital HHESED
Increase in inventories TERT A (35,051) (45,975)
Decrease in properties for sale FmUMBERL 64,634 43,001
Increase in debtors, deposits and BRER-FHESR
prepayments B ZEEm (260,955) (86.517)
Decrease in amounts due from customers MEANIEEMERPREZ
for contract work BERY 31,604 22,059
Net decrease in investments at fair value RIBXMEELAEEEREN
through profit or loss wRAARL 367,348 229,596
Increasef{decrease) in creditors, EAER FARER
deposits and accruals RiIER A, (R 119,505 {72,078)
Decreasa in unearned insurance premiums FpHRERBERD {8,103) (8,435)
Decrease in outstanding insurance claims RRRB MRS (39,765) {29,714)
Increase in amounis due to associates FE o B 8 0 G bR X1 AN 2,497 1,006
Increase in amounts due to customers HeHIBEEMEBEREMZ
for contract work R 52,568 71,181
Increasef(decrease) in deferred income B A (F L) 3,112 (1,958)
Exchange difference fEH e 21,302 10,525
595,457 550,125
RrRBREHRLS
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51 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

51 TEHEB A

Place or Issued and Effective percentage of
country of paid up share issued share capital/
incorporation or capital/ registered capital
registration/ Class of registered  Number of  held by the Company
Name of company operation shares capital shares Directly  Indirectly  Principal activities
ERTR ELAREERARE
2R/ BERZ/ EXidE Y §
k] BEIEER BaEA ERBX Be#E BE =k TREE
% %

Chevalier (Aluminium Hong Kong Crdinary HK$2 2 - 100 Supply and
Engineering) g g AL installation of
Hong Kong Limited aluminiurm building

EH(BIR) materials and
FRERAE curtain walls

BUREHA
EEREAZ
HARER

Chevalier (Aluminium Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 100 Supply and
Engineering) Limited Bk 2l %100 installation of

ZL{BIR)ARLA Deferred HK$2 2 - 100 aluminiym building

g ‘ML materials and

curtain walls

PHREEHA

REREEZ

HEREE

Chevalier Automobiles Inc. Canada Common cso1 200 - 100 Szle and servicing
nEX B3 10MNEAT of automobiles

AEHBER

43

Chevalier {8uilding Supplies Hong Kong Crdinary HK$100 100 - 100 Supply and
& Engineering) Limited &# Bl #%I00 installation of

At (BUIE) Deferred HK$2 2 - 100 building materials
NG| g EX and trading of

forklifs trucks
and generators
REMHUR
ETER
ZERILA
FRRNS

Chevalier {Chengdu) Mainland Not RMB250,000,000 Not - 100 Investment holding
Investment Management China applicable AE%250,000,000T  Applicable and providing
Limited (note 1) TEAM THA TEA management service

Et(ma) hage
HRAE (M)

Chevalier International Hetdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

51 FEME 28 4

Place or Issued and Effective percentage of
country of paid up share issued share capital/
incorporation or capital/ registered capital
registration/ Class of registered Number of  held by the Company
Name of company operation shares capital shares Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
ERTE ALBRRECRIRE
2R/ E& MR/ nERREAH
LAER BEIBR Rit K5 ifEx KORKE HE [} 3 TERY
% %
Chevalier Chrysler Canada Common 4101 200 - 100 Sale and servicing
Inc. nEX R 10 NEATR of automobiles
HEHERSERE
Chevalier Civil Engineering Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 100 Civil engineering
{Hong Kong) Limited g B # %1007 b R
Bt AITH
(ER)ERRRF
Chevelier {Civil Engineering) Hong Kong Qrdinary HK$49,991,002 49,991,002 - 100 Civil engineering
Limited Eit @ /E%49,991,0027 A1
At (tARIE) Deferred HK$24,964,002 24,964,002 - 100
BRA ER E%24.954002T
Chevalier Cold Storage and Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 75 Operation of
Logistics Limited i Ba L a cold storage
Bt R8hRERaA warehouse and
logistic
HRLALE
Rt
Chevalier {Constructicn) Hong Kang Ordinary HK$60,500,000 60,500,000 - 996  Building constructicn
Company Limited ik =@ #%60,500,000% and maintenance
Et(BR)ARLA BTRERRR
Chevalier Construction Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 100 - 100 Building construction
{Hong Xong) Limited gk ER % 1,000 [ R 43
EIRE(3E) Deferred HK$10,000 1,000 - 100
BRAE 2 #% 10,0001 :
Chevalier Devalopment (5) Singapore Ordinary $$2,500,000 2,500,000 - 100 Property investment
Ple. Ltd. ging EA 25000005 MK T nEE R
Chevalier Enviro Services, In, Philippines Comman PesoB, 750,000 87,500 - 100 Trade or business of
¥2E ER 8,750,000 waste disposal
FRuHE REFNRREE
ﬁimﬂﬁMﬁﬁﬁa—

_BERNEEH
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51 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 51 ZEMERQE )
Place or ~  Issued and Effective percentage of
country of paid up share issued share capital/
incorporation or capital/ registered capital
registration/ Class of registered Number of  held by the Company
Name of company operation shares capital shares Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
ERTR XLABACEORE
Hf /g% BRRE/ ASARARE
RS- ERERF K& ERmRx  ROMA ER B & TEER
% %
Chevalier (E & M Hong Kong Ordinary HK$69,200,000 69,200,000 - 100 Installation of
Contracting) Limited & BE  E'%69,200,0007 electrical and
At (BRIB)ARAT mechanical
eguipment and
pravision of project
management service
ZEBRR
BR#ERR
EEER
Chevalier Engineering {S) Singapore Crdinary $$500,000 500,000 - 100 Installation and
Pte. Lid, gk B&  500,000% i mainienance of lifts
EERREARS
Chevatier (Envirotech) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$127,600,000 127,600,000 - 100 Environmental
E+CREZM)ERAA g i@ #%127,600,000% engineering
RIETE
Chevalier (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$143,085,000 572,340,000 i00 - Marketing,
Ef(FR)ER2A Fi# BB /B%143,085,0007 installation and
maintenance of
lifts, escalators and
air-conditioning
systems, supply and
servicing of power
equipment and
industrial equipment
BE-ZRERE
AR a¥BkR
RAEE MR
BARIZRE
Chevalies {Insurance Brokers) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 100 - Insurance brokerage
Limited % BR 7 %1,000,0007C BRES
Hi(RREM)B5RAA
Chevalier Insurance Hong Kong Ordinary HK$200,000,600 200,000,000 100 - Insurance
Company Limited BiE E®  #%200,000,000% underwriting
ATRRERAT RREH
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

51 TBHEBQF @

Place or Issued and Effective percentage of
country of paid up share issued share capital/
incorporation or capital/ registered capital
registration/ Class of registered Number of  held by the Company
Name of tompany operation shares capital shares Directty Indirectly Principal activities
ERAOR FARARHELRTRE
300§ 3 BERES BERREMAN
LHER WREAR R EH gmEx  KROHE EE [} TREY
% %
Chevalier International U.S.A Common U5%4,012,000 4,012,000 - 100 Grocery irading
{USA) Inc. £4 gt 4,012,000% 7 BEES
Chevalier iTech Services Limited Hong Kong Qrdinary HK$2 2 - 160 Trading and
HiBBIRARAE &E =H BNIT senvicing of
computer and
busingss machines
BBEEHERR
Aakke
Chevalier iTech Thai Limited Thailand Ordinary BAHT18,980,000 189,800 - 100 Trading of
{nate 3) F6 ER 18,980,000F & computer and
(RHif3) Preference BAHT4,020,000 10,200 - 100 business machines
B% - 1,020,000 RERBE
BEHE
Chevalier Lifts Engineering Mainland Not RMB19,000,000 Not - 100 Installation and
{Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (pote 3} China applicable A E%19,000,000  applicable maintenance of lifts
REBHIE RN Gl fo TER 73R HEBRZER
BR2R(WED REERE
Chevalier (Network Solutions) Kong Kong Ordinary HK$2 ? - 100 Network systems
Limited & 58 AL and solution
Hi(BEHB)IHRRT services
BEERE
HiEE®
Chevalier Network Solutions Thailand Ordinary 8AKT15,000,000 150,000 - 100 Trading of
Thai Limited 58 351 15,000,000 . telecommunication
equipment
TAREHES
Chevalier {OA) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100,000 100,000 - 100 Trading of
Rt (HEER)ERDA Bk "ER ¥ % 100,0007¢ computer and
office equipment
. and provision of
repair and
maintenance service
RHEHLE
REEAR
RitEs
REEE
H+-ERSEARTA

—UPNEER
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51 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

51 FEME X3

Place or Issued and Effective percentage of
country of paid up share issued share capital/
incorporation or capital/ registered capital
registration/ Class of registered Number of  held by the Company
Name of company operation shares capital shares Directly  Indirectly  Principal activities
EBOER ARRARAEROGEX
BER/E% BERX/ gHBRSES
L8R SEYER EREH BB BORE R o} TERE
% %

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Bermuda/ Q:dinary  HK$107,770,008.50 215,540,017 55.14 - Investment helding
Limited) (listed on Hong Kong §@ B RRZR
The Stack Fxchange of aRig/ 107,770,008.507C
Hong Kong Limited) Bk

HiZonBEaR2AE
(REEHARBH
BARAALM)

Chevalier Pacific Limited Hong Keng Ordinary HK$200,000,000 200,000,000 - 55.14 Investment holding

ELZGHBLA gx B@ % %200,000,0007 ' REER

Chevalier Pipe Rehabilitation Hong Keng Ordinary HX$43,400,000 43,400,000 - 100 Design and
Hong Kong Limited F# BR % 43,400,0001 construction for

HiFiEBE : flushing water,
ERERLA cooling water,

gas, sewages and
drainage pipelines
RitREERK
AKk-RE
BKEKREE

Chevalter Property Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 100 Property
Manzgement Limited 5 £ A%00n management and

HITENXERERDA Deferred HK$1,002 1,002 - 100 sequrity services

;413 A%002 MEERR

REEH

Chevalfer (Satellink} Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$365,002 365,002 - 100 Installation of
EL(HERMIERLA 54 ER % 365,0027 satellite antannae
ERHESHAE

Chevalier Singzpore Holdings Singapore Ordinary $$11,250,000 1$2,500,000 - 100 Marketing,
Pte. Ltd. Fimg Ea 11,250,000 installation and

B s Eae i A Aimgn maintenance of
AR 27 lifts and escalators

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2008
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place or
country of
incorporation or

Issued and
paid up share
capital/

51 TEMB LR @

Effective percentage of
issued share capital/
registered capital

registration/ Class of registered Number of  held by the Company
Name of company operation shares tapital shares Directly  (ndivectly  Principal activities
BRAR ARAREERTRX
BA/ER #zRx/ EAiEEY §:3
DEER BERAR B EREE KOHHA E# Mg EX:3 1]
% %
Chevalier (Travel Agency) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,500,000 15,000 - 100 Travel agency
Limited BA & 7 %1,500,0007 mERE
REBEBEERAE
Chevalier {Macau) Limited Macau Ordinary Marcau Patacas 100 - 100 Instatlation and
E+ (AR AR 2T AF £a 100,000 maintenance of lifts
100,0008P1 7T ARBER
REBEBRE
CPC Construction Hong Keng Hong Kong Ordinary HK$200 2 - 100 Building
Limited &i 28 %2007 construction ang
HtEREFRERA2T Deferred HK$25,936,200 259,362 - - civil engineering
£R  EM25936,200% BFRER
TAIR
CPT Asia Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$230,000,000 230,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
H+-EBHRTHER L E@ E%230.000,0007 and trading of
BRAA pipelining materials,
machinery and
eguipment
RAKRROS
TEZNH
BRERREHS
Elevator Parts Engineering Hong Kong Ordinary HX$400,000 40,000 - 100 Maintenance of lifts
Company Limited HE BB &% 400,000 and escalatars
BEIEARAT FEREEDY
BERREERE
Forth Bridge Company Limited Hong Kong Qrdinary HK$20 2 - 100 Property investment
&t R ik P hikd
Deferred HK$10,000 1,000 - 100
Rt % 10,0007
Full Ascent Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 75 Property investment
RAZEFEAA Fit 3 BN hERA
Futex Development Limited Hong Koag Ordinary HK$1,000 1,000 - 100 Property investment
THERARLA Ei# B E%1,000T and development
BERERER
EIERENMGROE

ZRTNEES
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51

Chevalier International Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

51 EEBME L E

Place or Issued and Effective percentage of
country of paid up share issued share capital/
incorporation or capital/ registered ¢apital
registration/ Class of registered Number of  held by the Company
Name of company aperation shares capital shares Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
ERHER XLARHCRTRE
HE /g8 BERE/ CELE Y
R BRERER RiEH SREX BR4BE BB 5§ 3 TEEHR
% %
Gold Express Oevelapment Hong Kong Qrdinary HK$100 100 - 100 Property development
Limited EE: ER BRI007T LRER
LABREMAA Deferred HK$2 2 - 100
(33 BEIT
Goldyork Investment Limited Hong Kong Qrdinary HKS2 2 - 100 Property investment
£REREERLA Ex: i §i] A¥In NEER
Goodkent Limited Kong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 100 Property development
) il E¥ 1007 NEEE
Deferred HKY2 2 - 100
3 ¥
Gaod Process Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$149 143 100 - Propery development
BUaRow it g 211497 MEYR
Leferred HK$51 51 - 100
i3 BESIT
livjiang Chevalier Hotel & Travel Mainland Not RMB25,00C,000 Not - 100 Hotel operation
Co., Lid. (note 1) China applicable  ARE%125,0000007T  applicable SEEERE
NIETAEREERLA PEAY THER TEH
(Hfakn)
KMG Pipe Technologies GmbH Germany Ordinary Euro25,000 2 - 100 Pipe-line engineering
# BR 25,0008 # and maintenance,
rehabilitation and
construction of
pipelines, including
sewaqe, cleaning,
gas and water
pipelines, and
civil and structural
engineering
BiEREREH
ERIR
(RERk-ER-
HAREXK
RRETK
EERIR)
Lac Kar Investment Company Heng Kong Ordinary HK$3,600,000 3,600,000 - 100 Property investment
Limited i B j2%3,600,0007 LERA

NBEEARAA

Annual Report 2008
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51 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES {continued)

51 FEME QT &

Place or Issued and Effective percentage of
country of paid up share issued share capital/
incorporation or capital/ registered capital
registration/ Class of registered Number of  held by the Company
Name of company operation shares capital shares Directly  Indirectly  Principal activities
ERTR ELARECRIORS
Li3iVd ¥ BERx/ ZuREERR
LARER BERBER g Kl HREE  RORE E# i TERR
% %
Lucky Fine Limited Hong Kecng Qrdinary HK$2 2 - 100 Property investment
BEERAF Ex Ei ik P and share dealing
mEEEREERE
Macleh {Chevalier) Limited Canada Common C$101,100 10,100 - 100 Property invesiment
nEx ER O10LI000EAT and hotal operation
nERAR
BRAEEE
Macont Developments Inc. Canada Common €§1,000 1,000 - 100 Praperty investment
mEx BB 1,000MEXT hERE
Matterhorn Properties Limited British Virgin Ordinary Usst 1 - 100 Froperty investment
Islands/ §: V&R hERE
Hong Xong
3134
BR/ER
NordiTube Technologies SE Sweden/ Ordinary SEK49,800,000 99,600,000 - 94.77 Supply PHOENIX
Belgium =gt 49,800,000 process for pipe
BRI R R H rehabilitation
projects
it ®PHOENIXfE &
NIREHRS
fEEEEN
HEZH
Orientat Sharp timited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$360,000,000 360,000,000 - 100 Property development
BPERAT E% EBR E%360,000,0007C k3953
Defarred HK$51 k] - 100
. $14 ARSI
Pacific Coffee Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$77,355 77,355 - 55.14 Trading of cofiee
Fik EB BT I55T products, operation
of cofiee shops
and provisicn of
mainienance services
DFERERR
QEUEER
RtEERE
Pacific Coffee Company (5) Singapare Qrdinary $$100,000 100,000 - 55.14 Operation of
Pte Ltd g @ 1000009 BT coffee shaps
a4y -
ALtERSmMER LA

“RRNEFFH
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES {continued)

51 EEWEAS 4

Place or Issued and Effective percentage of
country of paid up share issued share capital/
incorporation or capital/ registered capital
registration/ Class of registered Number of  held by the Company
Name of company operation shares capital shares Directly  Indirectly  Principal activities
2BHGR XREARAEERGRE
HR/ER AzNx/ EEETES
LAEH HELER BGaE SREX KHEMBE HiE & TEER
% %
PCC Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary KK$2 2 - 55.14 Operation of
Fik gt BT coffee shops
g ol
PCC Investment () Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 55.14 Operating of
g8 5@ AN coffee shops
ARNEE
Peak Gain Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20 2 - 100 Property investment
BEERAE & Ef %20 hERR
Proud Rich Limited {note 4) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20 2 - 100 Property investment
BEHR DR (i) EE EA E%B207T hikE
Deferred HK$20 2 - 100
(313 E% 207
Rib Loc Group Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary A$14,992,299 28,619,521 - 76.88 Franchising,
Ei L3 14,992,299 7T manufacturing angd
marketing of products
and systems
in the pipe
renovation markel,
manufacture and
marketing of
arr conditioning
ducts and component
REEHFTH
FERRESZ
BirEe -HER
ik EE
SRRARSHZ
HERTEEE
Shanghai Chevalier Lifts Mainland China Not US$1,065,000 Not - 100 Installation and
Engineering Co., Lid. (note 1) D EAK applicable 1,065000% 7  applicable maintenance of Iifts
LBATBRIEARAA TRAE TH#A ARBIZERE
(B BERE
CPT Chevalier Pipe Technolcgies Germany Ordinary EUR11,500,000 4 - 100 Investment holding
GmbH ZE ER 11,500,0008 7T REFR
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51 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 51 TEHB AT
Place or Issued and Effective percentage of
country of paid up share issued share capital/
incorporation or capital/ registered capital
registration/ Class of registered Number of  held by the Company
Name of company operation shares capital shares Directly  Indirectly  Principal activities
EBTR ZRARECRTRE
BE/EE ks BERREAL
ARER HEDRAR R8N ifkB%x EKOEE HE Mg TERR
% %
Shanghai Chevalier Property Mainland China Not U5$3,650,000 Not - 100 Property
Management Co., Lid. WX applicable 3,650,000  applicable management and
{note 1) @A a8 providing property
LEETHREEARBRAR management
(Bzxn) cansultation
WEERER
RUEDEEREN
Shanghai Chevalier Trading Maialand China Not U5$1,000,000 Not - 100 Trading of lifts,
Co., ltd. {note 1) dE R applicable 1,000,000  applicable escalators, efectrical
IEEIEAHRAR(HED TEA @A and mechanical
equipment
ARB-EBHR
BBERHS
Shanghai Chenmain Real Mainland Not Us$18,000,000 Not - 80 Property development
Estate Development China applicable 13,000,000  applicable and investment
Co. Lud. {note 2) TEAL @R TEA NEERERE
IHHRERERR
AR 2R (HiE2)
Sup Aswin Limited Thailand Ordinary BAHT15,000,000 150,000 - 100 Property investment
g2 53 15,000,000% £ nERR
Talent Luck Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$270,000,000 270,000,000 - 100 Property development
BEAZHRAT Bk EH #%270,000,0007 and investment
Deferred HK$51 51 - 100 hiGERBR
314 EMSIT
|
} Union Peatl Development Hong Kong Ordinary HK§2 2 - 100 Property investment
i Limited & 5B BN mERA
i BHRERARDA
|
Winfield Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 i - 100 Property investment
BHERARLA S HE BEIT hERd
Xinyang Chevalier Hotel Mainland Not AMB74,142,781 Not - 70 Hote! operation
Co., . {note 2) China applicable AE%74142,781%  applicable HEAEER
EHRETXBEERAT PR AR ER L THHM
| (M2
|
| REHIERABESRAS Mainland Not RMB40,000,000 Not - 100 Hotel operation
{note 1} China applicable A R%40,000,0007T  applicable BERELEY
| (1) BEAL FigH T
I
AERMEERNARDE | 4,
ZEENEFH
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51 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

51 TEBME QT (@)

Place or Issued and Effective percentage of
country of paid up share issued share capital/
incorporation or capital/ registered capital
registration/ Class of registered Number of  held by the Company
Name of company operation shares capital shares Directly  Indirectly  Principal activities
ERITR FLARACRTRE
BHh/ g% BRREx/ CELILEY E
LREH BERBR BRHRH HmEx  REMA iR B IBRE
% %
BHERRATRER Mainland Not HK$30,000,000 Not - 90.1 Investment and
FR DA {note 2) Ching applicable /&% 30,000,000  applicable providing
(B PR THEH AH managament service
RAR
RUEBRE
REVETELERERE Mainland China Not  RMB200,000,000 Not - 96  Property development
BRIELHA HERE applicable AR%  applicable LRELR
THER 200,000,0007T AR
757040 Ontario Limited Canada Common cs1o 10 - 100 Property investment
ngx g ()Y ELS
Notes: Bt

{1} Established in the Mainland China as wholly foreign cwned enterprises.

(2) Established in the Mainland China as sinc-foreign owned equity joint

ventures.

{3 Preference shares are 10% non-curnulative and every four preference
shares of this company carry one vote.

(4)  All deferred shares are non-voting and practically have no rights to
pariicipate in any distribution upoen winding up.

Chevalier tnternatignal Holdings timited

Annual Report 2008
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52 PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

52 EEBRE QT

Place or Effective percentage
country of of issued capital held
incorporation/ Class of by the Company
Name of associate operation shares held indirectly Principal activities
FoAMEREe
ERP- ¥ ERTRER
BELARHE i M E R B 4 8 5l BTN § TEER
%
K2 Printing Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 49 Property investments
EENHER A &HE TR MERE
Yue Xiu Concrete Company Hong Keng Ordinary 25 Manufacturing and
Limited && HH provision of concrete
HERRIERLA FERREHERL
Sinochina Enterprises Limited British Virgin Ordinary 49 Investment holding
lslands/ T RERER
Hong Kong
HEEER
e EE
BB REESFR LA Mainfand China Not applicable 36 Trading of motor
o B A it @A vehicles and
provision of
maintenance service
RERSREHAERY
MAZERYEHAEHE Mainland China  Not applicable 15.2 Trading of motor
RHEAEE QR B A i TEH vehicles and
provision of
maintenance service
MEESRRBEA#RRS

All the associates are incorporated and the Group's entitlement to
share in the profit or loss in these associates is in praportion to its

ownership interest.

FEFIOHBE A ZBANRBRENER
BEESZLANE MAEHELAERE
AN

HEtHMmEMARLF

“ETNFER
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53 PRINCIPAL JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES 53 TEHBEZHEHE
Place or Effective percentage
country of of issued share capital/
incorporation Form of registered share capital
Name of jointly or registration/ Class of business  held by the Company
controlled entity operation shares held structure indirectly Principal activities
xaEMERE
B, ERTRER
HERSTCXEE HEREE Rty BEELHBER &E 1 AR 5 1 24 TEXE
%
tam Weo & Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Incorporated 50 Civil engineering
BEREEERA EE EH T TATHE
Lam Woo Construction Limited Hong Keng Ordinary Incorporated 50 Building maintenance
BEREERAA ks g i BFRE
RINEL e EBEME Mainland China  Not applicable Sino-foreign 46 Property development
FREERLE (note) o B 9 3 THEA owned equity MERE
(HaE) jeint venture
AR ERE
AR E i E Mainland China  Not applicable Domestic 44 Property development
HEBEER R HhE A TER enterprise MERE
REREE
KEBEITERERER Mainiand China  Not applicable  Wholly foreign 49 Property development
HB QA = E i @A owned MERRE
enterprise
HERERE

Note: The Group shares 50% in the profit or loss of the jointly controlled
entity.

Except the above-mentioned, the Group’s entitlement to share in
the profit or loss of the remaining jointly controlled entities is in
proportion to its ewnership interest,

54 COMPARATIVE FIGURES 54

Certain of the comparative figures have been reciassified to conform
to the current year presentation.

1 56 Chevalier International Holdings Limited
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THIS CIRCULAR IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in doubt as to any aspect of this circular or as to the action 1o be taken, you should consult your
stockbroker or other registered dealer in securities, bank manager, solicitor, professional accountant or other

professional adviser.

If you have seld or transferred all your shares in Chevalier International Holdings Limited. you should at once
hand this circular and the enclosed proxy form to the purchaser or transferee or to the bank, siockbroker or other
agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected for transmission to the purchaser or transferee,

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this circular, makes no

representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this circular.

I CHEVALIER =

CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HTEREREBER2F"

{Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stock Code: 025)

Registered Office
Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street
Hamilton, HM 12
Bermuda

Executive Directors

CHOW Yei Ching {Chairman and Managing Director)
KUOK Hoi Sang (Vice Chairman and Managing Director)
TAM Kwok Wing (Deputy Managing Director)

CHOW Vee Tsung, QOscar

HO Chung Leung
Principal Place of Business

HO Sai Hou
22nd Floor .
Independent Non-Executive Directors Chevalier Commercial Centre. "
CHOW Ming Kuen, Joseph 8 Wang Hoi Road T ; :r::s'
SUN Kai Dah, George Kowloon Bay T3
YANG Chuen Liang, Charles Hong Kong "";‘I' JOta 3
. T T T
30th July, 2008 L o=~ 2
i F:r,; L . ?
To the Shareholders m -
SN~ r:“""-
Dear Sir/Madam, S ! CJ

PROPOSALS RELATING TO
RE-ELECTION OF RETIRING DIRECTORS
GENERAL MANDATES TO ISSUE SHARES AND
REPURCHASE SHARES

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

INTRODUCTION

The Directors wish to seek the approval of shareholders to re-elect the retiring directors, to obtain general
mandates to the Directors of the Company to issue and repurchase shares of HK$1.25 each in the share capital of
the Company (the “Share(s)").

This circular is to provide the shareholders with all the information reasonably necessary to enable them to
make an informed decision on whether to vote for or against the resolutions as mentioned herein and which, inter

alia, will be dealt with at the annual general meeting of the Company to be held at 22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial
Centre, 8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong on Friday. 26th September, 2008 at 10:30 a.m. (the “2008

Annual General Meeting”).

*  For identification purpose only




RE-ELECTION OF RETIRING DIRECTORS

In accordance with Bye-law 95 and 115 of the Bye-laws of the Company, Messrs HO Sai Hou and YANG

Chuen Liang, Charles who were appointed as an Executive Director and an Independent Non-Executive Director
respectively on Ist April, 2008, will hold office until the 2008 Annual General Meeting and shall then be eligible
for re-clection at the meeting. Ordinary Resolution will therefore be proposed at the 2008 Annual General Meeting
to re-elect Mr HO and Mr YANG as Directors of the Company. In accordance with Bye-law 112 of the Bye-laws of
the Company, Mr SUN Kai Dah, George. who has been longest in office since his last election, will retire by
rotation at the 2008 Annual General Meeting and being eligible. offer himself for re-election. Qrdinary Resolution
will therefore be proposed at the 2008 Annual General Meeting to re-elect Mr SUN as Director of the Company.
Pursuant to Rule 13.74 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange’) (the “Listing Rules™), the details of such Directors are set out below:—

1.

Mr HO Sai Hou, aged 42, was appeinted as an Executive Director and Company Secretary on 1st April,
2008 and is also an Executive Director and Company Secretary of Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
(“CPHL"™) (Stock Code: 508). a public company listed on the Stock Exchange. He joined Chevalier Group in
2005 and is also a director of certain companies of the Group and CPHL Group. He is responsible for
management of Chevalier Group's accounting and treasury. corporate finance and company secretarial
activities. He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr Ho holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences
Degree in Accounting from The University of Hong Kong and completed his EMBA with The China Europe
International Business School in 2007. Previously. Mr Ho was the Chief Financial Officer and an executive
director of Van Shung Chong Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1001).

Save as disclosed above and as at 24th July, 2008, being the latest practicable date prior to the printing of
this circular (the “Latest Practicable Date™), Mr Ho has not held any directorship in any listed public
companies in the last three years and does not hold any position in any member of the Group nor does he
have any relationship with any other Directors, senior management, substantial shareholders or controlling
shareholders of the Company or its respective associates. He does not have any interests in the shares of the
Company or its respective associates which are required to be disclosed under Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFQO”). There is neither any service
contract between the Company and Mr Ho nor any specified term for the length or proposed length of service
with the Company in respect of the directorship. Mr Heo is subject 1o retirement by rotation at least once
every three years at the annual general meeting of the Company since last re-election in accordance with the
Company's Bye-laws. No director’s annual emoluments were paid to Mr Ho during the year ended 31st
March. 2008, Mr Ho’s 2008/09 annual emoluments will be determined by the Remuneration Committee of
the Board with reference to the Company’s performance and profitability, as well as remuneration benchmark
in the industry and the prevailing market conditions.

Mr YANG Chuen Liang, Charles J.F., aged 49, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director,
chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Commitiee of the Company on st
April, 2008. He is a qualified accountant and company secretary of Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co.,
Ltd. (Stock Code: 8217) which is listed on the Stock Exchange. Previously, he was the Chief Financial
Officer and Director of Hong Kong Asia Television Limited. Mr Yang is a partner of S. Y. Yang & Company.
Practising firm of Accountants and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr Yang obtained a Master Degree in Business
Administration from The City University London in 1983,

Mr Yang was appointed as Justice of the Peace by the Hong Kong SAR Government (“HKSAR”) in 2004. He
was selected as “Quistanding Accountant Ambassador” by the Hong Koag Institute of Certified Public
Accountants in 2004, He is currently a member of Hubei CPPCC. Mr Yang is the Chairman of Admisstons,
Budget and Allocations Committee and a Director of The Community Chest. He is also a member of the
HKSAR Chinese Medicine Council and Partnership Fund For The Disadvantaged.

Save as disclosed above and as at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr Yang has not held any directorship in any
listed public companies in the last three years and does nol hold any position in any member of the Group
nor does he have any relationship with any other Directors, senior management. substantial shareholders or
controlling shareholders of the Company or its respective associates. He does not have any interests in the
shares of the Company which are required to be disclosed under Part XV of the SFO. There is neither any
service contract between the Company and Mr Yang nor any specified term for the length or proposed length
of service with the Company in respect of the directorship. Mr Yang is subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years at the annual general meeting of the Company since last re-election in accordance
with the Company's Bye-laws. Mr Yang is entitied to an annual emoluments of HK$150,000 which is
determined by the Remuneration Commitiee of the Board with reference to the Company's performance and
profitability, as well as remuneration benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market conditions.

Mr SUN Kai Dah, George, aged 68, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director and a
member of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company on 31st March 2006. He has
extensive experience in business management. He was the founder of Zindart Limited, a company incorporated
in 1978 and listed on the United States NASDAQ. He has retired from the position of Chief Executive
Officer of Zindart Limited since 1998.




Save as disclosed above and as at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr Sun has not held any directorship in any
listed public companies in the last three years and does not hold any position in any member of the Group
nor does he have any relationship with any other Directors, senior management, substantial shareholders or
controlling shareholders of the Company or its respective associates. He does not have any interests in the
shares of the Company which are required to be disclosed under Part XV of the SFO. There is neither any
service contract between the Company and Mr Sun nor any specified term for the length or proposed length
of service with the Company in respect of the directorship. Mr Sun is subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years at the annual general meeting of the Company since last re-election in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-laws. The director’s annual emoluments of HK$150.000 were paid 10 Mr Sun
during the year ended 31st March, 2008 as determined by the Remuneration Committee of the Board with
reference to the Company’s performance and profitability, as well as remuneration benchmark in the industry
and the prevailing market conditions.

In relation to the re-election of the above Directors, there is no information to be disclosed pursuant to any
of the requirements under rules 13.51(2)(h) to 13.51(2)(v) of the Listing Rules, nor are there any other matters
concerning them that need to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company.

SHARE ISSUE MANDATE

Resolution 5 to be proposed at the 2008 Annual General Meeting (“Resolution 57) relates to the granting of a
general mandate which will empower the Direciors of the Company 1o issue new Shares not exceeding 20 per cent
of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue at the date of passing of the resolution
(including making and graating offers, agreements and options which would or might require Shares to be issued,
allotted or disposed of) during the period up to the next annual general meeting of the Company, or at the expiration
of the period within which the next annual general meeting of the Company is required by law to be held, or on
revocation of Resolution 5 by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders at general meeting, whichever is the
earliest.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, there were 278,582,090 Shares in {ssue. Therefore, subject to the passing
of the proposed Resolution 3 at the 2008 Annual General Meeting and on the assumption that no additional Shares
will be issued and that prior to the date of the proposed resolution, no Shares will be repurchased by the Company,
the Company would be allowed under the mandate to issue a maximum of 55,716,418 Shares.

REPURCHASE OF SHARES

The Company is allowed by its Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws and the applicable laws and
regulations of Bermuda to repurchase its own Shares. [ts Bye-laws also allow it to provide financial assistance for
the purpose of purchasing its own Shares.

Resolution 6 to be proposed at the 2008 Annual General Meeting (“Resolution 67) relates to the granting of a
general mandate to the Directors of the Company to repurchase, on the Stock Exchange, the Shares up 10 a
maximum of 10 per cent of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the proposed resolution (the
“Repurchase Proposal™).

The Shares to be purchased by the Company are fully paid-up. As at the Latest Practicable Date, there were
278,582,090 Shares in issue. Therefore, subject to the passing of the proposed Resolution 6 at the 2008 Annual
General Meeting and on the assumption that no additional Shares will be issued and that prior to the date of the
proposed resolution, no Shares will be repurchased by the Company, the Company would be allowed under the
mandate to repurchase a maximum of 27,858,209 Shares.

REASONS FOR REPURCHASE

The Directors of the Company believe that the Repurchase Proposal is in the interests of the Company and
its shareholders. Trading conditions on the Stock Exchange have sometimes been volatile in recent years and there
have been occasions when Shares were trading at a substantial discount to their underlying net asset value. Repurchases
of the Shares may enhance the Company’s net asset value per Share and earnings per Share. In these circumstances,
the ability of the Compaay 10 repurchase the Shares can be beneficial to those sharcholders who retain their
investment in the Company since their percentage interest in the assets of the Company would increase in proportion
to the number of Shares repurchased by the Company. Furthermore, exercise of the mandate granted under the
Repurchase Proposal by the Directors of the Company would increase the trading volume of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange.

The Directors of the Company do not expect there to be any material adverse impact on the working capital
or gearing position of the Company, as compared with the position disclosed in the latest audited financial statements
of the Company for the year ended 31s1 March, 20608, as a result of repurchases made under the Repurchase
Proposal even if the mandate is exercised in full. However, no purchase would be made in circumstances that would
have a material adverse impact on the working capital or gearing position of the Company (as compared with the
position disclosed in the latest published audited financial statements) unless the Directors of the Company consider
that such purchases would be in the best interests of the Company notwithstanding such material adverse impact.
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FUNDING OF REPURCHASES

In repurchasing the Shares, the Company may only apply funds legally available for such purpose in accordance
with its Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws and the applicable laws and regulations of Bermuda which
provide that the Shares may be repurchased out of the profits of the Company and/or out of the proceeds of a fresh
issue of the Shares made for this purpose and/or even out of the capital paid up on the repurchased Shares.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

The Directors of the Company have undertaken to the Stock Exchange to exercise the power of the Company
to make repurchases pursuant to the proposed Resolution 6 in accordance with the Listing Rules and alt applicable
laws of Bermuda.

None of the Directors of the Company nor, to the best of their knowledge having made all reasonable
enquiries, any of their associates presently intend to sell the Shares to the Company under the Repurchase Proposal
in the event that the Repurchase Proposal is approved by shareholders at the 2008 Annual General Meeting.

Meanwhile, the Company has not been notified by any connected persons of the Company that they have a
present intention to sell any Shares, or that they have undertaken not to sell any Shares held by them to the
Company, in the event that the Repurchase Proposal is approved by shareholders at the 2008 Annual General
Meeting.

If. on the exercise of the powers granted under the Repurchase Proposal, a shareholder’s proportionate
interest in the voting rights of the Company increases, such increase will be treated as an acquisition for the purpose
of rule 32 of the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers (the “Takeovers Code”). As a result, a shareholder or a
group of shareholders acting in concert (within the meaning under the Takeovers Code), depending on the level of
such increase, may obtain or consolidate control of the Company and thereby obliged to make a mandatory general
offer in accordance with rule 26 of the Takeovers Code.

As at the Latest Practicable Date and insofar the Directors of the Company are aware of, the substantial
shareholders of the Company are as follows:—

Number of % of Issued Share Capital
underlying if power is
Shares held exercised
(under equity in full to
Name of Substantial Number of derivatives of repurchase
Shareholder Capacity Shares held the Company) at present Shares
{%) {%)
CHOW Yei Ching Beneficial owner 154,682,359 (L) - 55.52 (L} 61.69 (L)
MIYAKAWA Michiko Beneficial owner 154,682,359 (L) - 55.52(L} 61.69 (L)
(Note 1)
The Goldman Sachs Interest of controlled - 26,993,989 (L) 9.69 (L) 10.77 {L)
Group, Inc. corporation 2,306,933 (5) 0.83 (8) 0.92(5)
{Note 2}
Goldman Sachs Interest of controlled - 23,992,101 (L) 8.61 (L) 9.57(L)
(UK L.L.C. corporation 2,306,933 (8) 0.83(5) .92 (5)
(Note 3)
Goldman Sachs Group Interest of controlled - 23,992,101 (L) 8.61 (L) 9.57 (L)
Holdings (U.K.} corporation 2,306,933 (5) 0.83 (8) 092 (%)
(Note 3)
Goldman Sachs [nterest of controlled - 23,992,101 (L) 3.61 (L) 9.57 (L)
Holdings (U.K.) corporation 2,306,933 (S) 0.83 () 0.92(5)
{Nore 3)
Goldman Sachs Beneficial owner - 23,992,101 (L) 8.61 (L) 9,57 (L)
International 2,306,933 (§) 0.83 (8) 0.92 (S)
{Nete 3)
The Goldman, Sachs Interest of controlled 3.001,888(L) - 1.08 {L) 1.20 (L)
& Co. L.L.C. corporation {Note 4)
Goldman Sachs & Co Beneficial owner 3,001.888(L) - 1.08 (L) 1.20 (L)

{Note 4)
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Notes:

n Under Part XV of the SFO, Ms Miyakawa Michiko, the spouse of Dr Chow, is deemed to be interested in the
same parcel of 154,682,359 Shares held by Dr Chow.

(2) The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is taken to have an interest in the 3,001,888 Shares held by Goldman Sachs & Co
and the 21,685,168 Shares that would be held by Geldman Sachs International upon full conversion of the
Convertible Bonds (as defined below) held by Goldman Sachs International. The Convertible Bonds are issued by
the Company to Goldman Sachs International on 26th July, 2006. Goldman Sachs & Co and Goldman Sachs
International are both wholly-owned subsidiaries of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

(3) Goldman Sachs (UK) L.L.C., Goldman Sachs Group Holdings (U.K.) and Goldman Sachs Holdings {(U.K.) are
taken to be interested in the 21,685,168 Shares that would be held by Goldman Sachs International upon full
conversion of the Convertible Bonds. Goldman Sachs International is 99% owned by Goldman Sachs Holdings
(U.K.) and 100% held by Goldman Sachs Group Holdings (U.K.) and Goldman Sachs (UK) L.L.C..

(€3] The Goldman, Sachs & Co. L.L.C. is taken to be interested in the 3,001,888 Shares hetd by Goldman Sachs & Co.
Goldman Sachs & Co is owned as to 99.8% by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and the remaining 0.2% by The
Goldman, Sachs & Ceo. L.L.C. {which is a whelly-owned subsidiary of The Goldman Sachs Group, [nc.).

The letter “L” denotes a long position and the letter “5” denotes a short position.

In the event that the Directors of the Company shall exercise in full such powers under the Repurchase
Proposal and on the basis that there is no other change in the then issued share capital of the Company, the interest
of the above substantial sharcholders would be increased to approximately the percentage shown in the last column
above. The Directors of the Company consider that such increase would not give rise to an obligation to make a
mandatory offer under rule 26 of the Takeovers Code. The number of Shares held by the public would not fall below
25% of the issued share capital of the Company.

SHARE PRICES

The highest and lowest prices at which the Shares have been traded on the Stock Exchange during each of
the previous twelve months prior to the Latest Practicable Date were as follows:—

Highest Lowest

HK$ HK$

Tuly 2007 9.50 8.52
August 2007 9.44 8.15
September 2007 8.93 8.43
October 2007 9.40 8.40
November 2007 8.99 8.39
December 2007 9.00 7.90
January 2008 8.15 7.20
February 2008 7.51 7.18
March 2008 7.50 5.88
April 2008 ' 6.65 6.05
May 2008 6.97 6.40
June 2008 7.09 6.52
July 2008 (up to the Latest Practicable Date) 7.78 6.95

REPURCHASE OF SHARES MADE BY THE COMPANY

The Company has not purchased any of its Shares (whether on the Stock Exchange or otherwise) in the six
months preceding the date of this circular.

EXTENSION OF SHARE ISSUE MANDATE

Resolution 7 to be proposed at the 2008 Annual General Meeting (“Resclution 7”) relates to the extension of
the 20 per cent general mandate to be granted. Subject to the passing at the 2008 Annual General Meeting of
Resolution 5, Resolution 6 and Resolution 7, the Directors of the Company will be given a general mandate to add
all those number of Shares which may from time to time be purchased under the Repurchase Proposal to the 20 per
cent general mandate, thus, the limit of the share issue mandate would include, in addition o the 20 per cent limit as
aforesaid, the number of Shares repurchased under the Repurchase Proposal,




2008 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The notice cenvening the 2008 Annual General Meeting is set out on pages 7 to 8 of this circular.

A form of proxy for use at the 2008 Annual General Meeting is being sent to the shareholders together with
this circular. Whether or not you are able to attend the meeting, please complete the accompanying form of proxy in
accordance with the instructions printed thereon and return the same to the Company’s Branch Share Registrars in
Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong as soon as
possible and in any event not later than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or any adjourned
meeting. Completion and delivery of the form of proxy will not preclude you from attending and voting at the 2008
Annual General Meeting if you so wish.

PROCEDURES BY WHICH SHAREHOLDERS MAY DEMAND POLL

Pursuant to Bye-law 76 of the Bye-law of the Company, a resolution put to vote at a general meeting shall be
decided on a show of hands unless a poll is {before or on the declaration of the result of the show of hands)
demanded by:

(1) the chairman of the meeting; or

(iiy  at least three shareholders present in person or by proxy or by representative for the time being
entitled o vote at the meeting; or

(iii}  any sharehelder or shareholders present in person or by proxy or by representative and representing
not less than one-tenth of the total voting rights of all the shareholders having the right to vote at the
meeting; or

{iv)  any shareholder or sharecholders present in person or by proxy or by representative and holding shares
in the Company conferring a right to vote at the meeting being shares on which an aggregate sum has
been paid up equal to not less than one-tenth of the total sum paid up on all the shares conferring that
right.

If a poll is demanded otherwise than on the election of a chairman of the meeting or on any question of
adjournment, it shall be taken in such manner at such time and place, not being more than 30 days from the date of
the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the poll was demanded, as the chairman of the meeting directs. No
notice needs to be given of a poll not taken immediately. The result of the poll shall be deemed to be the resolution
of the meeting at which the polt was demanded. The demand for a poll may be withdrawn.

Unless a poll is so demanded and the demand is not withdrawn, a declaration of the result on a show of
hands by the chairman of the meeting and an entry to that effect in the minutes book shall be conclusive evidence of
the voting result.

RECOMMENDATION

The Directors consider that the re-election of the retiring Directors, the Share Issue Mandate, the Repurchase
Proposal and the Extension of Share Issue Mandate are in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders and
accordingly recommend all the shareholders to vote in favour of the relevant resclutions to be proposed at the 2008
Annual General Meeting.

Yours faithfully
For and on behalf of the Board
Chevalier International Holdings Limited
CHOW Yei Ching
Chairman and Managing Director




NOTICE OF 2008 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

I CHEVALIER =

CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
H+-EBEEERA T

{incorporared in Bermuda with limired liabiliry)
(Stock Code: 025)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of the Company will

be held at 22nd Floer, Chevalier Commercial Centre, 8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Hoeng Kong on Friday. 26th
September, 2008 at 10:30 a.m. for the following purposes:-

*

As Ordinary Business

1. To receive and consider the audited financial statements and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors
for the year ended 31st March, 2008.

2. To declare a final dividend.
3. To re-elect retiring Directors and authorize the Board of Directors to fix their remuneration.
4. To re-appoint Auditors and authorize the Board of Directors to fix their remuneration.

And as Special Business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without modification the following
resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions:—

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS
5. “THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (c) below, the exercise by the Directors of the Company during the
Relevant Period (as hercinafier defined) of all the powers of the Company to allot. issue and
deal with additional shares in the capital of the Company and to make or grant offers. agreements
and options which might require the exercise of such powers be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved;

(b) the approval in paragraph (a) shall authorize the Directors of the Company during the Relevant
Period to make or grant offers, agreements and options which might require the exercise of
such powers after the end of the Relevan Period;

(c) the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally
to be allotted (whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the Directors of the Company
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a), otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue (as
hereinafter defined) or (ii) the exercise of subscription rights under any share option scheme
of the Company or (iii) an issue of shares as scrip dividends pursuant to the Bye-laws of the
Company from time to time. shall not exceed 20% of the aggregate nominal amount of the
share capital of the Company in issue as at the date of passing of this Resolution and the said
approval shall be limited accordingly: and

(d) for the purposes of this Resolution and Resolution 6:-

“Relevant Period” meuns the period from the passing of this Resolution until whichever is the
earliest of:-

(i) the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company;

For identification purpose only




(i)  the expiration of the period within which the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company is required by the Bye-laws of the Company or any applicable law of Bermuda
to be held; and

(iii}  the revocation or variation of this Resclution by an ordinary resolution of the
shareholders of the Company in General Meeting.

“Rights Issue”™ means the allotment, issue or grant of shares pursuant to an offer (open for a
period fixed by the Directors of the Company) made to shareholders or any class thereof on
the Register of Members of the Company on a fixed record date pro rata to their then holdings
of such shares or class thereof (subject to such exclusion or other arrangements as the Directors
of the Company may deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements of
having regard to any restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of any
recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in, any territory outside Hong Kong).”

“THAT:

(a)

(b)

subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the Directors of the Company during the
Relevant Period (as defined in Resolution 5(d) above) all powers of the Company to repurchase
its shares in the capital of the Company, subject to and in accordance with all applicable laws
and requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited as amended from time to time, be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved; and

the aggregate nominal amount of shares to be purchased by the Company pursuant to the
approval in paragraph (a) above during the Relevant Period shall not exceed 10% of the
aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital of the Company on the date of this
Resolution and the authority pursuant to paragraph (a) above shall be limited accordingly.”

“THAT the general mandate granted to the Directors of the Company to allot, issue and deal with
additional shares pursuant to Ordinary Resolution set out in Resclution 5 be and is hereby extended
by the addition thereto of an amount representing the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital
of the Company which may be allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted
pursuant to such general mandate the aggregate nominal amount of share in the capital of the Company,
repurchased by the Company under the authority granted pursuant to Ordinary Resolution set out in
Resolution 6, provided that such amount shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of
the issued share capital of the Company at the date of this Resolution.”

By Order of the Board
HO Sai Hou
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 30th July, 2008

Principal Place of Business:

22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre
% Wang Hoi Road

Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong

Registered Office:
Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street
Hamilton, HM 12

Bermuda
Notes:
(a) A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting convened by this notice is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to

attend and, in the event of a poll, to vote in his stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

(b} In order to be valid, a form of proxy, together with the power of attorney or other authority (if any}, must be deposited at
the Company's Branch Share Registrars in Hong Kong, TRICOR STANDARD LIMITED at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre,
28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or any

adjourned meeting.

(c) An explanatory statement regarding the proposals of re-electing the retiring Directors of the Company, granting general
mandates to issue new shares and to repurchase own shares of the Company will be despatched to the members of the

Company together with this notice.

(d) Information on the retiring Directors are set out in pages 2 to 3 to this circular which this notice forms part.
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CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HItEBREBBRAR"
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stock Code: 025)

FORM OF PROXY
FOR THE 2007 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

being the registered holder(s) of shares of
HK$1.25 each in the capital of CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED (“the Company™), hereby

appoint

of

1

or failing him, the Chairman of the Meeting as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at 22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre, 8 Wang Hoi Road,
Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong on Wednesday, 29th August, 2007 at 3:30 p.m. and at any adjournment thereof on the
undermentioned resolutions as indicated and if no such indication is given as my/four proxy thinks fit:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS FOR AGAINST

1. To receive and consider the audited financial statements and the
Reports of the Directors and Auditors for the year ended 31st
March, 2007.

2. To declare a final dividend.

3. (a) (i) To re-elect Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar as Director.

(ii) To re-elect Mr KAN Ka Hon as Director.

(iii) To re-elect Mr HO Chung Leung as Director.

(iv) To re-elect Mr LI Kwok Heem, John as Director.
(b) To authorize the Board of Directors to fix the remuneration

of the Directors.

4. To re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditors of the
Company and authorize the Board of Directors to fix their
remuneration,

5. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to allot, issue and
deal with additional shares of the Company.

6. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to repurchase shares
of the Company.

7. To'extend the general mandate to the Directors to allot, issue
and deal with additional shares of the Company.

Signature: Date:

Notes:

i1} Full name(s) and address must be inserted in BLOCK CAPITALS.

(2} Please insert the number aof shares registered in your name(s). If no number is inserted, this form of proxy will be deemed to relate to all
the shares in the capital of the Company registered in your name(s).

(3) Please indicare with an "X" in the relevant box how you wish the proxy 1o vote on your behalf. If this form of proxy is returned without
any indication, you will be deemed 10 have authorized your proxy to vete or abstain from voting as he thinks fir.

(4) Any alteration made to this form of proxy must be initialled.

(5) Any member entitled to attend and vete is entitled 10 appoint proxy(ies) to auend instead of him and 1o vore on a poll. A proxy need not be
a member of the Company.

(6) If the shareholder is a corporation, this form of proxy must be executed under its common seal or under the hand of an officer or aitorney
duly authorized on its behalf.

(7) In the case of joint shareholder, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by proxy, will be accepted to the exclusion
of the votes of the other joint shareholder(s) and for this purpose seniority will be determined by the arder in which the names stand in the
Register of Members.

(8) Ta be valid, this form of proxy together with the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed must be completed

and deposited at the Company’s Branch Share Registrars in Hong Kong, STANDARD REGISTRARS LIMITED at the 26th Floor, Tesbury
Cenire, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, flong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time fixed for holding the meeting or any adjourned
meeting thereaf,

*  Fuor identification purpose only
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CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

EtEBEEEBER QA"

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

{Stock Code: 025)

NOTICE OF 2008 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE 1S HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Mecting of the Shareholders of the Company will be
held at 22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre, 8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong on Friday, 26th
September, 2008 at 10:30 a.m. for the following purposes:—

As Ordinary Business

l. To reccive and consider the audited financial statements and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors
for the year ended 31st March, 2008.

2. To declare a final dividend.

3. To re-elect retiring Directors and authorize the Board of Directors to fix their remuneration.

4. To rc-appoint Auditors and authorize the Board of Directors to fix their remuneration.

And as Special Business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without modification the following
resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions;—

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

5. “THAT:

{a)

(b)

(c)

(@)

subject to paragraph (c) below, the exercise by the Directors of the Company during the Relevant
Period (as hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with
additional shares in the capital of the Company and to make or grant offers, agreements and
options which might require the excrcise of such powers be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved;

the approval in paragraph (a) shall authorize the Directors of the Company during the Relevant
Period to make or grant offers, agreements and options which might require the exercise of such
powers after the end of the Relevant Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally
to be allotted (whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the Directors of the Company
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a), otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue (as hereinafter
defined) or (ii) the exercise of subscription rights under any share option scheme of the Company
or (iii) an issue of shares as scrip dividends pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company from time to
time, shall not exceed 20% of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company
in issue as at the date of passing of this Resolution and the said approval shall be limited accordingly;
and

for the purposes of this Resolution and Resolution 6:-

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this Resolution until whichever is the
earliest of:—

(i)  the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company;

(1)  the expiration of the period within which the next Annual General Meeting of the Company
is required by the Bye-laws of the Company or any applicable law of Bermuda to be held;
and

(iii} the revocation or variation of this Resolution by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders
of the Company in General Meeting.




“Rights Issue” means the allotment, issue or grant of shares pursvant to an offer {open for a period
fixed by the Directors of the Company) made to shareholders or any class thereof on the Register
of Members of the Company on a fixed record date pro rata to their then holdings of such shares or
class thereof (subject to such exclusion or other arrangements as the Directors of the Company
may deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements of having regard to any
restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of any recognised regulatory
body or any stock exchange in, any territory outside Hong Kong).”

“THAT:

(a)  subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the Directors of the Company during the Relevant
Period (as defined in Resolution 5(d) above) all powers of the Company to repurchase its shares in
the capital of the Company, subject to and in accordance with all applicable laws and requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as
amended from time to time, be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved; and

(b)  the aggregate nominal amount of shares to be purchased by the Company pursuant to the approval
in paragraph (a) above during the Relevant Period shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal
amount of the issued share capital of the Company on the date of this Resolution and the authority
pursuant to paragraph (a) above shall be limited accordingly.”

“THAT the general mandate granted to the Directors of the Company to allot, issue and deal with
additional shares pursuant to Ordinary Resolution set out in Resolution 5 be and is hereby extended by
the addition thereto of an amount representing the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the
Company which may be allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted pursuant to
such general mandate the aggregate nominal amount of share in the capital of the Company, repurchased
by the Company under the authority granted pursuant to Ordinary Resolution set out in Resolution 6,
provided that such amount shall not exceed 10% of the aggregatc nominal amount of the issued share
capital of the Company at the date of this Resolution.”

By Order of the Board
HO Sai Hou
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 30th July, 2008

Principal Place of Business:

22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre
8 Wang Hoi Road

Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong

Registered Office:
Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street
Hamiiton, HM 12

Bermuda

Notes:

(a} A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting convened by this notice is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend
and, in the event of a poll, to vote in his stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

(b) In order to be valid, a form of proxy, together with the power of attorney or other authority (if any), must be deposited at the
Company's Branch Share Registrars in Hong Kong, TRICOR STANDARD LIMITED at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or any adjourned meeting.

(c) An explanatory statement regarding the proposals of re-electing ihe retiring Directors of the Company, granting general mandates
to issue new shares and to repurchase own shares of the Company will be despatched to the members of the Company together
with this notice.

(d) Information on the retiring Directors are set out in pages 2 to 3 to the circular of the Company dated 30th July, 2008.

As at the date of this announcement, the Board of the Company comprises Dr. Chow Yei Ching (Chairman and
Managing Director), Mr. Kuok Hoi Sang (Vice Chairman and Managing Director), Mr. Tam Kwok Wing (Deputy
Managing Director), Mr. Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, Mr. Ho Chung Leung and Mr. Ho Sai Hou as executive
directors and Dr. Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph, Mr. Sun Kai Dah, George and Mr. Yang Chuen Liang, Charles as
independent non-executive directors.

website: hup://www.chevaliercom

*  For identification purpose only
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CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
H B EEERAR

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stock code: 025)

CHANGE OF DIRECTORS,
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE AND COMPANY SECRETARY

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Chevalier International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
announces that:

(1) Mr. LI Kwok Heem, John has resigned as an Independent Non-Executive Director (“INED”),
chairman and member of the Audit Committee and member of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company with effect from the close of business of 31* March, 2008;

(2) Mr. YANG Chuen Liang, Charles has been appointed as an INED, chairman and member of the
Audit Committee and member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company with effect
from 1% April, 2008;

(3) Mr. KAN Ka Hon has resigned as an Executive Director (“ED”), Authorized Representative

and Company Secretary of the Company with effect from the close of business of 31* March,
2008; and

(4) Mr. HO Sai Hou has been appointed as an ED, Authorized Representative and Company
Secretary of the Company with effect from 1% April, 2008.

The Board of the Company announces that:

(1) Mr. LI Kwok Heem, John has resigned as an INED, chairman and member of the Audit
Committee and member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company with effect from the
close of business of 31% March, 2008;

(2) Mr. YANG Chuen Liang, Charles has been appointed as an INED, chairman and member of the

Audit Committee and member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company with effect
from 1% April, 2008,

CIHL



(3) Mr. KAN Ka Hon has resigned as an ED, Authorized Representative and Company Secretary
of the Company with effect from the close of business of 31% March, 2008; and

(4) Mr. HO Sai Hou has been appointed as an ED, Authorized Representative and Company
Secretary of the Company with effect from 1% April, 2008.

Messrs LI Kwok Heem, John and KAN Ka Hon have resigned the aforesaid positions of the
Company with effect from the close of business of 31" March, 2008 due to other business
commitment. Messrs Li and Kan confirmed that there is no disagreement with the Board and there
is no other matter relating to their resignations that will need to be brought to the attention of the
holders of securities of the Company.

Particulars relating to Messrs YANG Chuen Liang, Charles and HO Sai Hou are set out below:

Mr. YANG Chuen Liang, Charles, aged 49, is a qualified accountant and company secretary of
Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co. Ltd. which is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Previously, he was the Chief Financial Officer and Director of
Hong Kong Asia Television Limited. Mr, Yang is a partner of S. Y. Yang & Company, Practising
firm of Accountants and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Yang obtained a Master Degree
in Business Administration from The City University London in 1983.

Mr. Yang was appointed as Justice of the Peace by the Hong Kong SAR Government (“HKSAR”) in
2004. He was selected as “Outstanding Accountant Ambassador” by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in 2004. He is currently 2 member of Hubei CPPCC. Mr. Yang is the
Chairman of Admissions, Budget and Allocations Committee and a Director of The Community
Chest. He is also a member of the HKSAR Chinese Medicine Council and Partnership Fund For
The Disadvantaged.

Mr. HO Sai Hou, aged 41, joined Chevalier Group in 2005. He is currently the Group Financial
Controller of the Group and also director of certain companies of the Group. He will be respensible
for management of Chevalier Group’s accounting and treasury, corporate finance and company
secretarial activities. He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Ho holds a
Bachelor of Social Sciences Degree in Accounting from The University of Hong Kong and
completed his EMBA with The China Europe International Business School in 2007. Previously,
Mr. Ho was the Chief Financial Officer and an executive director of Van Shung Chong Holdings
Limited.

Save as disclosed above, Messrs Yang and Ho have not held any directorship in any listed public
companies in the last three years and do not hold any position in any member of the Group nor do
they have any relationship with any other Directors, senior management, substantial shareholders or
controlling shareholders of the Company and any interests in the shares of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. There is neither any service contract
between the Company with Messrs Yang and Ho respectively nor any specified term for the length

2
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or proposed length of service with the Company in respect of the directorship. Messrs Yang and Ho
will hold office until the next following general meeting of the Company and will be eligible for re-
election. All Directors of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years at the annual general meeting of the Company since last re-election in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws. The remuneration of Mr. Ho will be determined by the Remuneration
Committee of the Board with reference to the Company’s performance and profitability as well as
remuneration benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market conditions. Mr. Yang is entitled
to an annual emolument of HK$150,000 which is determined by the Board with reference to his
duties and responsibilities with the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, there is no information to be disclosed pursuant to any of the requirements
under rules 13.51(2)(h) to 13.51(2)(v) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange, nor are there other matters concerning them that need to be brought to the attention of the
shareholders of the Company.

The Board of the Company would like to express its appreciation to Messrs Li and Kan for their
invaluable contribution to the Company over the past years and take this opportunity to welcome
Messrs Yang and Ho to join the Board.

By Order of the Board
Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Chow Yei Ching
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 1% April 2008

As at the date of this announcement, the Board of the Company comprises Dr Chow Yei Ching (Chairman and Managing Director),
Messrs Kuok Hoi Sang (Vice Chairman and Managing Director), Tam Kwok Wing (Deputy Managing Director), Chow Vee Tsung,
Oscar, Ho Chung Leung and Ho Sai Hou as executive directors and Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph, Mr. Sun Kai Dah, George and
Mr. Yang Chuen Liang, Charles as independent non-executive directors.

* Jor identification only
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CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HA-BIR B R A

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stock code: 025)

CHANGE OF DIRECTORS,
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE AND COMPANY SECRETARY

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Chevalier International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
announces that:

(1) Mr. LI Kwok Heem, John has resigned as an Independent Non-Executive Director (“INED”),
chairman and member of the Audit Committee and member of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company with effect from the close of business of 31% March, 2008;

(2) Mr. YANG Chuen Liang, Charles has been appointed as an INED, chairman and member of the

Audit Committee and member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company with effect
from 1* April, 2008;

(3) Mr. KAN Ka Hon has resigned as an Executive Director (“ED”), Authorized Representative

and Company Secretary of the Company with effect from the close of business of 31¥ March,
2008; and

(4) Mr. HO Sai Hou has been appointed as an ED, Authorized Representative and Company
Secretary of the Company with effect from 1% April, 2008.

The Board of the Company announces that:

(1) Mr. LI Kwok Heem, John has resigned as an INED, chairman and member of the Audit
Committee and member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company with effect from the
close of business of 31° March, 2008;

(2) Mr. YANG Chuen Liang, Charles has been appointed as an INED, chairman and member of the

Audit Committee and member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company with effect
from 1% April, 2008;

CIHL




(3) Mr. KAN Ka Hon has resigned as an ED, Authorized Representative and Company Secretary
of the Company with effect from the close of business of 31 March, 2008, and

(4) Mr. HO Sai Hou has been appointed as an ED, Authorized Representative and Company
Secretary of the Company with effect from 1% April, 2008.

Messrs LI Kwok Heem, John and KAN Ka Hon have resigned the aforesaid positions of the
Company with effect from the close of business of 31* March, 2008 duc to other business
commitment. Messrs Li and Kan confirmed that there is no disagreement with the Board and there
is no other matter relating to their resignations that will need to be brought to the attention of the
holders of securities of the Company.

Particulars relating to Messrs YANG Chuen Liang, Charles and HO Sai Hou are set out below:

Mr. YANG Chuen Liang, Charles, aged 49, is a qualified accountant and company secretary of
Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co. Ltd. which is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Previously, he was the Chief Financial Officer and Director of
Hong Kong Asia Television Limited. Mr. Yang is a partner of S. Y. Yang & Company, Practising
firm of Accountants and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Yang obtained a Master Degree
in Business Administration from The City University London in 1983.

Mr. Yang was appointed as Justice of the Peace by the Hong Kong SAR Government (“HKSAR”) in
2004. He was selected as “Outstanding Accountant Ambassador” by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in 2004. He is currently a member of Hubei CPPCC. Mr. Yang is the
Chairman of Admissions, Budget and Allocations Committee and a Director of The Community
Chest. He is also a member of the HKSAR Chinese Medicine Council and Partnership Fund For
The Disadvantaged.

Mr. HO Sai Hou, aged 41, joined Chevalier Group in 2005. He is currently the Group Financial
Controller of the Group and also director of certain companies of the Group. He will be responsible
for management of Chevalier Group’s accounting and treasury, corporate finance and company
secretarial activities. He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Ho holds a
Bachelor of Social Sciences Degree in Accounting from The University of Hong Kong and
completed his EMBA with The China Europe International Business School in 2007. Previously,
Mr. Ho was the Chief Financial Officer and an executive director of Van Shung Chong Holdings
Limited.

Save as disclosed above, Messrs Yang and Ho have not held any directorship in any listed public
companies in the last three years and do not hold any position in any member of the Group nor do
they have any relationship with any other Directors, senior management, substantial shareholders or
controlling shareholders of the Company and any interests in the shares of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. There is neither any service contract
between the Company with Messrs Yang and Ho respectively nor any specified term for the length
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or proposed length of service with the Company in respect of the directorship. Messrs Yang and Ho
will hold office until the next following general meeting of the Company and will be eligible for re-
election. All Directors of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years at the annual general meeting of the Company since last re-election in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws. The remuneration of Mr. Ho will be determined by the Remuneration
Committee of the Board with reference to the Company’s performance and profitability as well as
remuneration benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market conditions. Mr. Yang is entitled
to an annual emolument of HK$150,000 which is determined by the Board with reference to his
duties and responsibilities with the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, there is no information to be disclosed pursuant to any of the requirements
under rules 13.51(2)(h) to 13.51(2)(v) of the Rules Goveming the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange, nor are there other matters concerning them that need to be brought to the attention of the
shareholders of the Company.

The Board of the Company would like to express its appreciation to Messrs Li and Kan for their
invaluable contribution to the Company over the past years and take this opportunity to welcome
Messrs Yang and Ho to join the Board.

By Order of the Board
Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Chow Yei Ching
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 1¥ April 2008

As at the date of this announcement, the Board of the Company comprises Dr Chow Yei Ching (Chairman and Managing Director),
Messrs Kuok Hoi Sang (Vice Chairman and Managing Director), Tam Kwok Wing (Deputy Managing Director), Chow Vee Tsung,
Oscar, Ho Chung Leung and Ho Sai Hou as executive directors and Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph, Mr. Sun Kai Dah, George and
Mr. Yang Chuen Liang, Charles as independent non-executive directors.

* Jor identification only
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this
announcement, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the

whole or any part of the contents of this announcement.
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Financial adviser to Chevalier International Holdings Limited’

NOPTIMA

CAPITAL

Optima Capital Limited

After Stock Exchange trading hours on 16 May 2008, the Company and CPT Belgium, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Agreement with Sekisui whereby CPT Belgium conditionally
agreed to sell and Sekisui conditionally agreed to purchase the Sale Share for a total consideration of
US8337.5 miilion (equivalent to approximately HK$292.5 million). The Sale Share represents 75% of the
equity interest in CPT. Upon Completion, CPT will be owned as to 75% by Sekisui and 25% by CPT

Belgium,

The Disposal constitutes a major transaction for the Company under the Listing Rules and is subject to
the approval of the Shareholders. As no Shareholder has a material interest in the Disposal which is
different from the other Shareholders, no Shareholder is required to abstain from voting. Dr. Chow, the
controlling Shareholder holding 55.52% of the total issued Shares as at the date hereof, has given his
written consent for the Agreement. The written consent has been accepted in lieu of holding a special
general meeting to approve the Agreement pursuant to Rule 14.44 of the Listing Rules. A circular
containing, among other things, further information on the Agreement and other information as required
under the Listing Rules will be despatched to the Shareholders as soon as practicable.

Trading of the Shares has been suspended with effect from 9:30 a.m. on Monday, 19 May 2008 pending
the release of this announcement. An application has been made by the Company to the Stock Exchange
for the resumption of trading of the Shares with effect from 9:30 a.m. on Monday, 26 May 2008.




THE AGREEMENT

Date

16 May 2008

Parties

(i) CPT Belgium (as seller);

(ir) Sekisui (as purchaser); and
(tii)  the Company (as guarantor).

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief and after making all reasonable enquiries,
Sekisui and its ultimate beneficial owners are third parties independent of the Company and its connected
persons (as defined under the Listing Rules).

There was no prior transaction between the Group and Sekisui and its ultimate beneficial owners in the
last 12 months which would otherwise require aggregation under Rule 14.22 of the Listing Rules.

Asset to be disposed of
The Sale Share, being 75% equity interest in CPT.

At the date of this announcement, the share capital of CPT amounts to EUR11,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$141.5 million), consisting of one share in the nominal amount of EUR11,500,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$141.5 million) held by CPT Belgium. Subject to Completion, CPT
Belgium shall split the share in CPT into one share in the nominal amount of EUR8,625,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$106.1 million) (i.e. the Sale Share) and one share in the nominal amount of
EUR2,875,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$35.4 million) and transfer the Sale Share to Sekisui.
Immediately upon Completion, CPT will be owned as to 75% by Sekisui and 25% by CPT Belgium.
CPT and its subsidiaries will no longer be subsidiaries of the Company. The CPT Group will no longer be
consolidated into the Group but will be equity accounted for as associated companies of the Company.

The Sale Share will be sold together with any and all rights pertaining to it from 1 April 2008, including
the rights to profits and dividends for all fiscal years commencing on or after 1 April 2008 and profits for
prior fiscal years to the extent they have not been distributed are for the account of Sekisui.

Consideration
The consideration for the Sale Share shall be US$37.5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$292.5

million), subject to adjustment as described in the paragraph headed “Net asset value of the CPT Group”
below. The consideration shall be paid by Sekisui in the following manner:



(1) an amount equal to §0% of the consideration, i.e. US330 million {equivalent to approximately
HK$234 million), shall be paid to the Company’s bank account in immediately available funds on
Completion; and

(i1) the balance of 20% of the consideration, i.e. US$7.5 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$58.5 million), shall be paid to and held in an account maintained with an escrow agent until
30 September 2009.

The balance held in the escrow account referred to in (ii) above shall be reduced by any amount of
payment that CPT Belgium shall be obliged to make to Sekisui and/or the CPT Group pursuant to the
Agreement, in particular without limitation for claims based on a breach of the representations and
warranties given or on indemnifications undertaken pursuant to the Agreement, provided that the escrow
balance shall be reduced for purposes of the Compensation, if any, to be made by CPT Belgium regarding
shortfall in the net asset value of the CPT Group pursuant to the Agreement as described below. Any
remaining balance held in the escrow account (together with all the interest accrued in the escrow
account) shall be released to CPT Belgium after 30 September 2009.

Net asset value of the CPT Group

The consideration of US$37.5 million for the Sale Share was agreed between the parties based on arm’s
length negotiations subject to the consolidated net asset value of the CPT Group being not less than
US$29.5 million (equivalent fo approximately HK3230.1 million) as at 31 March 2008 (the “Minimum
NAV™).

CPT Belgium shall deliver an unaudited net asset statement of the CPT Group as at 31 March 2008 to
Sekisui on or before 30 September 2008. The aforesaid net asset statement shall be based on the audited
consolidated financial statements of CPT as of 31 March 2008 which are to be prepared under generally
accepted accounting principles in Germany, and adjusted so as to include members of the CPT Group
cnly and assuming ongoing business of CPT and without taking into account the change of its
shareholders. This net asset statement prepared on the aforesaid basis will be reported on by the auditors
of CPT Belgium on or before 31 October 2008. If the consolidated net asset value of the CPT Group as at
31 March 2008 as shown in the aforesaid net asset statement finally accepted by both parties (the “Agreed
NAV”) is less than the Minimum NAV, CPT Belgium shall compensate CPT in an amount equals to the
amount by which the Minimum NAV exceeds the Agreed NAV (the “Compensation”) by way of:

(1) waiver of an equal amount of Shareholder’s Loans;
(ii) payment by CPT Belgium into CPT’s free capital reserve; or
(iif)  any other method, provided that such method does not have any negative legal, tax or accounting

implications,

it being understood that CPT Belgium may choose at its discretion the method of Compensation. The
Compensation shall be effected by CPT Belgium within 10 Banking Days after the net asset statement has
been finalised in accordance with the terms of the Agreement.




Refinancing of Shareholder’s Loans and release of the guarantees

The Company and its affiliates have provided Shareholder’s Loans to the CPT Group. As at the date of
the Agreement, the outstanding balance of the Shareholder’s Loans, subject to audit and adjustment,
amounted to approximately EUR 11.1 million (equivalent to approximately HK$136.5 million). In
addition, the Company and its affiliates have provided guarantees in favour of the CPT Group for banking
facilities of the CPT Group. As at the date of the Agreement, the amount of facilities guaranteed by the
Company and/or its affiliates comprised facilities denominated in EUR and AUD and amounted to EUR
7.5 million and AUD 12.4 million (equivalent to an aggregate of approximately HK$184.0 million), of
which approximately EUR7.1 million and AUD 9.2 million (equivalent to an aggregate of approximately
HK$155.4 million) have been utilised by the CPT Group.

Pursuant to the Agreement, Sekisui agreed to make available a credit line to CPT in order to replace 75%
of the Shareholder’s Loans on or before 30 September 2009. Sekisui also agreed that until 30 September
2009, it shall use best efforts to obtain the unconditional release of the Company and its affiliates from
75% of their obligations and liabilities under the guarantees. Until the guarantees have been replaced,
Sekisui will keep the Company and its affiliates fully indemnified from any liabilities resulting from any
guarantees provided by the Company and its affiliates which are in excess of their 25% share.

Conditions
Completion is conditional upon the satisfaction of the following conditions:

(i) the relevant merger control approvals or clearances from the German Federal Carte! Office and, if
required, the competent cartel office of the PRC have been obtained;

(ii) the Company has obtained all consents and approvals required under the Listing Rules in
connection with the Agreement and the transaction contemplated in the Agreement; and

(iii)  receipt of the consideration for the Sale Share in the manner as described in the paragraph headed
“Consideration” above.

CPT Belgium and Sekisui undertake to use their best efforts and to cause each of the conditions in (i) and
(ii) above to be satisfied as soon as possible. If the conditions in (i) and (ii) above shall not be fulfilled on
a date falling 6 months after the date of the Agreement (or any such later date as the parties may agree),
CPT Belgium and Sekisui may rescind the Agreement by giving written notice to the other, and the
Agreement shall cease to have force and effect. The parties aim at satisfaction of the conditions in (i) and
(ii) latest by 31 August 2008. None of the above conditions are capable of being waived.




Reorganisation

Certain existing subsidiartes of CPT will not form part of the CPT Group and will not be disposed of to
Sekisui. Pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, prior to the Completion Date, CPT Belgium shall at its
cost and expenses initiate an internal reorganisation to transfer these companies out of CPT. If the
reorganisation has not been completed at the Completion Date, CPT Belgium shall cooperate with Sekisui
to continue and complete the reorganisation and indemnify Sekisui from all damages, costs, liabilities, tax
or other expenses and losses that may be suffered by Sekisui or the CPT Group in relation to the
reorganisation or these excluded companies.

Completion

Within 5 Banking Days after conditions (i} and (ii) have been fulfilled, Completion shall take place and
the Purchaser shall pay the consideration for the Sale Share referred to in condition (iii) and in the manner
as described in the paragraph headed “Consideration” above.

INFORMATION ON CPT

CPT was established in 2002 and has its headquarters in Munich, Germany. The CPT Group is
principally engaged in pipe construction and rehabilitation for use in urban area. It provides pipe
planning to installation services which uses two leading key technologies, the cured in place pipe
technology and the spiral wound technology, across a number of markets in Europe, Australia and the
Middle East.

As at 30 September 2007, the unaudited net asset value of the CPT Group amounted to approximately
HK3235.4 million. The unaudited results of the CPT Group for each of the two years ended 31 March
2006 and 2007 were as follows:

2006 2007

HK3’ million HK3' million

Loss before taxation 12.8 6.7
Loss after taxation 11.3 8.1

The aforesaid unaundited financial figures of the CPT Group were prepared under generally accepted
accounting principles in Hong Kong based on management accounts of the companies comprising the
CPT Group. In addition, the above unaudited figures were prepared based on certain assumptions which
include, among others things, the assumption that the reorganisation as described in the paragraph headed
“Reorganisation” above has been completed and the group structure of the CPT Group had been in place
incorporating the financial effects of the reorganisation throughout the two financial years ended 31
March 2006 and 2007.




REASONS FOR THE DISPOSAL

The Company is an investment holding company which, through its subsidiaries, is principally engaged in
the business of construction and engineering, insurance and investment, property, information technology
and food and beverages. The Company currently has operations in China, South East Asia, Europe,
North America, Australia and the Middle East. In particular, the Company's presence in the PRC
property market includes cities such as Shanghai, Chengdu, Beijing, Shenzhen, Hefei and Changchun.

Under the management of the Company, the CPT Group has become one of the leading global pipe
rehabilitation companies and developed leading technologies for the rehabilitation of drinking water
networks and sewer networks. The Company has also supported the set-up of a global sales and
distribution network for the CPT Group. During the recent years, the CPT Group recorded remarkable
growth in turnover.

Sekisui is a limited company incorporated in Japan having over 60 years of history. It has around 200
companies operating in 20 countries, providing high performance products in the fields of plastics, water
environment solutions and factory produced housing. Its products range from medical, interlayer films,
foam, packaging tape, industrial tape, fine chemicals, speciality chemicals, water supply and drainage
systems, civil engineering systems, industrial materials and pipes, composite products and materials, to
building materials.

The Directors consider that the products and services of the CPT Group and Sekisui are complementary
to each other and believe that it is in the interests of CPT to partner with Sekisui, which is a sizeable
player in the construction material industry, to fuel its further growth in business and improve its
competitiveness and marketability.

The Disposal is expected to generate a positive return on the Company’s investment in CPT and generate
cash inflow for the Group. Based on the Minimum NAYV and the consideration for the Sale Share, the
Disposal is expected to result in an estimated gain of approximately US$15.4 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$120.1 million). The actual gain or loss resulting from the Disposal however will be
determined based on the actual net asset value of the CPT Group as at the Completion Date with
adjustment on the Compensation, if any. The Company intends that the proceeds from the Disposal will
be retained as general working capital of the Group.

Immediately upon Completion, CPT will be owned as to 75% by Sekisui and 25% by CPT Belgium.
CPT and its subsidiaries will cease to be subsidiaries of the Company but will be accounted for as
associated companies of the Company.

Based on the above, the Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors) consider that the
terms and conditions of the Agreement are fair and reasonable and the Disposal is in the interest of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.



GENERAL

The Disposal constitutes a major transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules and requires the
approval of the Shareholders. As no Shareholder has a material interest in the Disposal which is different
from the other Shareholders, no Shareholder is required to abstain from voting. Dr. Chow, the controlling
Shareholder holding 154,682,359 Shares {representing approximately 55.52% of the total issued Shares)
as at the date hereof, has given his written consent for the Agreement. The written consent has been
accepted in lien of holding a special general meeting to approve the Agreement pursuant to Rule 14.44 of
the Listing Rules. A circular containing, among other things, further information on the Agreement and
other information as required under the Listing Rules will be despatched to the Shareholders as soon as
practicable.

RESUMPTION OF TRADING

Trading of the Shares has been suspended with effect from 9:30 a.m. on Monday, 19 May 2008 pending
the release of this announcement. An application has been made by the Company to the Stock Exchange
for the resumption in trading of the Shares with effect from 9:30 a.m. on Monday, 26 May 2008.

DEFINITIONS

“Agreement” the agreement dated 16 May 2008 entered into between the Company, CPT
Belgium and Sekisui regarding the sale and purchase of the Sale Share

“Banking Day” shall mean days (other than Saturday or Sunday) on which banks are open for
business in Munich, Germany

“Board” the board of Directors

“Company” Chevalier International Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda
with [imited liability whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code : 25)

“Completion” completion of the Agreement

L1]

“Completion Date date of Completion

“CPT” CPT Chevalier Pipe Technelogies GmbH, a company with limited liability
organised under the laws of Germany and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company prior to Completion

“CPT Belgium” CPT Belgium Holdings SPRL, a company with limited liability organised
under the laws of Belgium and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

“CPT Group” CPT and its subsidiaries upon completion of the reorganisation as described in
the paragraph headed “Recrganisation” above and to be disposed of to Sekisui
pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Agreement




“Directors”

“Disposal”

“Dr. Chow”

“Group!!
“Hong Kong”
“Listing Rules”

“PRC”

“Sale Share”

“Sekisui”

“Share(s)"”
“Shareholder(s)”

e

“Shareholder’s Loans’

“Stock Exchange”
“AUD”
“EUR”
“HK$”

“USS”

the directors of the Company

the proposed disposal of the Sale Share by CPT Belgium to Sekisui pursuant to
the terms and conditions of the Agreement

Dr. Chow Yei Ching, the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company
and the controlling Shareholder

the Company and its subsidiaries

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

the People’s Republic of China, excluding Hong Kong, the Macao Special
Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan for the purpose of this

announcement

one share in CPT in the nominal amount of EURS,625,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$106.1 million)

Sekisui Chemical Co., Ltd., a stock corporation organised under the laws of
Japan whose common stock is listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange and the
Osaka Securities Exchange

ordinary share(s) of HK$1.25 each in the capital of the Company

holder(s) of the Share(s}

the shareholder’s loans advance by the Company and its affiliates to the CPT
Group

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Australian dollars, the lawful currency of Australia
Euros, the official currency of European Union

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America



For illustration purpose, amounts in foreign currencies in this announcement are transiated into HK$ at
the exchange rate of US$! to HK$7.8; EUR! to HK$12.3 and AUD! to HK$7.4.

By order of the Board
Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Chow Yei Ching
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 23 May 2008

As at the date of this announcement, the Board comprises Dr. Chow Yei Ching (Chairman and Managing
Director), Messrs. Kuok Hoi Sang (Vice Chairman and Managing Director), Tam Kwok Wing (Deputy
Managing Director), Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, Ho Chung Leung and Ho Sai Hou as executive directors
and Dr, Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph, Mr. Sun Kai Dah, George and Mr. Yang Chuen Liang, Charles as
independent non-executive directors.

* Jor identification only




THIS CIRCULAR IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in any doubt as to any aspect of this circular or as to the action to be taken, you
should consult your licensed securities dealer, bank manager, solicitor, professional accountant

or other professional adviser.
If you have sold or transferred all your shares in Chevalier International Holdings Limited,

you should at once hand this circular to the purchaser or the transferee or to the bank, licensed
securities dealer through whom the sale or transfer was effected for transmission to the

purchaser or the transferee.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this
circular, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims

any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or

any part of the contents of this circular.
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DEFINITIONS

In this circular, the following expressions have the meanings as set out below unless the

context requires otherwise:

“Agreement”

“Banking Day”

“Board”

“Company”

“Completion”
“Completion Date”
“Convertible Bonds”

:LCPHLH

“CPT”

“CPT Belgium”

“CPT Group”

“Directors”

“Disposal”

“Dr. Chow”

the agreement dated 16 May 2008 entered into between
the Company, CPT Belgium and Sekisui regarding the
sale and purchase of the Sale Share

the days (other than Saturday or Sunday) on which banks
are open for business in Munich, Germany

the board of Directors

Chevalier International Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 25)

completion of the Agreement
the date of Completion
the 2.125% convertible bonds due 2011 of the Company

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 508) and a subsidiary of the
Company

CPT Chevalier Pipe Technologies GmbH, a company
with limited liability organised under the laws of
Germany and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
prior to Compietion

CPT Belgium Holdings SPRL, a company with limited
liability organised under the laws of Belgium and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

CPT and its subsidiaries upon completion of the
reorganisation as described in the paragraph headed
“Reorganisation” in the letter from the Board contained
in this circular and to be disposed of to Sekisui pursuant
to the terms and conditions of the Agreement

the directors of the Company

the proposed disposal of the Sale Share by CPT Belgium
to Sekisui pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
Agreement

Dr. Chow Yei Ching, the Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company and the controlling Shareholder



DEFINITIONS

“Group”

“Hong Kong”

“L.atest Practicable Date”

“Listing Rules”

“PRC!’

“Sale Share”

“Sekisui”

“SFO!!

“Share(s)”

“Shareholder(s)”

L]

“Shareholder’s Loans’

“Stock Exchange”
“AUD”
“EUR”
“HK$”

G‘US $!!

“%”

the Company and its subsidiaries

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the
PRC

10 June 2008, being the latest practicable date prior to
the printing of this circular for ascertaining certain

information contained herein

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange

the People’s Republic of China, excluding Hong Kong,
the Macao Special Administrative Region of the PRC
and Taiwan for the purpose of this circular

one share in CPT in the nominal amount of
EURS,625,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$106.1
million) .

Sekisui Chemical Co., Ltd., a stock corporation organised
under the laws of Japan whose commeon stock is listed
on the Tokyo Stock Exchange and the Osaka Securities

Exchange

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong)

ordinary share(s) of HK$1.25 each in the capital of the
Company

holder(s) of the Share(s)

the shareholder’s loans advanced by the Company and
its affiliates to the CPT Group

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Australian dollars, the lawful currency of Australia
Euros, the official currency of European Union

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

United States dollars, the tawful currency of the United
States of America

per cent

For illustration purpose, amounts in foreign currencies in this circular are translated into
HKS$ ar the exchange rate of US31 to HK$7.8; EURI to HK$12.3 and AUDI r0 HK$7.4.
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD

I CHEVALIER =

CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HEtBEABEREERAG"

{Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

(Stock code: 025)

Executive Directors: Registered office:
Chow Yei Ching (Chairman and Managing Director) Canon’s Court
Kuok Hoi Sang (Vice Chairman and Managing Director}) 22 Victoria Sireet
Tam Kwok Wing (Deputy Managing Director) Hamilion, HM 12
Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar Bermuda
Ho Chung Leung
Ho Sai Hou Head office and principal place
of business:
Independent non-executive Directors: 22nd Floor
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph O.B.E., J.P. Chevalier Commercial Centre
Sun Kai Dah, George 8 Wang Hoi Road
Yang Chuen Liang, Charles Kowloon Bay
Hong Kong

13 June 2008

To the Shareholders and, for information only,
holders of the Convertible Bonds

Dear Sir or Madam,

MAJOR TRANSACTION
INTRODUCTION

On 23 May 2008, the Company announced that the Company and CPT Belgium, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Agreement on 16 May 2008 after the
Stock Exchange trading hours with Sekisui whereby CPT Belgium conditionally agreed to sell
and Sekisui conditionally agreed to purchase the Sale Share for a total consideration of
US$37.5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$292.5 miltion}. The Sale Share represents
75% of the equity interest in CPT. Upon Completion, CPT will be owned as to 75% by
Sekisui and 25% by CPT Belgium.

The Disposal constitutes a major transaction for the Company under the Listing Rules and is
subject to the approval of the Shareholders. As no Shareholder has a material interest in the
Disposal which is different from the other Shareholders, no Shareholder is required to abstain
from voting. Dr. Chow, the controlling Shareholder holding 154,682,359 Shares (representing
55.52% of the total issued Shares) as at the date of the Agreement, has given his written

* For identification purpose only
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consent for the Agreement. The written consent has been accepted in lieu of holding a special
general meeting to approve the Agreement pursuant to Rule i4.44 of the Listing Rules.

The purpose of this circular is to provide you with, among other things, further information on
the Agreement and the Group.

THE AGREEMENT

Date

16 May 2008

Parties

(i) CPT Belgium (as seller);
(iiy  Sekisui (as purchaser); and
(iii} the Company (as guarantor).

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief and after making all reasonable
enquiries, Sekisui and its ultimate beneficial owners are third parties independent of the
Company and its connected persons (as defined under the Listing Rules).

There was no prior transaction between the Group and Sekisui and its ultimate beneficial
owners in the last 12 months which would otherwise require aggregation under Rule 14.22 of
the Listing Rules.

Asset to be disposed of
The Sale Share, being 75% equity interest in CPT.

At the date of the Agreement, the share capital of CPT amounted to EUR1 1,500,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$141.5 million), consisting of one share in the nominal amount of
EUR11,500,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$141.5 miilien) held by CPT Belgium. Subject
to Completion, CPT Belgium shall split the share in CPT into one share in the nominal
amount of EURS,625,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$106.1 million) (i.e. the Sale Share)
and one share in the nominal amount of EUR2,875,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$35.4
million) and transfer the Sale Share to Sekisui. Immediately upon Completion, CPT will be
owned as to 75% by Sekisui and 25% by CPT Belgium. CPT and its subsidiaries will no
longer be subsidiaries of the Company. The CPT Group will no longer be consolidated into
the Group but will be equity accounted for as associated companies of the Company.

The Sale Share will be sold together with any and all rights pertaining 1o it from 1 April 2008,
including the rights to profits and dividends for all fiscal years commencing on or after 1
April 2008 and profits for prior fiscal years to the extent they have not been distributed are for
the account of Sekisui,
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Consideration

The consideration for the Sale Share shall be US$37.5 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$292.5 million), subject to adjustment as described in the paragraph headed “Net asset
value of the CPT Group” below. The consideration shall be paid by Sekisui in the following
manner:

(i)  an amount equal to 80% of the consideration, i.e. US$30 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$234 million), shall be paid to the Company’s bank account in
immediately available funds on Completion; and

(ii)  the balance of 20% of the consideration, i.e. US$7.5 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$58.5 million), shall be paid to and held in an account maintained with an escrow
agent until 30 September 2009.

The balance held in the escrow account referred to in (ii) above shall be reduced by any
amount of payment that CPT Belgium shall be obliged to make to Sekisui and/or the CPT
Group pursuant to the Agreement, in particular without limitation for claims based on a
breach of the representations and warranties given or on indemnifications undertaken pursuant
to the Agreement, provided that the escrow balance shall be reduced for purposes of the
Compensation, if any, to be made by CPT Belgium regarding shortfall in the net asset value of
the CPT Group pursuant to the Agreement as described below. Any remaining balance held in
the escrow account {together with all the interest accrued in the escrow account) shall be
released to CPT Belgium after 30 September 2009.

Net asset value of the CPT Group

The consideration of US$37.5 million for the Sale Share was agreed between the parties based
on arm’s length negotiations subject to the consolidated net asset value of the CPT Group
being not less than US$29.5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$230.1 million) as at 31
March 2008 (the “Minimum NAV”}).

CPT Belgium shall deliver an unaudited net asset statement of the CPT Group as at 31 March
2008 to Sekisui on or before 30 September 2008. The aforesaid net asset statement shall be
based on the audited consolidated financial statements of CPT as of 31 March 2008 which are
to be prepared under generally accepted accounting principles in Germany, and adjusted so as
to include members of the CPT Group only and assuming ongoing business of CPT and
without taking into account the change of its shareholders. This net asset statement prepared
on the aforesaid basis will be reported on by the auditors of CPT Belgium on or before 31
October 2008. If the consolidated net asset value of the CPT Group as at 31 March 2008 as
shown in the aforesaid net asset statement finally accepted by both parties (the “Agreed
NAV”) is less than the Minimum NAYV, CPT Belgium shall compensate CPT in an amount
equals to the amount by which the Minimum NAV exceeds the Agreed NAV (the
“Compensation”) by way of:

(i) waiver of an equal amount of Shareholder’s Loans;
(ii) payment by CPT Belgium into CPT’s free capital reserve; or

(iii) any other method, provided that such method does not have any negative legal, tax or
accounting implications,
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it being understood that CPT Belgium may choose at its discretion the method of Compensation.
The Compensation shall be effected by CPT Belgium within 10 Banking Days after the net
asset statement has been finalised in accordance with the terms of the Agreement.

Refinancing of Shareholder’s Loans and release of the guarantees

The Company and its affiliates have provided Sharcholder’s Loans to the CPT Group. As at
the date of the Agreement, the outstanding balance of the Sharcholder’s Loans, subject to
audit and adjustment, amounted to approximately EUR11.1 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$136.5 million). In addition, the Company and its affiliates have provided guarantees in
favour of the CPT Group for banking facilities of the CPT Group. As at the date of the
Agreement, the amount of facilities guaranteed by the Company and/or its affiliates comprised
facilities denominated in EUR and AUD and amounted to EUR7.5 million and AUDI12.4
million (equivalent to an aggregate of approximately HK$184.0 million), of which
approximately EUR7.1 million and AUD9.2 million (equivalent to an aggregate of
approximately HK$155.4 million) have been utilised by the CPT Group.

Pursuant to the Agreement, Sekisui agreed to make available a credit line to CPT in order to
replace 75% of the Shareholder’s Loans on or before 30 September 2009. Sekisui also agreed
that until 30 September 2009, it shall use best efforts to obtain the unconditional release of the
Company and its affiliates from 75% of their obligations and liabilities under the guarantees.
Until the guarantees have been replaced, Sekisui will keep the Company and its affiliates fully
indemnified from any liabilities resulting from any guarantees provided by the Company and
its affiliates which are in excess of their 25% share.

Conditions
Completion is conditional upon the satisfaction of the following conditions:

(i)  the relevant merger control approvals or clearances from the German Federal Cartel
Office and, if required, the competent cartel office of the PRC have been obtained;

(ii) the Company has obtained all consents and approvals required under the Listing Rules
in connection with the Agreement and the transaction contemplated in the Agreement;
and

(iii) receipt of the consideration for the Sale Share in the manner as described in the paragraph
headed “Consideration” above,

CPT Belgium and Sekisui undertake to use their best efforts and to cause each of the conditions
in (i) and (ii) above to be satisfied as soon as possible. As at the Latest Practicable Date,
condition (ii) above has been fulfilled. If the condition in (i) above shall not be fulfilled on a
date falling 6 months after the date of the Agreement (or any such later date as the parties
may agree), CPT Belgium and Sekisui may rescind the Agreement by giving written notice to
the other, and the Agreement shall cease to have force and effect. The parties aim at satisfaction
of the condition in (i) latest by 31 August 2008. None of the above conditions are capable of
being waived.
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Reorganisation

Certain existing subsidiaries of CPT will not form part of the CPT Group and will not be
disposed of to Sekisui. Pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, prior to the Completion Date,
CPT Belgium shall at its cost and expenses initiate an internal reorganisation to transfer these
companies out of CPT. If the recrganisation has not been completed at the Completion Date,
CPT Belgium shall cooperate with Sekisui to continue and complete the reorganisation and
indemnify Sekisui from all damages, costs, liabilities, tax or other expenses and losses that
may be suffered by Sekisui or the CPT Group in relation to the reorganisation or these
excluded companies.

Completion

Within 5 Banking Days after conditions (i) and (ii) have been fulfilled, Completion shall take
place and Sekisui shall pay the consideration for the Sale Share referred to in condition (iii)
and in the manner as described in the paragraph headed “Consideration™ above.

INFORMATION ON CPT

CPT was established in 2002 and has its headquarters in Munich, Germany. The CPT Group is
principally engaged in pipe construction and rehabilitation for use in urban area. It provides
pipe planning to installation services which uses two leading key technologies, the cured in
place pipe technology and the spiral wound technology, across a number of markets in Europe,
Australia and the Middle East.

As at 30 September 2007, the unauditéd net asset value of the CPT Group amounted to
approximately HK$235.4 million. The unaudited results of the CPT Group for each of the two
years ended 31 March 2006 and 2007 were as follows:

2006 2007
HKS$ million HK$ million

Loss before taxation 12.8 6.7
Loss after taxation 11.3 8.1

The aforesaid unaudited financial figures of the CPT Group were prepared under generally
accepted accounting principles in Hong Kong based on management accounts of the companies
comprising the CPT Group. In addition, the above unaudited figures were prepared based on
certain assumptions which include, among others things, the assumption that the reorganisation
as described in the paragraph headed “Reorganisation” above has been completed and the
group structure of the CPT Group had been in place incorporating the financial effects of the
reorganisation throughout the two financial years ended 31 March 2006 and 2007.

REASONS FOR THE DISPOSAL

The Company is an investment holding company which, through its subsidiaries, is principally
engaged in the business of construction and engineering, insurance and investment, property,
information technology, and food and beverages. The Company currently has operations in
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China, South East Asia, Europe, North America, Australia and the Middle East. In particular,
the Company’s presence in the PRC property market includes cities such as Shanghai, Chengdu,
Beijing, Shenzhen, Hefei and Changchun,

Under the management of the Company, the CPT Group has become one of the leading global
pipe rehabilitation companies and developed leading technologies for the rehabilitation of
drinking water networks and sewer networks. The Company has also supported the set-up of a
global sales and distribution network for the CPT Group. During the recent years, the CPT
Group recorded remarkable growth in turnover.

Sekisui is a limited company incorporated in Japan having over 60 years of history. It has
around 200 companies operating in 20 countries, providing high performance products in the
fields of plastics, water environment solutions and factory produced housing. Its products
range from medical, interlayer films, foam, packaging tape, industrial tape, fine chemicals,
speciality chemicals, water supply and drainage systems, civil engineering systems, industrial
materials and pipes, composite products and materials, to building materials.

The Directors consider that the products and services of the CPT Group and Sekisui are
complementary to each other and believe that it is in the interests of CPT to partner with
Sekisui, which is a sizeable player in the construction material industry, to fuel its further
growth in business and improve its competitiveness and marketability.,

Based on the above and the expected gain on the Disposal as described below, the Directors
(including the independent non-executive Directors) consider that the terms and conditions of
the Agreement are fair and reasonable and the Disposal is in the interest of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole.

FINANCIAL EFFECTS OF THE DISPOSAL

The Disposal is e'xpected to increase the total net assets of the Group by approximately
HK$120.1 million, The total assets and liabilities of the Group will decrease with reference to
the amount of assets and liabilities of the CPT Group as a result of the Disposal.

The Disposal is expected to generate a positive return on the Company’s investment in CPT
and generate cash inflow for the Group. Based on the Minimum NAYV and the consideration
for the Sale Share, the Disposal is expected to result in an estimated gain of approximately
US$15.4 million {equivalent to approximately HK$120.1 million). The actual gain or loss
resulting from the Disposal however will be determined based on the actual net asset value of
the CPT Group as at the Completion Date with adjustment on the Compensation, if any. The
Company intends that the proceeds from the Disposal will be retained as general working
capital of the Group.

Immediately upon Completion, CPT will be owned as to 75% by Sekisui and 25% by CPT
Belgium. CPT and its subsidiaries will cease 10 be subsidiaries of the Company but will be
accounted for as associated companies of the Company.
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GENERAL

The Disposal constitutes a major transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules and
requires the approval of the Shareholders. As no Shareholder has a material interest in the
Disposal which is different from the other Shareholders, no Shareholder is required to abstain
from voting. Dr. Chow, the controlling Shareholder holding 154,682,359 Shares (representing
approximately 55.52% of the total issued Shares) as at the date of the Agreement, has given
his written consent for the Agreement. The written consent has been accepted in lieu of
holding a special general meeting to approve the Agreement pursuant to Rule 14.44 of the
Listing Rules,

Your attention is drawn to the financial information of the Group and further information set
out in the appendices to this circular.

Yours faithfully,

For and on behalf of the Board
Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Chow Yei Ching
Chairman and Managing Director



APPENDIX 1 FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

1. FINANCIAL AND TRADING PROSPECTS

Upon Completion, the Group will continue its principal activities in construction and
engineering, insurance and investment, property, information technology and food and
beverage with greater financial flexibility for other investment opportunities.

In the 2007-2008 Policy Address of the Chief Executive of the Hong Kong government,
a host of infrastructure projects was cited for the future. The total projected cost of
those projects amounted to HK$250 billion or about 17% of the nominal gross domestic
products of Hong Kong. These projects are expected to provide mid to long-term growth
impetus to the city. Against such a backdrop, the Group expects the businesses of the
Group, particularly construction and engineering as well as food and beverage, to thrive
in the coming years.

In the PRC, continuous growth is expected for the general economy and major arcas
including private consumption, investment and exports. While liquidity will remain
ample, the general pace of growth will be more moderate as wages and other costs
continue to rise and the country tightens monetary control. Anticipating persistently
strong demand for housing, the Group is optimistic about securing bigger revenue from
property sales, which will become a stable income source for it in the years to come.

2, INDEBTEDNESS STATEMENT
2.1 Borrowing and debts
Borrowings

As at the close of business on 30 April 2008, being the latest practicable date for
the purpose of this indebtedness statement, the Group had secured bank borrowings
of approximately HK$268,003,000, unsecured borrowings and overdrafts of
approximately HK$1,919,943,000 and Convertible Bonds with principal value of
HK$384,802,000.

Pledge of assets

At the close of business on 30 April 2008, the Group had pledged its properties,
inventories and deposits of HKS$1,2803,800,000, HK$71,796,000 and
HK$29,544,000 respectively to secure the general banking facilities granted to
the Group.

Contingent liabilities

As at the close of business on 30 April 2008, the Group had contingent liabilities

in respect of guarantees issued for backup facilities granted to an associate and
jointly controlled entities of HK$14,570,000 and HK$411,810,000 respectively.

— 10—
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2.2 Disclaimer

Save as aforesaid and apart from intra-group liabilities, as at 30 April 2008, the
Group had no other outstanding mortgages, charges, debentures, loan capital or
bank overdrafts, loans or other similar indebtedness, hire purchase commitments,
liabilities under acceptances, acceptance credits or any guarantees or any material
contingent liabilities.

MATERIAL ADVERSE CHANGES

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Directors are not aware of any material adverse
changes in the financial or trading position of the Company since 31 March 2007, being
the date to which the [atest audited financial statements of the Company were made up,
save as publicly disclosed.

WORKING CAPITAL

The Directors, after due and careful consideration, are of the opinion that upon completion
of the Disposal and after taking into account the internal resources and present banking
facilities available to the Group and the expected proceeds to be received from the
Disposal, the Group has sufficient working capital for its requirements for at least the
next twelve months from the date of this circular in the absence of unforeseen
circumstances.

— 11—
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1. RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

This circular includes particulars given in compliance with the Listing Rules for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors jointly and
severally accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this
circular with regard to the Company and confirm, having made all reasonable enquiries
and that to the best of their knowledge and belief, there are no other facts, the omission
of which would make any statement herein misleading.

2, DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS
i. Directors’ and chief executives’ interests in securities

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO} which had been notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be recorded in the register to
be kept by the Company pursuant to S352 of the SFO or as otherwise required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers (the “Model Code™)
contained in the Listing Rules were as follows:

(a) Interests in the Company — Shares (long position)

Number of Shares Approximate

Personal Family percentage

Name of Directors Capacity interests inferests Total  of interest
{%}

Chow Yei Ching Beneficial owner 154,682 359 — 154682159 35.52
KUOK Hoi Sang Beneficial owner 98,216 — 98,216 0.04
TAM Kwak Wing Beneficial owner 169,015 n4n 201,488 0.07
HO Chung Leung Beneficial owner 40,000 — 40,000 0.01
" Dr. Chow beneficially owned 154,682,359 Shares, representing approximately 55.52%

of the Shares. These Shares were the same as those Shares disclosed in the section
“Substantial Shareholders’ interests in securities™ below.

{b) Interests in associated corporation — shares (long position)

Number of ordinary shares Approsimate
Associated Personal ~ Corporate Family percentage
Name of Directors  corporation  Capacily interests  inferests inlerests Total  of interest
(%)
Chow Yei Ching  (PHL Tnterest of — 136933 — 12132698 6.9
contzolled
corporation
KUOK Hoi Sang ~ CPHL Beneficial 2.400,000 - — 2,400,000 LI
owner
TAM Kwok Wing ~ CPHL Beneficial 400000 - 10400 410460 {19
owner
* Dr. Chow had notified CPHL that under the SFO, he was deemed to be interested in

121,326,933 shares in CPHL which were all held by the Company as Dr. Chow
beneficially owned 154,682,359 Shares, representing approximately 55.52% of the
Shares.

—_2 —
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ii.

Save as disclosed above, as at the Latest Practicable Date, so far as was known to
the Directors and the chief executives of the Company, no other person had
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations {within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFQ) which were required 1o be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisicns of the SFO); or were required, pursuant to $352 of the SFO, to be
recorded in the register referred to therein; or were required, pursuant to the
Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Substantial Shareholders’ interests in securities

As at the Latest Practicable Date, so far as was known to the Directors and the
chief executives of the Company, the interests and short positions of the persons
or corporations in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which had been disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under S336 of the SFO were as follows:

Number of
underlying
Shares held
(under equity Approximate
Substantial Number of derivatives of percentage
Shareholders Capacity Shares held the Company) of interest
(%)
Chow Yei Ching Beneficial owner 154,682 359(L) — 55.52(L)
Miyakawa Michiko Beneficial owner 154,682,359(L) - 55.52(L)
(Note 1)
The Goldman Sachs Group,  Interesi of - 26,993,989(L) 9.69(L)
Ine. controtied 2,306,933(8) 0.83(5)
corporation {Note 2)
Goldman Sachs (UK) Interest of - 23,992,101(L) 8.61(L)
LL.C. controlled 2,306,933(S) 0.83(S)
corporation {Note 3)
Gotdman Sachs Group Interest of - 23,992,101(L) 3.61(L)
Holdings {U.K.) controlled 2,306,933(S) 0.83(8)
corporation {Note 3)
Goldman Sachs Holdings Interest of . — 23,992, 101(L) 8.61(L)
(UK) controlled 2,306,933(5) 0.83(S)
corporation {Note 3)
Goldman Sachs Beneficial owner - 23,992,101(L) B.61(L)
International 2,306,933(5) 0.83(5)
{Note 3}
The Goldman, Sachs & Co.  Interest of 3,001,888(L) — [.08(L)
LL.C. controlled {Note 4)
corporation
Geldman Sachs & Co Beneficial owner 3,001,888(L}) - 1.08(L)
{Note 4)
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APPENDIX II GENERAL INFORMATION

Notes:

N Under Part XV of the SFO, Ms. Miyakawa Michiko, the spouse of Dr. Chow, is deemed 1o
be interested in the same parcel of 154,682,359 Shares held by Dr. Chow.

(2) The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is taken to have an interest in the 3,001,888 Shares held by
Goldman Sachs & Co and the 21,685,168 Shares that would be held by Goldman Sachs
International upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds held by Goldman Sachs
International. The Convertible Bonds are issued by the Company to Goldman Sachs
International on 26 July 2006. Goldman Sachs & Co and Geldman Sachs International are
both wholly-owned subsidiaries of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

3) Goldman Sachs (UK) L.L.C., Goldman Sachs Group Holdings (U.K.) and Goldman Sachs
Holdings (U.K.) are taken to be interested in the 21,685,168 Shares that would be held by
Goldman Sachs International upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds. Goldman Sachs
International is 99% owned by Goldman Sachs Holdings (U.K.) and 100% held by Goldman
Sachs Group Holdings (U.K.) and Goldman Sachs (UK) L.L.C.

4) The Goldman, Sachs & Co. L.L.C. is taken to be interested in the 3,001,888 Shares held by
Goldman Sachs & Co. Goldman Sachs & Co is owned as to 99.8% by The Goldman Sachs
Group, Inc. and the remaining (.2% by The Goldman, Sachs & Co. L.L.C. (which is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.).

The letter “L" denotes a long position and the letter “S” denotes a short position.

Save as disclosed above, as at the Latest Practicable Date, so far as was known to the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company, no other person had interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or, who were, directly or indirectly, beneficially interested in 10%
or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any member of the Group or in any options in
respect of such capital,

LITIGATION

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the members of the Group was engaged in
any litigation, arbitration of material importance or claim of material importance pending
or threatened against any member of the Group.

CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENT AND COMPETING BUSINESSES

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors or their respective associates
had an interest in any business constituting a competing business to the Group.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors had any direct or indirect
interest in any assets which had been acquired, disposed of or leased to, or which are
proposed to be acquired, disposed of or leased to, the Company or any of its subsidiaries
since 31 March 2007 (the date to which the latest published audited financial statements
of the Company were made up).

As at the Latest Practicable Date, there was no contract or arrangement in which any
Director was materially interested and which was significant in relation to the business
of the Group.
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S. SERVICE CONTRACT

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors had entered, or were proposing
to enter, into any service contract with member of the Group which is not expiring or
may not be terminated by the Company within a year without payment of any
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

The following contracts have been entered into by the Group (not being contracts
entered into in the ordinary course of business) within the two years immediately
preceding the date of this circular and are or may be material:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d}

(e)

the agreement dated 27 June 2006 entered into between f &+ (R#) HEEHH
fR 22 &) (Chevalier (Chengdu) Investment Management Limited) (" Chevalier
Chengdu” ), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and % B & 2 {5 i /5
(Anhui Province Hua Qiao Hotel) and XM EZHE S E 4 7 (Anhui Anxing
Lianhe Corporation), pursuant to which Chevalier Chengdu will invest
RMBI112,870,000 into a joint venture development project, details of which are
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 11 July 2006 and the circular
dated 2 August 2006;

the purchase agreement between the Company and Goldman Sachs International
dated 26 July 2006, pursuant to which the Company agreed to issue, and the
Purchaser agreed to subscribe for, HK$450 million in aggregate principal of the
Convertible Bonds, details of which are set out in the announcement dated 27
July 2006;

the share purchase agreement dated 25 November 2006 entered between CPHL
(formerly known as Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited) and Sinochina Pacific
Limited (“SPL") in relation to, among other things, the acquisition of the entire
issued share capital of Sinochina Enterprises Limited (“SEL”) in two tranches
and a loan of up to HK$3.5 million to be advanced by CPHL to SEL and each of
its subsidiaries upon request at any time after the completion of the first tranche.
Details are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 1 December 2006
and the circular dated 7 February 2007;

the shareholders’ agreement dated 31 January 2007 entered between CPHL, SPL
and SEL, pursuant to which the board composition, dividend policy and transfer
of shares of SEL are agreed upon until the compietion of the second tranche of
SEL shares, details are set out in the announcement of the Company dated |
December 2006 and the circular dated 7 February 2007,

the escrow agreement dated 31 January 2007 entered into among SPL and CPHL,
in which a proportion of the consideration for the second tranche of SEL shares is
placed into escrow until the expiry of the one year period following the completion
of the second tranche, details of which are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated | December 2006 and the circular dated 7 February 2007;
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()

(2)

(h)

(i)

Ky

the agreement dated 12 March 2007 entered into between the Company and CPHL
in relation to the sale and purchase of a number of subsidiaries of CPHL for an
aggregate consideration of approximately HK$56 million, details of which are set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 14 March 2007 and the circular
dated 4 April 2007,

the placing and subscription agreement dated 3 May 2007 entered by the Company
in relation to the placement of 32,200,000 existing ordinary shares of CPHL and
the subscription of 25,384,146 new ordinary shares of CPHL, details of which are
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 3 May 2007 and the circular
dated 25 May 2007;

the subscription agreement dated 19 July 2007 made between Victoria Link Limited
(“VLL™), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and ¥ £ FE X AT HRH
{£ 4% E] (New Star Universe Construction Development Co. Ltd) (“NSUC”) in
relation to the increase in capital of REFEFRHEHEMBEFRELL
A] (Changchun New Star Universe Sheng Chi Real Estate Development Co. Ltd.)
(“Changchun New Star™), of which VLL will invest RMB192 million. The details
are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 24 July 2007 and the
circular dated 10 August 2007,

the sino-foreign joint venture agreement dated 19 July 2007 made between VLL
and NSUC in relation to the formation of Changchun New Star as a sino-foreign
joint venture enterprise under the laws of the PRC, details of which are set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 24 July 2007 and the circular dated 10
August 2007; and

the Agreement.

7.  MISCELLANEOUS

(a)

(b}

(c)

(d)

(e)

The qualified accountant of the Company is Mr. HO Chung Leung. He is a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the U.K. and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The secretary of the Company is Mr. HO Sai Hou. He is a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the U.K. and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The registered office of the Company is situated at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda. Its head office and its principal place of
business is situated at 22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre, 8 Wang Hoi
Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong.

The Hong Kong branch share registrars and transfer office of the Company is
Tricor Standard Limited, 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong.

In the event of inconsistency, the English text of this circular shall prevail over
the Chinese text.
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8. DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

Copies of the following documents are available for inspection during normal business
hours at the head office and principal place of business of the Company at 22nd Floor,
Chevalier Commercial Centre, 8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong, from the
date of this circular up to and including 27 June 2008:

(a)
(b)

{c)

(d)

(e)

the Company’s memorandum and bye-taws;

the material contracts referred to in the paragraph headed “Material contracts™ in
this appendix;

the annual reports of the Company for each of the two financial years ended 31
March 2006 and 2007,

the interim report of the Company for the six months ended 30 September 2007,
and

a copy of each circulars issued pursuant to the requirement set out in Chapters 14
and/or 14A which has been issued since 31 March 2007 (the date to which the
latest published audited financial statements of the Company were made up).
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CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HABREEERAE?

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stock code: 025)

NOTIFICATION OF BOARD MEETING

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Chevalier International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) announces that a meeting of the -Board of the
Company will be held on Wednesday, 16 July 2008 at 10:45 a.m. at which the
Board will, inter alia, approve the release of the final results announcement of
the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2008 and
consider the payment of a final dividend, if any.

By Order of the Board
Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Ho Sai Hou
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 3 July 2008

As at the date of this announcement, the Board of the Company comprises Dr. Chow Yei
Ching (Chairman and Managing Director), Mr. Kuok Hoi Sang (Vice Chairman and
Managing Director), Mr. Tam Kwok Wing (Deputy Managing Director), Mr. Chow Vee
Tsung, Oscar, Mr. Ho Chung Leung and Mr. Ho Sai Hou as executive directors and Dr.
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph, Mr. Sun Kai Dah, George and Mr. Yang Chuen Liang, Charles as
independent non-executive directors.

*  For identification purpose only
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{Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

{Stock Code: 025)

ANNOUNCEMENT OF RESULTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2008

RESULTS

The Directors of Chevalier International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) are pleased to announce the audited
consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group™) for the year ended 31st March 2008,
together with the comparative figures, summarised as follows:

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2008

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other (expense)/income, net
Other gain, net

Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Operating profit
Share of results of associates
Share of results of jointly controlled entities

Finance income
Finance costs

Finance costs, net

Profit before taxation
Income tax expenses

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Minority interests

Dividends

Earnings per share
— Basic (HK3$ per share)

- Diluted (HKY per share)

2008 2007

Note HK$’000 HK$'000
3 5,568,678 4,665,237
(4,885,395)  (3,911,145)

683,283 754,092

4 (101,450) 120,465
5 422,382 100,307
(386,864) (342,131)

(125,925) (118,694)

491,426 514,039

27,258 5,263

2,909 (3,159)

_____ 521,593 516,143

6 16,420 14,263
6 (126,043) (122,356)
6 ... (109,623) | (108,093)
7 411,970 408,050
8 (112,811) (66,853)
299,159 341,197

230,747 317,869

68,412 23,328

299,159 341,197

9 125,362 139,291
10 0.83 1.14
10 0.77 1.04




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31ST MARCH 2008

Non-current assets

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments

Goodwill

Other intangible assets

Interests in associates

Interests in jointly controlled entities
Available-for-sale investments
Investments at fair value through profit or loss
Deferred tax assets

Other non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Properties for sale

Debtors, deposits and prepayments

Amounts due from associates

Amounts due from jointly controlled entities
Amounts due from customers for contract work
Investments at fair value through profit or loss
Perivative financial instruments

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Creditors, bills payable, deposits and accruals
Unearned insurance premiums
— due within one year
Qutstanding insurance claims
Amounts due to associates
Amounts due to customers for contract wark
Deferred income
Provision for taxation
Derivative financial instruments
Bank borrowings
Other loans
Other payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

2008 2007
Note HKS$°000 HK$000
1,117,445 523,644
769,438 729,167
446,018 455,239
210,330 210,330
161,044 158,864
172,818 137,084
264,745 239,511
293,224 182,298
134,005 303,195
25,438 8,744
403,187 24,448
3,997,692 2,972,524
338,717 304,385
258,945 461,159
11 1,450,026 1,165,974
19,273 17,175
240,820 259,559
312,422 343,849
760,218 1,000,758
9,460 42,831
1,191,145 722,998
4,581,026 4,318,688
12 1,321,692 1,178,146
26,503 32,174
215,572 255,337
5,926 3,429
260,681 208,113
24,484 21,372
71,465 86,009
38,930 2,628
723,584 815,066
315 256
7,760 -
2,696,912 2,602,530
1,884,114 1,716,158
5,881,806 4,688,682




Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
Minority interests

Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Other payable
Unecarned insurance premiums
— due over one yecar
Deferred tax liabilities
Bank borrowings
Other loans
Convertible bonds — liability component
Convertible bonds ~ derivative component

Total equity and non-current liabilities

Noze

2008 2007
HKS$000 HK$'000
348,228 348,228
2,973,919 2,645,093
3,322,147 2,993,321
445,036 322,196
3,767,183 3,315,517
- 7,079

11,357 13,789
206,231 113,487
1,511,621 856,275
1,384 1,445
381,275 354,423
2,755 26,667
2,114,623 1,373,165
5,881,806 4,688,682




Notes

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accardance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS™).
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
investment properties, available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments)
at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies.

(a) New standard, amendment and interpretations
In current year, the Group has applied the following new standard, amendment and interpretations (“new HKFRSs™)

issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), which are effective for the Group’s
financial year beginning 1st April 2007 and relevant to the Group's operations.

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital Disclosures

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HK(IFRIC) - Int B Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

HK{IFRIC) - Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment
HK(IFRIC) — Int 11 HKFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how the results and financial position of the current or prior
accounting periods have been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.

(b) Comparative figures

Certain of the comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.
Business and geographical segments
Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is organised on a worldwide basis into five divisions. These divisions are the basis on which
the Group reports its primary segment information. Principal activilies of the segments are as follows:

Construction and engineering: Construction and engineering work for lift and escalator, civil, building construction, electrical &
mechanical, environmental and pipe rehabilitation contracts.

Insurance and investment: General insurance business except aircraft, aircraft liabilities and credit insurance, and investment.
Property: Property investment, development and management, cold storage and hotel operations.
Food and beverages: Food and beverages trading and retailing.

Computer and information communication technology and others: Sales and servicing of IT equipment and business machines and
retailing and trading and servicing of motor vehicles and food trading.

Segment information about these businesses is presented below.



Revenue and results
Year ended 315t March 2008

REVENUE
Total segment revenue
Inter-segment revenue

External revenue

RESULTS
Segment resulls

Unallocated corporate expenses

Share of results of associates

Share of results of jointly
controlied entities

Finance income

Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Income tax expenses

Profit for the year

Computer and

information
Construction Insurance communication
and and Food and technology
engincering investment Property beverages and others Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'060 HK$000 HK$’000 HK3°000 HK$’000
3,845,780 120,431 419,935 299,034 964,253 5,649,433
(384) (15,328} (52,630} - (12,412) (80,755}
3,845,396 105,102 367,305 299,034 951,841 5,568,678
14,652 (71,052) 501,446 7,087 54,859 506,992
(15,566)
3,966 - 14,509 9,631 (848) 27,258
1,067 - 1,842 - - 2,909
16,420
{126,043)
411,970
(112,811)

299,159

Inter-segment revenue is charged at prices determined by management with reference to market prices.

Assets and liabilities
As at 31st March 2008

ASSETS

Segment assets

Interests in associates

Interests in jointly
controlled entities

Unallocated corporate assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Total liabilities

Construction
and
engineering
HK$'0060

2,214,392
9,580

16,155

1,247,512

Insurance
and
investment
HK$'000

1,766,442

357,957

Property
HK$000

3,291,693
47,826

248,590

138,315

Food and
beverages
HKS$000

325,609
77,963

58,622

Computer and

information
communication
technology
and others Consolidated
HK$000 HK$000
421,825 8,019,961
37,449 172,818
- 264,745
121,194
8,578,718
111,612 1,914,018
2,897,517
4,811,535




Other information
Year ended 31st March 2008

Capital expenditure

Depreciation and amortisation

Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment

Write back of impairment loss
on prepaid lease payments

Impairment loss on available-
for-sale investments

Revenuc and results
Year ended 315t March 2007

REVENUE
Total segment revenue
Inter-segment revenue

External revenue

RESULTS
Segment results

Unallocated corporale expenses

Share of results of associates

Share of results of jointly
controlled entities

Finance income

Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Income tax cxpenses

Profit for the year

Computer and

information
Coastruction Insurance communication
and and Food and technology
engineering investment Property beverages and others Consolidated
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
74,847 32 11,084 36,402 1,445 123,810
59,535 74 18,502 21,987 5,004 105,102
- - 4,059 3,356 - 7415
- - (2,637) - - (2,637)
- 835 - - - 835
Computer and
information
Construction Insurance communication
and and Food and technology
engineering investment Property beverages  and others Consolidated
HK$°000 HK§'060 HK§000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000
3,003,573 149,140 352,672 250,076 995,159 4,750,620
(284) (19,756) (47,531) - (17.812) (85,383)
3,003,289 129,384 305,141 250,076 977,347 4,665,237
186,131 150,238 135,476 14,909 39,417 526,171
(12,132)
2,557 - (70) 955 1,821 5,263
2,674 - (5,833) - - (3,159
14,263
(122,356)
408,050
(66,853)

Inter-segment revenue is charged at prices determined by management with reference to market prices.

341,197



Assets and liabilities
As at 31st March 2007

ASSETS

Segment assets

Interests in associates

Interests in jointly
controlted entities

Unallocated corporate assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Total liabilities

Other information
Year ended 315t March 2007

Capital expenditure

Depreciation and amortisation

Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment

Impairment loss on prepaid
lease payments

Impairment loss on intangible
assets and goodwill

Impairment loss on available-
for-sale investments

Construction
and
engineering
HK$'000

1,970,217

9,294

15,083

1,062,840

Construction
and
engineering
HK$'000

117,354
57,931

6,782

7,157

Insurance
and
investment
HK$'000

1,788,237

345,692

Insurance
and
investment
HK$'000

373
161

1,473

Property
HK$'000

2,357,990
164

224,428

136,784

Property
HK$’000

3,892
19,614

6,972

1,628

Food and
beverages
HK$’000

318,557
62,092

47,630

Food and
beverages
HK§'000

45,656
17,352

Computer and
information
communication
technology
and others
HK$'000

406,279
65,534

137,459

Computer and
information
communication
technology

and others
HKS’000

2,132
6,864

Consolidated
HK$'060

6,841,280
137,084

239,511
73,337

7,291,212

1,730,405
2,245,290

3,975,695

Consolidated
HK$'000

169,407
101,922

13,754
1,628
7,157

1,473




Geographical segmenis

The Group's operaticns in construction and engineering are mainly located in Hong Keng, Macau, Mainland China, Singapore,
Europe and Australia. Insurance and investment business is conducted in Hong Kong. Properiy operations are mainly carried out
in Hong Kong, Mainland China and Canada, Food and beverages business is carried out in Hong Kong, Singapore and Mainland
China. Computer and information communicatien technology operations are mainly carried out in Hong Kong, Mainland China
and Thailand. Other operations are carried out in Canada and the USA, respectively.

Revenue by geographical market

2008 2007

HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
Hong Kong 3,083,921 &5 2,717,761 58
Macau 834,150 15 424,475 9
Canada 458,778 8 411,363 9
Europe 403,770 7 465,607 10
Australia 207,961 4 173,302 4
Singapore 187,785 3 155,346 3
USA 160,632 3 106,872 2
Mainland China 156,515 3 132,801 3
Thailand 48,032 1 72,764 2
Others 27,134 1 4,946

5,568,678 100 4,665,237 100

The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of segment assets and capital expenditures analysed by geographical area in
which the asscts are located and capital expenditures are incurred:

Carrying amounts of

segment assets Capital expenditures
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK3'000 HK$'000
Hong Kong 4,482,949 3,576,789 51,788 69,778
Macau 243,885 131,892 2,928 1,249
Canada 311,062 282,244 1,292 1,136
Europe 545,376 575,336 29,206 49,923
Australia 262,979 288,727 19,974 26,275
Singapore 339,526 306,038 1,424 3,639
U.S.A. 206,082 209,068 - 37
Mainland China 1,524,094 1,084,441 17,198 1170
Thailand 58,636 52,973 - 67
Qthers 45,372 333,772 - 133
8,019,961 6,841,280 123,810 169,407




Revenue

Revenue represents net amount received and receivable from:

Construction and installation contracts

Sale of computer, business machines and others
Provision of maintenance and property management
Food and beverages

Warehouse operations

Sale of properties

Hotel operations

Interest income from investments

Leasing of propertics

Insurance premium

Dividend income from listed securities

Leasing of equipment

Other (expense)/income, net

{Loss)/gain on investments at fair value through profit or loss
(Loss)/gain on derivative financial instruments

Interest from amounts due from associates

Interest from amounts due from jointly controlled entities
Commission income

Other gain, net

Increase in fair value of investment properties

Fair value gain on derivative component of convertible bonds

Net loss on disposal of investment property

Gain on disposal of jointly controlled entities

Exchange gain, net

Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments

Impairment loss on goodwill

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment

Write back of/(provision for) impairment loss on prepaid lease payments
Impairment loss on intangible asset

Tax incentive

Bad debt recovered

Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments

2008 2007
HEE 000 HKE'000
3,170,812 2,369,135
1,043,613 1,069,632
624,952 576,733
299,034 250,076
117,257 100,070
85,082 60,080
66,005 59,730
53,894 72,614
52,904 45,450
40,129 47,509
11,079 9,260
3,917 4,948
5,568,678 4,665,237
2008 2007
HK3'000 HK$'000
(87,723) 90,179
(24,332) 22,222
165 735

1,257 2,900
9,183 4,479
{101,450) 120,465
2008 2007
HE$000 HK$°000
387,263 53,362
23,912 26,489
(653) -

- 19,714

9,373 9,712
(835) (1473)

- {5.000)

(7,415) (13,754)
2,637 (1,628)

- 2,157

1,768 -
7,770 7.636
{1,438) 7,406
422,382 100,307




Finance costs, net

Interest on bank loans and overdrafts
Interest on convertible bonds wholly repayable within five years

Less: Interest from bank deposits

Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging the following:

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Less: Amount capitalised to contract work

Auditors’ remuneration

Staff costs
Less: Amount capitalised to contract work

Operating lease payments in respect of leasing of
~ Premises under minimum lease payments
— Premises under contingent rent
— Equipment under minimum lease payments

Amortisation of prepaid Iease payments

Amortisation of intangible assets

Write down of properties for sale to net realisable value
Write down of inventories to net realisable value

and crediting the following:

Gross rental income of HK$52,904,000 (2007: HK$45,450,000) from
properties less direct operating expenses

Income from leasing of equipment

Write back of properties for sale to net realisable value

Income tax expenses

Current tax
Hong Kong
Overseas
Over-provision in prior years

Deferred tax

2008 2007
HE$060 HK$°0060
90,511 96,391
35,532 25,965
126,043 122,356
{16,420) (14,263)
109,623 108,093
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$000
89,353 86,576
177 (147)
89,156 86,429
10,236 8,674
964,739 827,420
(93,337) (58,032)
871,402 769,388
99,229 78,267
8,623 7,476
22,690 14,027
130,542 99,770
11,783 11,743
3,986 3,603

- 10,058

1,315 3,674
37,775 28,626
3,917 4,948
11,831 -
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
32,686 35,096
20,479 18,947
(13,036) -
40,129 54,043
72,682 12,810
112,811 66,853

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 17.5% (2007: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits after offsetting losses
brought forward of each individual company. Taxation on overseas profit has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit

for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the business operates.
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Dividends
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$°000
Interim dividend of HK$0.16 (2007: HK$0.20) per share, paid 44,573 55,716
Final dividend of HK$0.29 (2007: HK$0.30) per share, proposed 84,789 83,575
125,362 139,291

A final dividend of HK$0.29 per share, totalling HK$80,789,000, has been proposed by the Directors of the Company and is
subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting. This proposed dividend has not been dealt
with as dividend payable as at 31st March 2008.

Earrings per share

(a)

(b)

Basic

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the

weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2008 2007

HK3'000 HK$'000

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 230,747 317,869
Number of Number of

shares shares

000 ‘000

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 278,582 278,582
Basic earnings per share {HK$) 0.83 1.14

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company's dilutive potential ordinary shares are derived
from the convertible bonds. The convertible bonds are assumed to have been converted into ordinary shares, and the net
profit is adjusted to eliminate the interest expense less the tax effect. The number of shares calculated as below is
compared with the number of shares that would have been issued assuming the exercise of the convertible bonds.,

2008 2007

HK3000 HK$'600

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 230,747 317,869
Interest on convertible bonds 35,532 25,965
Fair value gain on derivative componeat of convertible bonds (23,912) {26,489)
Profit used to determine diluted earnings per share 242,367 317,345
Number of Number of

shares shares

000 ‘000

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 278,582 278,582
Adjustments for convertible bonds 37,873 26,656
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for diluted earnings per share 316,455 305,238
Diluted earnings per share (HK3) 0.77 1.04
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Debtors, deposits and prepayments

Trade debtors
Less: Provision for impairment

Other debtors, deposits and prepayments
Retention receivables

2008 2007
HK$'600 HK$'000
701,562 633,973
(26,897) (27,704)
674,665 606,269
584,286 426,629
191,075 133,076
1,450,026 1,165,974

The Group has established different credit policies for customers in each of its core businesses. The average credit period granted

to trade debtors was 60 days.

The ageing analysis of trade debtors is as follows:

0 - 60 days
61 - 90 days
QOver 90 days

Creditors, bills payable, deposits and accruals

Trade creditors and bills payable

Consideration payabie for the acquisition of certain interest in a jointly controlled entity
Accrued contract costs

Retention payables

Other creditors, deposits and accruals

The ageing analysis of trade creditors and bills payable is as follows:

0 - 60 days
61 — 90 days
QOver 90 days

Contingent liabilities

2008 2007
HK$°000 HE$'000
520,322 515,630
52,799 18,763
101,544 71,876
674,665 606,269
2008 2007
HE$'000 HK$'000
449,571 412,607
56,597 51,475
274,428 136,356
128,414 99,305
412,682 478,403
1,321,692 1,178,146
2008 2007
HES$'000 HK$'000
360,652 373,697
26,030 6,834
62,589 32,076
449,571 412,607

At 31st March 2008, the Group had contingent liabilities in respect of guarantees issued for utilised borrowings in relation to:

Banking facilities granted to jointly controlled entities
Banking facilities granted 1o associates

12

2008 2067
HKS$'000 HK3'000
321,500 95,950
46,650 43,520
368,550 139,470




14 Capital commitment

2008 2007
HEK§'000 HK$'000
Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided
in the financial statements in respect of
— acquisition of plant and equipment 2,495 5,952
— acquisition of land and building 41,192 -
43,687 5,952
Capital expenditure authorised but not contracted
in the financial statements in respect of
- acquisiticn of plant and equipment 16,729 664
— acquisition of land and building 1,279,025 -
1,339,441 6,616
The Group’s share of the capital commitment of its jointy controlled entities is as follows:
2008 2007
HE$'000 HK$000
Contracted for but not provided 216,724 146,813
Authorised but not contracted for 306,903 252,004
521,627 398.817

At 31st March 2008, the Group has committed to acquire the remaining 51% of the issued share capital of its associated company,
Sinochina Enterprises Limited (“SEL”) from Sinochina Pacific Limited, an independent third party. After that acquisition, SEL
will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. The consideration is based on the forthcoming financial resuits of SEL and
its subsidiaries and associates for the year ending 3tst December 2008. The total consideration to acquire the 100% of the issued
share capital of SEL (including HK$64 million paid in respect of the 49% already acquired) shall not exceed HK$200 million.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.29 (2007: HK$0.30) per share
payable to shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members of the Company on Friday, 26th
September 2008. Together with the interim dividend of HK$0.16 (2007: HK$0.20) per share paid on 9th
January 2008, the total dividends for the year amounted to HK$0.45 (2007: HK$0.50) per share representing a
dividend payout of 54.4%. Subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
to be held on Friday, 26th September, 2008, the dividend warrants will be distributed and paid on or about
Thursday, 9th October, 2008.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 23rd September 2008 to Friday, 26th
September 2008, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. To qualify for
the proposed final dividend, all transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s Branch Share Registrars in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited of 26th Floor,
Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:00 p.m. on Monday, 22nd
September, 2008.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the year under review, the Group’s revenue rose 19.4% to HK$5,569 million as compared to HK$4,665
million last year. The increase was mainly attributable to increased business from electrical and mechanical
(“E&M™) engineering and building construction projects in Macau and Hong Kong, together with steady revenue
growth from the lifts and escalators, aluminium window and pipe technology businesses. Still, the Group’s
performance was affected by the decline in profitability of various construction and environmental engineering
works as well as decreased return from securities investments. As a result, profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company was HK$231 million compared to HK$318 million last year, down 27.4%.

The Group operates the following core businesses: construction and engineering, insurance and investment,
property, food and beverages, computer and information communication technology and others.

Construction and Engineering

During the year under review, the Group was able to capitalise on increased demand for the construction,
installation and maintenance of lifts and escalators, E&M engineering projects, aluminium windows and pipe
technology services, resulting in a 28.0% increase in revenue for this segment from HKS$3,003 million to
HK$3,845 million. The total value of the major contracts on hand for this segment remains at HK$3.2 billion.

Despite higher revenues from the building construction division, gross margin suffered from significant price
increases in raw materials, especially metals. In response, the division imposed more stringent cost controls and
project management to mitigate the effects. In addition, the Group has finalised placing orders for raw materials
for current projects, which should also help minimise price volatility. Looking ahead, the division will aim at
incorporating pricing adjustment mechanisms into future coming contracts so as to reduce our exposure in these
areas.

Major projects on hand for the building construction division include:

1. Construction of “The Priaia” in Macau

i. Hong Kong Community College Development at The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
iti.  Redevelopment of Shatin Pass Estate

iv.  Two primary schools in Area 13, Yuen Long, New Territories

Despite very competitive market conditions, especially for the new sales and installation business, the lifts and
escalators division maintained its profit contributicn in the year under review. After installing more than 15,000
lifts and escalators over the past 30 years, the division is well positioned to serve the repair and maintenance
needs of its customers and derive stable recurring income. The division also secured a large project from
Singapore Housing Development Board to provide over 850 lifts and escalators. Other major projects on hand
include the supply and installation of lifts and escalators for the residential development at Celestial Heights,
The Palazzo and Tai Wai East Rail Station in Hong Kong, and Galaxy Mega Resort & Casino in Macau.

Most of the resources and efforts of the E&M division were focused on Macau in the year under review, which
provided additional revenue and steady profit contribution as compared to last year. Projects on hand for this
division in Macau include E&M works for the Galaxy Resort and Casino, the expansion phase of Wynn Resorts
and City of Dreams.

The performance of the environmental engineering division was affected by a project involving the supply and
installation of E&M equipment for Tai Po Sewage Treatment Works Stage V, which encountered delays and
rising costs for building materials and labour. The division has undergone internal restructuring to fine-tune its
bidding budget process and ongoing project monitoring with a view to restoring profitability.
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The aluminium windows and curtain wall division, which provides a full range of services including the design,
renovation, engineering management and installation of curtain walls, recorded another year of satisfactory
performance. Being one of the few major players in Hong Kong, the division has in recent years further
developed footholds in diverse overseas markets including Australia, Japan and Macau. Major projects on hands
for this division include designing, supplying and installing glass curtain walls for I-Square, a 32-storey
entertainment complex at the former site of the Hyatt Regency Hotel, 5t Paul Hospital in Causeway Bay, and
the 15-storey headquarters of Sydney Water, a Class A office building in Sydney.

During the year under review, the Group was able to narrow loss and increase revenue for the pipe technologies
business by streamnlining its operations. Pursuant to Sales and Purchase Agreement, the Group will dispose 75%
of its interests in a pipe technology business to Sekisui Chemical Co., Ltd. (*Sekisui”), a company listed on the
Tokyo Stock Exchange and Osaka Sccurities Exchange that provides a natural fit due to its sizeable presence in
the construction materials industry. The Group is confident that this will fuel further growth by improving
competitiveness and marketability. The transaction should also enable the Group to realise an estimated profit
of over HK$100 million, which will be recognised in 2008/0%9 upon closing of the disposal.

Following this, the Group will focus on developing niche businesses for the Hong Kong pipe rehabilitation
market and its new Australian technology, Plastream, under the Rib Loc brand. With the Drainage Services
Department and Water Supplies Department’s launch of comprechensive water mains improvement schemes,
which are respectively aimed at renovating Hong Kong’s sewage infrastructure and aged freshwater and saltwater
mains in the coming years, the Group is optimistic about the prospects of this division.

Insurance and Investment

During the year under review, revenue from this segment decreased from HK$129 million to HK$105 miilion as
compared to last year. However, profit declined substantially from HK$150 million to a loss of HK$71 million,
which was mainly due to the revaluation of the Group’s investment portfolio at year-end following significant
adjustments in the global equity markets.

The global market is now battling two major threats. In developed countries, the biggest threat is financial
turbulence. From the emerging world’s perspective, inflation is the biggest problem. Financial concerns in the
Western world have given rise to a substantial drop in the equity markets, and together with the Mainland
government’s continuous tightening of monetary controls, the PRC and Hong Kong stock markets sank to new
lows in 2008. The Group has already taken prudent steps and reduced substantially its equity exposure. Meanwhile,
the insurance underwriting business for employee compensation in Hong Kong, which constitutes the main
portfolio of our insurance subsidiary, continued to face intense market competition during fiscal 2007/08, and
return from securities investment also decreased.

Property

Revenue and profit for this segment increased substantially to HK$367 million and HK3$501 million respectively.
The increase in profit was mainly due to the cold storage business and the revaluation of the Group’s investment
properties in the PRC and Hong Kong.

The Group made good progress in Mainland China property development during the financial vear and also
achieved satisfactory growth in property sales. Phase I of the villa section at “My Villa” in Beijing was
completed and delivered to buyers during the year. Also, pre-sales of the residential section of Chevalier Tower,
a residential and commercial project in Chengdu, enjoyed an enthusiastic response with more than 90% of the
apartments being quickly swept up by buyers. Thankfully, the Group’s PRC businesses and property development
projects were not affected by the recent earthquakes in Sichuan. The latest addition to the Group’s property
development projects in Beijing, Chengdu, Hefei and Shenzhen is a project in Changchun of over 700,000 sq.m.
Profit contribution from the projects will be recognised in the coming years when the properties are completed
and delivered to buyers. To fund growth in the property segment, the Group also secured a HK$1 billion 5-year
club loan from six banks in November 2007,
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To sustain long-term growth in the PRC property development business, we continued to look for opportunities
in 2nd tier cities and acquire a premium land bank during the year. As of 31st March, 2008, the total GFA of
our land bank amounted to over 1,500,000 sq.m., which should be sufficient to support our development plans
in the coming 5 years.

The logistics and cold storage business continued to produce outstanding results, capitalising on booming local
demand to achieve a highly satisfactory occupancy rate of over 90% and increased profit contribution. The
Group expects to have steady rental cash flow from this division in the coming year.

The property management division provides management services for commercial and industrial buildings,
residential units, shopping arcades, car parks and other amenities in buildings with a total floor area of over 2
million sq.m. in Hong Kong and the Mainland. Making use of our experience in lHong Kong, the division is well
positioned to leverage opportunities arising in the Mainland.

A fair value gain of HK$387 million was recorded on revaluation of those investment properties located in the
Mainland and Hong Kong.

Food & Beverages (F&B), IT and Others
Revenue and profit from these businesses increased to HK$1,251 million and HK$62 million respectively.

During the year, Pacific Coffee in Hong Kong achieved steady revenue and encouraging operating profit. The
total number of Pacific Coffee stores in Hong Kong stood at 63 as of 31st March 2008 as compared to 51 in
March last year. Benefiting from a robust economic environment and the Group’s continued investment in
branding, product quality and services, same-store sales in Hong Kong grew an impressive 8.3% during the year
and total revenue climbed 19.5% to HK$266 million. Qur 49%-owned Igor’s Group of bars and restaurants
recorded exceptionally remarkable performance — a two-thirds increase in revenue with a net profit contribution
more than double the last calendar year. With the synergies gained from the central kitchen, the Group is
optimistic about the future of the F&B business in Hong Kong.

However, in addition to the closure of two unprofitable Pacific Coffee outlets in Shanghai and Beijing as
mentioned in our interim report, the results of F&B were also affected by the closure of a few other Pacific
Coffee outlets in Mainland China and the termination of its bakery operations in Beijing. Despite such setbacks,
Pacific Coffee is still optimistic about the long-term market potential of coffee culture in the Mainland and will
cautiously continue its efforts to expand its outlet network in prime locations of major cities.

As of 31st March 2008, Pacific Coffee had 78 shops and Igor’s had 29 outlets worldwide.

During the year, the revenue as well as profit of the IT business decreased slightly. As we are still in a
competitive market position, effective cost controls with continuous operational restructuring have been imposed
in Hong Kong and Thailand to defend our profit margin.

Elsewhere, the Nissan and Toyota car dealership businesses in Chengdu recorded improvements in both revenue
and gross margin. To further capture the PRC market, we established a Nissan car dealership in Panzhihua and
entered into an agreement to become the sales agent for Honggi during the year. These moves were in line with
our strategy of providing automobiles to PRC customers of different segments. The performances of our car
dealership businesses in Canada and food trading businesses in the USA were also satisfactory, with boih
registering increases in both revenue and profit contribution.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

As at 31st March 2008, the Group’s total net assets attributable to equity helders of the Company amounted to
HK$3,322 million (2007: HK$2,993 million), an increase of HK$329 million or 11.0% when compared with
2007. At the balance sheet date, the Group’s bank and other borrowings amounted to HK$2,618 million (2007:
HK$2,027 million)., Cash and deposit at bank including fixed and structured deposits amounted to HK$1,318
million (2007: HK$1,111 million).
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EMi’LOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group employed approximately 4,900 full time staff globally as at 31st March 2008. Total staff costs
amounted to approximately HK$965 million for the year ended 31st March 2008. The remuneration policies are
reviewed periodically on the basis of the nature of job, market trend, company performance and individual
performance. Other staff benefits include bonuses awarded on a discretionary basis, medical schemes, retirement
schemes and employees’ share option scheme,

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial results of the Group for the year ended 3ist March
2008.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities of the Company by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the code provisions as set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) throughout the year ended 31st March
2008, with deviations from code provision A.4.1 which has already been stated in the Company’s interim report
for the period ended 30th September 2007.

PUBLICATION OF ANNUAL RESULTS ON THE STOCK EXCHANGE’S WEBSITE

The annual results announcement of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2008 is published on the Stock
Exchange’s website at hutp://www. hkex.com.hk and the Company’s website at http://www.chevalier.com. The
annual report of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2008 will be despatched to the shareholders and
published on the above websites in due course.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like to thank all staff members for their dedication and diligence,
and my fellow directors for their support and contribution in the past year.

By Order of the Board
CHOW Yei Ching
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 16th July, 2008

As at the date of this announcement, the Board of the Company comprises Dr. Chow Yei Ching (Chairman and
Managing Director), Mr. Kuok Hoi Sang (Vice Chairman and Managing Director), Mr. Tam Kwok Wing (Depury
Managing Director), Mr. Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, Mr. Ho Chung Leung and Mr. Ho Sai Hou as executive
directors and Dr. Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph, Mr. Sun Kai Dah, George and Mr. Yang Chuen Liang, Charles as

independent non-executive directors.

website: http://www.chevalier.com

*  For identification purpose orly
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(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

(Stock Code: 025)

CLLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Board of Directors (the “Board™)} of Chevalier International Holdings Limited (the *Cempany”) announces
that the register of members will be closed from Tuesday, 23rd September 2008 to Friday, 26th Scptember
2008, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for the
proposed final dividend and to qualify as shareholder to attend the 2008 annual general meeting of the Company,
all transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
Branch Share Registrars in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited, of 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:00 p.m. on Monday, 22nd September 2008.

By Order of the Board
Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Chow Yei Ching
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 16 July 2068

This announcement is also available for viewing on the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Keng Limited at
www.hkexnews.hk and on the website of the Company at www.chevalier.com

As at the date of this announcement, the Board of the Company comprises Dr. Chow Yei Ching (Chairman and
Managing Director), Mr. Kuok Hoi Sang (Vice Chairman and Managing Director), Mr. Tam Kwok Wing (Deputy
Managing Direcror), Mr. Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, Mr. Ho Chung Leung and Mr. Ho Sai Hou as executive
directors and Dr. Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph, Mr. Sun Kai Dah, George and Mr. Yang Chuen Liang, Charles as
independent non-executive directors.

*  For identification purpose only
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